Phoenix Journal #237



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

CHAPTER 1	1
GERMAIN: RISING ABOVE THE ADVERSARY'S TRICKS	
3/28/98 VIOLINIO ST. GERMAIN	1
CHAPTER 2	
THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON AN UNCENSORED HISTORY	
OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS PART VIII IN A SERIES	
by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98	7
WHO WAS ZOROASTER?	7
WHAT IS THE ORIGIN OF LATINS?	7
ABRAHAM'S PARENTS	9
RAM IN THICKET	11
JOSEPH THE BELOVED IMHOTEP	11
JOSEPH IN DYNASTY III	12
WHO WAS CHEOPS?	16
FACE OF CHEOPS	16
THE EGYPTIAN GENERAL MOSES	19
THE EXODUS	21
CHAPTER 3	24
THE NEW DESK - by Dr. Al Overholt 4/4/98	24
ARKANSAS SATANISTS?	24
CIVILIAN INTERNMENT	
CAMPS UP FOR REVIEW	
MYSTERY SIGNAL DISRUPTS CHINESE SATELLITE	26
ALLEGED KIDNAPPERS LYNCHED IN MEXICO	
TOBACCO PANEL OKS FDA POWER OVER NICOTINE ITEMS	28
BRE-X MINERALS	28
CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL WARFARE PROGRAM	29
BILLY GRAHAM DOES POLITICAL	
FAVOR FOR PRESIDENT CLINTON	
AIR BEEFS UP ALUMINUM	30
JAPAN IS THE WORLD'S LEADING SOURCE OF CAPITAL AND	
TOP CREDITOR TO AMERICA	
ISRAEL SNUBS BRITISHENVOY OVER SETTLEMENT	31
UPDATE ON LARRY HARRIS—THE MICROBIOLOGIST	32
HOLOCAUST-DOUBTER FINED	
NEW FLU DEATHS SCARE HONG KONG	32
RIGHT APPROACH	
BANKING'S BIG BOTTOM LINE	
JUSTICE DELAYED	
ARCHAEOLOGICAL FIND	34
JAPAN AND COLD FUSION	34

BIG BUCKS IN EXPANSION OF NATO	34
BILDERBERG WANTS YOUR LAND	35
FIRST STEP	36
FARROW	36
CREDITS GOD AND KIDS	36
'JUST ME AND GOD'	37
CHAPTER 4	39
THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON	
AN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORD	S
PART IX IN A SERIESby Calvin Burgin 2/5/98	39
THE ZODIAC	
ORIGIN OF THE ZODIAC	
WHO WERE THE MAGI?	40
HOW WISE WERE THE MAGI?	40
ARPHAXAD, ARAMEANS, AND THE ZODIAC	42
WHO WERE THE "SONS OF GOD"?	43
WHO WERE THE ANUNNAKI?	
WHAT WAS KHAR-SAG?	47
NOAH'S DESCENDANTS	50
TABLE OF NATIONS	50
NOAH'S DESCENDANTS THRU JAPHETH, HAM, SHEM	50
CHAPTER 5	53
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT	53
IF THERE'S A GNAT IN THE HOUSE, BLOW UP THE HOUSE	
by Dr. Al Overholt 4/3/98	53
CHAPTER 6	56
SOLTEC: ARE YOU RUNNING FROM YOUR TRUE FEELINGS?	
4/4/98 SOLTEC	
CHAPTER 7	
THE NEW DESK - by Dr. Al Overholt 4/11/98	
SEEK, YE SHALL FIND—OR SO WE'VE BEEN TOLD	
ARE YOU READY TO GIVE UP YOUR HOME AND PROPERTY??	61
TWO MILLION ACRES IN KENTUCKY AND TENNESSEE TO BE	
UNPOPULATED; 500,000 PEOPLE TO LOSE THEIR HOMES	
THIS COULD NOT HAPPEN TO MECOULD IT??	
SENIORS SUE OVER MEDICARE	62
RENO AND FBI PLAYING HARDBALL	
FOR MORE WIRETAPPING POWER	63
PATIENT PRIVACY UNDER ATTACK	
IN NEW SENATE PROPOSAL	
THE MULTICULTURALIST REQUIREMENT FOR TEACHER TRAINING	
DOES "THE ARTHRITIS CURE" WORK?	
PRESIDENT CLINTON'S SUPPORTERS ARE TRYING TO SAVE HIM	
BONUS FOR BANKS	
CHANGES AHEAD	67

CRIME PAYS FOR MONEY MANAGERS; MILKEN'S BACK	68
GLOW IN THE DARK	
4,500 LOBOTOMIES REPORTED IN SWEDEN	69
NEWSCLIPS	69
USAF PILOTS	69
NEW TWO-WAR STRATEGY	70
101ST FAILING	70
PILOT SHORTAGE	70
CYPRIOT AIRBASE	70
MORE ON MURDOCH'S MEDIA	70
STARR STUDDED	70
SENATE VENOM	71
PUBLIC ACCLAIM	71
RED CROSS SERVICE	71
MY PROOF OF SURVIVAL	71
CHAPTER 8	73
THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON	
AN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS	
PART X IN A SERIES by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98	73
EARLY EUROPEAN HISTORY	
ABRAHAM IN EUROPE!	73
GENEALOGY OF ODIN	75
INTEREST IN ATON IS BACK!	78
HOW I FOUND ODIN/ATON	78
INTEREST IN AKHENATON IS BACK	82
CHAPTER 9	86
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT- by Dr. Al Overholt	86
VICE PRESIDENT LINKED TO	
MICORWAVE WEAPONS AIMED AT CITIZENS	86
CHAPTER 10	93
LIFE'S A REAL BALANCING ACT!-4/11/98 SOLTEC	93
CHAPTER 11	98
THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON	
AN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS	3
PART XI AND END OF THIS SERIES by Calvin Burgin	98
MORE INFORMATION TO PONDER	98
ASHER—GOOD GUY OR BAD?	99
WHY ATLANTIS?	99
AN EGYPTIAN PICKED OUR MOON LANDING SITES!	100
THE TRAIL OF ATON	101
AKHNATON, THE LONG-NECKED	103
A THOUGHTFUL REVIEW	105
CHAPTER 12	107
NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT	107
ELITE POWER-PLAY OVER	107

HIDING TRUE ANCIENT HISTORY: THE HALL OF OSIRIS	
by Dr. Al Overholt 4/18/98	107
DR. HAWASS: OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE	
Larry Hunter & Amargi Hillier's	107
SPECIAL INVESTIGATION	
HALL OF OSIRIS	108
CHAPTER 13	110
THE BAMBOOZLING OF AMERICA	
OPINION POLLS AND YOU 110 by John Coleman 3/30/98	110
CHAPTER 14	112
THE NEWS DESK - by Dr. Al Overholt 4/4/98	112
DID PRESIDENT CLINTON MEET JESUS??	112
WHEN THE FINAL TERROR BEGINS	113
POLITICIAN BLASTS JEWS by Vladimir Isachenkov	113
TENN. RESOLUTION: OPPOSING BIOSPHERE RESERVES	114
WARNING FROM SPACE	115
CORPORATE CHURNINGS	115
LAWYERS—LEGAL THIEVES PUT ON DEFENSE!!	116
CASINO SPY-CHIP	
ANGELS IN THE DEATH CHAMBER	118
VACCINATION RISKS ARE VERY REAL	119
HOUSE DEMS BRING CLINTON ADMINISTRATION	
BACK TO REALITY ON ENCRYPTION	120
IRS REFORMS PROTECTING PRIVACY?	120
INTERNAL AUDIT SAYS NO	120
ANALYSIS OF S.1921 HEALTH CARE PERSONAL	
INFORMATION NONDISCLOSURE ACT OF 1998	
SIGN OR DIE	121
ENGLISH ONLY	
SINKING STERN FIRST	
DOUBLE LOSER	
FROM THE HEARTS OF CHILDREN	
"BUTTERFLY KISSES"	
"THE MOST CARING CHILD"	
"TWO NICKELS AND FIVE PENNIES"	124

CHAPTER 1

GERMAIN: RISING ABOVE THE ADVERSARY'S TRICKS

3/28/98 VIOLINIO ST. GERMAIN

Good afternoon, my scribe. It is I, Violinio St. Germain. I come as Cohan (Teacher) of the Violet Ray of Transmutation. I am most busy in these times of transition from "out of the old" and "into the new".

Your world is on the brink of war and many there in the United States are oblivious to the clues that are all around them. The masses sleep while the elitist game-players dictate the fate of your world.

What gives these dark ones the right to do so?

YOU DO!

When good people of reasonable intelligence DO NOTHING, then they (you) have chosen—either directly or indirectly—to give over their (your) freedom. YOU are responsible for that which impacts your experience!

You are led to believe that you are too small to even have an impact on the local scene, let alone the global scene. This is a lie!

Look to some of your present social leaders, such as Louis Farrakhan. Is he not ONE man with ONE voice? Is he greater than any other man? He has, perhaps, greater desire than do most of you reading this. He is willing to stand up and voice his awareness of that which is impacting his and your experience.

Why is it that most of you cower at the thought of someone ridiculing you over your opinions and viewpoints? It is that old challenge called fear! This fear is exactly what most of you are there to face and overcome.

When enough people will stand up and demand accountability of those who are in power, then and only then will change be realized. This is not as difficult an effort as it may at first seem, but accountability most certainly will not "happen on its own"—especially under the current conditions of your darkened and controlled planet!

Many times there have been opportunities for EACH of you to speak up and voice that which you know to be Truth. Some of you exploit these opportunities on every occasion, but most of you simply sit there, quietly, and say little or nothing, out of fear.

This is the adversary playing you for a weakling. Was not Esu "Jesus" Immanuel ridiculed, beaten, and spat upon for voicing Truth? Was he not just ONE man with ONE voice?

You each have INFINITE inner potential and you each are efforting to overcome the self-imposed limitations that keep you from realizing and drawing upon your vast inner Power. This infinite Power derives from your being no less than a spark (Lighted fragment) of Creator Source!

The greatest obstacle comes from your own inner beliefs that it is somehow dangerous or painful to step forward and release yourselves from the chains that shackle you in the perceived comforts of mental and emotional slavery. You are kept in this state by design and due to your own ignorance of Higher Truth and Reality.

The adversary to God is a *master* gamesman and knows what tricks will work to dissuade you. However, as we have said so many times in past writings, it only takes ONE who truly awakens to the Light of their inner self-Power, while in the physical, to severely disrupt the adversary's whole game-plan.

I petition to you ones: Don't hold back the gifts offered here! If the thought crosses your mind for even a moment, then act upon the impulse and share. If ones laugh or ridicule you, then forgive them and move on.

You do not have to defend God or His Truth. These ones who choose to ridicule are the ones who need the messages the very most.

Those of you who have awakened enough to recognize the importance of this information are, if you so choose to be, OUR hands, feet, and mouth. YOU can make a difference!

You do this one day at a time, with one foot in front of the other. It will take a strong self-motivation and inner desire to persist. However, know that you will be given that which you need in order to face ANY challenge that comes across your path. The rewards to you will indeed be great if you but persist through these challenges.

Many are petitioning to help at this time. There have been many suggestions offered, particularly through this avenue of information sharing called *CONTACT*, that each of you can do from where you are located right now and with your present abilities.

Anywhere there are people, you can make a difference! You do not have to go out and seek to change anyone. We are not about shoving our reality down anyone's throat! Simply be attentive to each opportunity, when it arises. Ones are guided to cross your path so that you each may have an opportunity to learn from each other.

Many of you, again, out of fear, simply hold back that which is so desperately needed by another to help with their awakening from the stupor of mass mind-control. Those in the heavily populated areas are most severely under such influence since so many avenues of bombardment are present for manipulation purposes.

Especially in larger towns, due to the ever increasing fear of "strangers", you ones will rarely even make eye contact with one another, let alone strike-up a conversation. At least in the smaller, rural country towns there still exists some measure of the community spirit that should be the norm everywhere. However, the elite would-be controllers effort from the level of their global manipulations (for example, through excessive regulation and taxation on small businesses and farms) to even demoralize the camaraderie of the smallest of rural communities.

Random acts of violence have become THE "tool" of choice in order to perpetuate and maintain the state of fear. These are more commonly referred to as "terrorist tactics" when they are done by organized militaristic organizations.

When "ordinary" young teenagers in a relatively small town in the heartland of your country can take on the characteristics of cold robots without any apparent justifiable reason, and open fire on their schoolmates, you have before you an effective mechanism for controlling the population's viewpoint and emotional state. This was no random act; it was a product of advanced mind control and the children are merely susceptible pawns in a much larger game.

These are the tactics that will get you-the-people screaming for gun control and disarmament. These tactics are planned and orchestrated in the same exact, calculating manner as was the assassination of President Kennedy back in 1963. As a nation stood paralyzed in disbelief at that time, so too have many around your nation had a similar reaction to the recent shootings by two young boys, 11 and 13 years old, of their friends and teachers.

If your general population knew of the existence of sophisticated mind-control tactics (which include a wide array of electronic devices and techniques as have long been reported in the pages of *CONTACT*) for achieving such sinister goals, would the public have the same response or reaction to such purposely staged events? Of course not!

The public's very predictable emotional reaction is justified from the perspective of their current level of (lack of) understanding. Our goal here is to bring ones out of the Dark Ages and into a more enlightened reality of what is being employed to manipulate and coerce them (you) into expected responses.

Understanding the truth of the matter would surely set the minds of many ones in a different direction (hopefully of constructive action instead of knee-jerk REaction) if they were to know that they are being "played" for fools. However, in this case ignorance will keep many of you ones in a state of anxiety and fear, especially those who have any direct responsibility toward children, as do parents, grandparents, and teachers.

It is expected that this event should generate (cause the REaction of) a strong desire for safety for families and loved ones. This desire will cause these otherwise quiet and unassuming people to speak out and demand that "something" be done to prevent this sort of thing from happening ever again—such as through gun control.

This is the desired result from those who have set these events into motion. But you can be sure

that the offered solution(s) will only be in a direction to further enslave and control you and take away your freedoms.

When your desire as an individual, group, or nation is strong enough so that you stand up and speak out about this sort of calculated atrocity, then you too can demand and bring about change. The key is to educate the people so that they can truly make informed decisions, not REact out of fear and ignorance—and in so doing avoid falling into the traps set for your enslavement.

You, the American public, are the greatest deterrent to the New World Order. The United Nations is having quite a difficult time convincing you ones that you should be following THEIR leadership.

Their only choice seems to be to go in and use military force. Thus you have the systematic disarmament of the country. The military bases are all but gone compared to just 10 years ago (while many locations have been quietly turned into concentration camps to handle any of you uppity citizens who foolishly attempt to "resist" the New World Order agenda). A large portion of the troops that you do have are (again) being shipped overseas to fight foreign battles. Your country is nearly prime for takeover.

The one last obstacle that stands in the way of the takeover plan is the fact that there are a great number of you "average citizens" who hold onto your "right to bear arms". This is the reason behind engineering such shocking events as children killing children—to chip away at that conviction toward holding onto your weapons. Am I condoning the use of such weapons? NO! I am merely pointing out the facts.

These ones in control of your planet would much rather destroy you through unsuspected covert ways than through simply going in and wiping you out. The latter carries too much risk of waking some of you up from your delusion of freedom.

The planned method is to create a militarily weakened condition so as to allow a country such as China to attack the U.S. Then, in the spirit of "rescue", the would-be kings send in the United Nations forces to finish off the job, and at the same time establish their "world peace-keeping" presence on U.S. soil with little objection from the remaining survivors.

This way, so the reasoning goes, the U.N. can take care of the Chinese "problem" at the same time they take care of the American "problem". Of course, neither of the "problems" are actually problems—except where the planning of the dark, one-world elite is concerned.

There are several ways for this general scenario to unfold. First, these dark elite controllers must get a country (China) to "bite" on the bait laid in the trap. This is why there has been such an extensive effort to disarm the U.S.

When the Chinese feel that they can actually take over and hold the U.S., they will then be open to the idea of doing so. However, do not underestimate the Chinese! The rulers of China are quite aware of the U.N.'s agenda and they are also very aware of the Khazarian (so-called "Jewish") element's role in dominating that agenda. China's ploy will be to attack both the

United States AND Israel, simultaneously, in order to get the U.N. to divide its troops.

The various main factions of these dark elite controllers are quite fixated on their own personal agendas and there is NO honor among them. They will turn upon one another in a moment if it will help to get better position on the game field. These ones do not trust one another, and for very good reason—they all got to where they are by being back-stabbers, cheats, and liars. Most of them are quite proud of themselves for doing so!

Please also keep in mind that there are TWO other major players in this game of power. These are the Antarctic Germans and the true Russians (as opposed to the Khazarian "Jewish" Bolshevik Soviets) which include most of the Russian military machine, especially advanced operations such as their Cosmosphere brigade.

Understand that both of these formidable powers have, each in their own way, kicked the parasitic Khazarians out of their country and have little-to-no tolerance for their "games". These two factions are not your enemy, but if you side (out of ignorance) with the mind-bending U.N., then they will not hesitate to eliminate you as a threat.

Both the Russians and the Antarctic Germans have UFO-type craft. Meanwhile, the Khazarian-antichrist-adversarial U.N. group would love to make you-the-people believe that your world is being invaded by "bad" "aliens" so that, should you observe craft from the Russian or German groups (or from we of the Hosts of God), you would be filled with fear and REact in such a way as to band together under the "protection" of the United Nations. In point of fact, your world has been invaded for thousands of years by the parasitic, dark, antichrist beings who have been playing these same games all the while since they were imprisoned here.

Creator will always find a place for His creations, and each has a place and reason to be there. These dark ones provide YOU with a challenging environment in which to experience and grow. They serve a purpose in the overall perfection of God's planning and are here for reason.

Please do not judge the person, but rather the actions. Your challenge is to experience and OVERCOME these seemingly negative, adversarial things. In doing so, you will stand as example to these dark ones that there is a Greater Power within than they have ever imagined—so that these ones might eventually grow as well.

This kind of a "stand for Truth" has far greater implications of learning than you might readily perceive, because even Satan-Lucifer (the leader of the dark ones) will then eventually have to realize that he is not greater than Creator and cannot dominate Creator's Lighted Fragments (you!).

Do your best to be an example (reflection) of that which is good and of Godly intent, and you will not have need to worry or fear anyone. Make every effort to act in reason, without REacting to what you are being told. Think through each situation as it crosses your path and always seek, within the Light, guidance and clarification.

I am Violinio St. Germain. I come in and of the Light of Creator Source. May you see that there is a great need to transform, through truthful education, the thinking of those who are your brothers and sisters in the unfolding drama of schoolroom Earth. This is accomplished by EACH of you doing your part. Salu!

CHAPTER 2

THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON AN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS PART VIII IN A SERIES by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98

Editor's note: The following continues this series from Calvin Burgin which began in the 2/10/98 issue of CONTACT; as he explains in a footnote, Heptameron means: **Heptameron** (hep-tam'-e-rön): "a book or treatise containing the actions of seven days, in the style of Boccaccio's Decameron or the Heptameron of Queen Margaret of Navarre (1492-1549)."

WHO WAS ZOROASTER?

Godfrey Higgins, *Anacalypsis*, writing in 1833, says, p. 85: "The Persians also claim Ibrahim, i. e. Abraham, for their founder, as well as the Jews. Thus we see that according to all ancient history the Persians, the Jews, and the Arabians, are descendants of Abraham. But Abraham was not merely the founder of the Persians, but various authors assert, that he was a great Magician, at the head of the Magi, that is, he was at the head of the priesthood.... Eusebius tells us, on the authority of Eupolemus, that Abraham was an astrologer, and that he taught the science to the priests of Heliopolis or On. This was a fact universally asserted by the historians of the East." Other records call the founder of the Persian religion *Zoroaster*, so we see that Abraham was known as Zoroaster. This was the title of the chief of their religion, and later Daniel became the Zoroaster, during the time of Cyrus. For more information on Zoroaster, see the chapter on "The Chinese Confirmation of Babel."

WHAT IS THE ORIGIN OF LATINS?

The Latin goddess Circe is the source of our word "church". Latins are descended from Latinus. Latinus was son of Circe (sometimes spelled Kirke) (Hesiod, *Theogony*, 1013). Circe was daughter of King Aeetus, ruler over Colchis near the Black Sea. Circe was from Colchis and spoke the Colchian language (*Apollonius IV*, 720-750). Sir Robert Brown, *The Myth of Kirke*, showed that Colcians were Chaldeans (another name for Babylonians) and that the traditions of Circe came originally from the Chaldeans of Babylon. H. C. Rawlinson and Professor Sayce agree that Colchians were from Babylon. Robert Brown, *Semitic Influence in Hellenic Mythology*, said, "That the Kirke myth is entirely Euphratean in origin, is fully proved; and is quite admitted by Professor Sayce..." (pp. 149, 150). For further proof of this, see *Ency. Britannica*, 11th ed., under article "Circe".

Circe had a golden cup which contained a potion that gave her control over men. The potion was called "The Mess," and is what the Catholic Church now calls "The Mass" (see *Odysseus*, Book X, and *Myths of Kirke*, p. 76). Even today, soldiers in the field eat from their "mess kits" or at base they eat in the "mess hall," tracing back to this sacred drink. In other traditions, this sacred drink was called "souma", "hoama", or the "holy moly" (*Woman's Mysteries*, by M. Esther Harding, p. 136). Remember in the TV series "Batman," Robin saying to Batman, "Holy Moly, Batman," when he became excited? Now you

know what the "holy moly" is! Circe was no doubt a real person who represented herself as the Mother Goddess, Nimrods's wife in the flesh. She is also sometimes represented as Noah's wife. She fed men and women the Mess or Mass, which made them chase each other around in "circles"—the temple looked like a "circus." Believe it or not, the word "church" comes from the goddess Circe—look in the dictionary! Jacob Meyer, a Biblical languages scholar who wrote the Assemblies of Yahweh Bethel Edition of the *Bible*, says: "Immediately we are forced to admit to the fact that this word ["church"] has nothing to do with a meeting, assembly, or congregation of believers, but rather it emphasizes the house OVER the occupants, who are the worshippers. While the Hebrew and Greek words [translated as "church"] mean a congregation of people, the word church traces its roots to the building" (article "Church or Assembly?" by Jacob Meyer). The Companion Bible, Appendix 186, says: "Church is derived from the Greek kyriados, of or belonging to the Lord, house (Greek oikos) being understood. It comes to us through the Anglo Saxon circe (Scotch kirk). Compare Hebrew kikkar, a circuit or disk." The word church traces directly to sun worship and Circe worship! The German word for church is kirche, Swedish is kirka, Danish kirke, Russian tserkov, Bulgarian cerkova, Czech is cirkev, Finnish kirkko, etc., and all trace back to the originally round temple of the goddess Kirke or Circe where sex rites were performed. Preachers who insist on the required attendance of their congregations in a certain building on the day of the sun, and who spend fortunes on fancy buildings, are merely following in the footsteps of their "pagan" ancestors.

Circe settled in Italy near Rome, according to Apollonius' *Voyage of the Argo*, Book IV, 650-760; *Odysseus*, Book X; Virgil, *Aenid*, Book VII, 10; and *The Golden Bough*, vol. I, St. Martin's Edition, p. 198. Today there is seacoast land called the Circean Promontory, and nearby is the city of Circe (Circei). Circe was buried either on the island of Patmos, where John had the vision of *Revelation*, or within sight six miles away on the island of Pharmakousia. Professor Sayce and Robert Brown both maintain that the traditions associated with Circe were other forms of the Ishtar/Semiramis traditions, and apparently the *Bible* refers to the Circe worship in *Jeremiah 51:7* and *Revelation 17, 18* (when John had the vision of *Revelation* he would have been in sight of Circe's grave, the grave of the Harlot Mother who gave birth to Lateinos, the founder of the Latin civilization, and whose name adds up to 666 in the Greek language).

The name "Lateinos" (whose number is 666) can be traced back to the original goddess of the Earth. Lot's name is related to this same term. There are far too many similarities involved in these things for this all to be mere coincidence.

Lotan was son of Seir the Horite (*Gen. 36:20*). Seir was an Edomite, a descendant of Esau. Mt. Seir in Edom was named for him. He was a rather famous person and became known as Hercules in "pagan" records. He had son Shobal (*Gen. 36:20*), brother of Lotan, and son Dishon who had son Eshban (v. 26). Seir was also known as Hercules Libycus, and was known as Necherophes in Egyptian records. Manetho records that he conquered Libya (North and West Africa), as well as what is now southern Spain. His son Hispal (Ispal, Shobal) ruled in Spain for 17 years, from 1807 BC to 1790. He built the city of Hispalis, later called Sepila, now known as Seville. Next the grandson of Hercules (Heracles in Greek) by the name of Hispanis (gave his name to Hispania) ruled for 32 years, 1790-1758 BC. Hispanus (Hispan) was the Eshban of *Gen. 36:26*.

Hispania drove the tribes out of northern Spain and built defense towers in Gallicia. Some of the tribes that were driven out from the Bay of Biscay area went to Central America and are written about in Toltec history (Bancroft, Vol. V, p. 209). When Hispania died, the aging Hercules (Seir the Horite) returned and

ruled over Spain, Britain and Gaul (France) for 19 years, 1758-1739 BC.

When Hercules died, he was succeeded by one of his generals, called Hesperus. Hesperus gave his name to Spain (Hesperus Minor) and Italy (Hesperus Major). He was the Biblical Ephah, son of Midian, who was son of Abraham and Keturah (*Gen. 25:1-4*). He ruled in Spain for 11 years, 1739-1728, then was driven out by his brother, Atlas.

Atlas ruled 12 years, 1728-1716. This brother of Hesperus was also called Italus, was another general of Hispania, and was a famous strong man and astronomer. He is Ephah's brother Epher (*Gen. 25:4*). They are written about by Josephus, *Antiq.* I, xv: "It is related of this Ophren, that he made war against Libya and took it; and that his grandchildren, when they inhabited it, called it (from his name) Africa: and, indeed, Alexander Polyhistor gives his attestation to what I here say, who speaks thus:—'Cleodemus the prophet, who was also called Malchus, who wrote a history of the Jews, in agreement with the history of Moses, their legislator, relates that there were many sons born to Abraham by Keturah; nay, he names three of them, Apher, and Surim, and Japhran: that from Surim was the land of Assyria denominated; and that from the other two (Apher and Japhran) the country of Africa took its name, because these men were auxiliaries to Hercules, when he fought against Libya and Antaeus; and that Hercules married Aphra's daughter, and of her he begat a son, Diodorus; and that Sophon was his son; and from whom that barbarous people called Sophacians were denominated.""

The "Ophren" mentioned by Josephus was the Biblical Epher and is known mainly in history as "Atlas". See vol. xviii of *Universal History*, published in 1748 (20 volumes). Also Anderson's *Royal Genealogies*. In Greek history he was most often known as Atlas Italus Kitim, which was often confused with Japheth's descendant known as Atlas Maurus. Atlas Italus Kitim had son Oris or Sicorus, who had son Anus or Sicanus, who had son Sicileus or Siculus. These people gave their name to Sicania, which became Sicilia, then Sicily. Lusus, son of Siculus, gave his name to Lusitania (now known as Portugal). His son Ulus or Siculus, also known as Neptune, had a great fleet of ships and rescued survivors from the flood of Deucalion in Thessaly, in 1503 BC, and settled them in Spain.

Abraham died in 1799 BC. We see above that Hercules (in Egypt known as Necherophes) was contemporary. Manetho wrote of him: "In his reign Libya revolted, but, on account of an unexpected increase of the moon, they submitted through fear." The moon got bigger? That is what Manetho said, apparently the moon moved into an orbit nearer the earth. This no doubt happened at the time Abraham was having his encounter with Jupiter. It appears that Abraham, the astronomy instructor, knew what Jupiter was about to do and gained the reputation of being able to control Jupiter (he became the god of Jupiter), in much the same way as the *Connecticut Yankee in King Arthur's Court* could make the sun go dark during a cloudless day.

The story of the genealogy of Atlas and his connection to Atlantis, the Atlantic, Quetzalcoatl (worshiped by the Mayans of Central America as Kukulcan. The Mayans were named from Maia, one of the daughters of Atlas—(check your encyclopedia).

ABRAHAM'S PARENTS

The Babylonian Talmud says Abram's mother was Emtelai, the *Book of Jubilees* says it was Edna (11:14). Is Edna perhaps a variation of Emtelai/Emterai which traces to Terah? This may be a stretch. According to the Jewish records, Abram's father Terah was a manufacturer and seller of idols, some of whose names were Barisat, Marumath, Zucheus, and Joauv. The first word in the *Bible*, in *Genesis*, in Hebrew, is Barasit (translated as "In the beginning" but actually meaning "Wisdom"). I wonder if the teraphim of the *Bible* (*Judges 17:5*) got their name from Terah, or perhaps vice versa? Marumath perhaps was Marmar, another name for Mars; Zucheus may have been Zeus, and Joauv could be Jove. The national god of the Chaldians was known as Chaldi or Chaldis. According to some, there is a difference between "Chaldians" and "Chaldeans" that I do not yet understand.

The Jewish records say that Abram knew Nimrod.

According to *Jubilees* 13:10-11 and *Numbers* 13:22, Hebron was built at the time Abraham arrived. He stayed there two years, then went to Egypt. Five years later Sarah was taken by Pharaoh, and seven years after Hebron was built, Tanis in Egypt was built. Tanis was later known as Zoan. It was from Zoan that the Israelites later began the Exodus. Zoan was the capital of Goshen, and the land of Goshen was known as the field of Zoan (*Psa.* 78:43, 12, 13, 36).

The king of Egypt became known as Pharaoh. The *Book of Jasher* tells of a wise man from Shinar who went to Egypt during the reign of Anom. "A-nom" could be "A-MN" or "god Min" or "Mona" or "Menu" or "An-Om". These were all titles, and the original writing did not use vowels, so the records are hard to decipher.

The wise, but poor, man was named Rikayon. He impersonated an officer of the king and recruited an army to guard the burial grounds of a nearby city, charge a tax and sent the money to the king to get his attention. He became popular with the king. "And the king answered and said to Rikayon, Thy name shall no more be called Rikayon but Pharaoh (meaning to get paid or to exact) shall be thy name, since thou didst exact a tax from the dead" (*Jasher 14:27*). Later when the king's son Oswiris took the throne, Rikayon was made governor of Egypt. Then Rikayon or Pharaoh cunningly usurped the throne of Egypt (*Jasher 14:31*).

Rikayon may have been the first king of the Second Dynasty, who was Hotep-ahaui or Ra-neb (Boethos, Bedjau). Egyptian records show that there was a famine during the reign of Ata (Uenephes, Den-Merneit) of the First Dynasty. The *Book of Jasher* parallels the time of Rikayon with that of Abraham and the famine (*Jasher 15:1,2*). The records show that 39 years after the reign of Hotep-ahaui (Beothos), Binothris ("Ben Terah") took the throne.

One of the names of the first king of the First Dynasty was Ra-neb. This is the same as Ben-Ra, "son of Ra.." Since the language in those times read from right to left, proper names sometimes were reversed and sometimes were not reversed when they evolved into later languages.

ram in thicket

RAM IN THICKET

Archaeologists, digging at Ur, have found a gold, silver and brass artifact that they call the "Ram In the Thicket". It portrays a ram reared up into a small bush or tree. They date it from approximately this time period, but since they place Abraham much later, they assume it has no connection with Abraham except they suspect that Abraham copied a much older story. Since Abraham was actually from a much older time than they assume, and was a wealthy, prominent person, probably a king, then this artifact takes on much more importance (remember the story of Abraham about to slay his son and he finds a ram caught by the horns in a thicket—*Gen. 22:13*).

Archaeologists show a decline in the power of the First Dynasty at the time of the beginning of the Second Dynasty. Petrie says "Of the reign of Bezau [Rikayon?] we read that there was a chasm at Bodastis and many persons perished as that is the region of volcanic action as shown by the basalt beds of Abu Simbel. It is not unlikely that an earthquake or a great fault in the earth might occur there." This disaster fits with the time of the destruction of Sodom and Gomorrah along this same fault line.

Petrie says that the worship of animals as gods began with the fourth king of Dynasty II, with the introduction of "Set". This would be during the reign of the "rapist" Tlas. It is curious to me, and perhaps only a coincidence, that "Tlas" would Hebraize as "salt".

The last king of Dynasty II was Beby (Bebty, joint reign with Necherophes), who reigned from 1764 to 1737 BC. At this point the dynasty moved from Thinis to Memphis, where Zoser became the first king of Dynasty III in 1737.

JOSEPH THE BELOVED IMHOTEP

Abraham died in 2175 AM at age 175, which corresponds to our year 1799 BC. When he was 99 years old, in 1876 BC, God confirmed the covenant with him and said that the following year he would have son Isaac (*Gen. 17:1, 21*). So Isaac was born in 1875 BC. Isaac was 60 years old when Jacob was born (*Gen. 25:26*). Jacob's name was changed to Israel. He had son Joseph, who had the coat of many colors and was taken to Egypt, where he was imprisoned and later released.

Shem died in 1816 BC at age 600. This was the same year or within one year [sic] of the birth of Isaac.

In Egypt, Chaires began his reign in 1815 till 1798 BC.

Nephercheres reigned 1798-1783.

Sesochris (Neferkaseker) reigned 1783-1775.

Nephercheres reigned again 1775-1765.

Hudjefa reigned jointly with Nephercheres 1775-1764.

Necherophes reigned (in Memphis) 1765-1737.

Beby (Bebty) reigned jointly with Necherophes 1764-1737.

At this point the dynasty moves to Memphis and Zoser reigns 1737-1718. Zoser was also called Djoser, Zoser-za, Netjrikhe, Tosarthros.

Nebka, of the line of Beby, reigned 1718-1699.

Zoser-teti (Tosertasis) reigned 1699-1693.

Nebkare reigned 1693-1687.

Huny reigned 1687-1663. This was the end of Dynasty III at Memphis.

Dynasty IV at Memphis paralleled Dynasty III, beginning with Necherophes (same as in II) 1765-1737. hen Djoser-za (Tosorthros) reigned 1737-1708.

ureis reigned 1708-1701.

Mesochris reigned 1701-1684.

The fifth king in this line was Souphis, Suphis, Saophis, or Joseph! The Seven Years Famine of Joseph's time was spring 1726 to winter 1719. The total service of Joseph was 1734-1668. He came to Egypt in the summer of 1725. The seven abundant years were 1733-1727. He entered service at age 30, served until he was 96, died at age 110.

Dynasty IV of Memphis began with Snefro, Snofru, Soris from 1755-1726.

He was followed by Cheops, Khufwey, Suphis I 1726-1703. This is considered by some to be the Biblical Job, and thus the builder of the Pyramid of Cheops (originally perhaps pronounced "Chobs" or "Jobs").

Joseph was the 8th ruler in this particular line, from 1734 to 1668.

JOSEPH IN DYNASTY III

Dynasty III of Egypt, the first dynasty of the city of Memphis, lists Souphis (Joseph) who ruled 16 years (#5 in the king list) from 1684-1668 BC. (per the historian Manetho, the Turin Papyrus and the Palermo Stone). He was the Joseph of the *Bible*.

The only seven year famine recorded in the entire history of the Pharaohs is recorded as ending at the close of year 18 of Zoser I (end of winter 1719 BC). Zoser was the first king in Dynasty III of which Joseph was number 5. The facts are recorded on the rocks of the island of Sehel, at the First Cataract of the Nile. The modern translation is in *Biblical Archaeology* by G. Ernest Wright, page 56. It says:

"Year 18... I was in distress on the Great Throne, and those who are in the palace were in Heart's affliction from a very great evil, since the Nile had not come in my time for a space of seven years. Grain was scant, fruits were dried up, and everything which they eat was short.... The infant was wailing; the youth was waiting; the heart of the old man was in sorrow.... The courtiers were in need. The temples were shut up.... Everything was found empty."

The records show that Joseph was a public ruler for 66 years from 1734 to 1668 BC. Joseph ruled for 66 years in Dynasty IV and 16 years in Dynasty III. Dynasty IV was a foreign dynasty that paralleled Dynasty III. The famine was from the spring of 1726 to the spring of 1719. Jacob came to Egypt in the summer of 1725, after two years of famine in Palestine. The seven years of great abundance were 1733-1727 BC. Joseph came to power in 1734, one year before the beginning of the seven years of great prosperity. The records show that Joseph began public office in 1734. He was 30 years old (*Gen. 41:46*). He served until age 96 then retired and died at age 110 (*Gen. 50:26*).

Dynasty III, IV and V were contemporary (ruling in different areas of Egypt) and the records (Manetho, Palermo Stone and Turin Papyrus) show that Joseph ruled in both Dynasty III and IV. Dynasty III and IV ended before the Exodus, while Dynasty V ended with the death of Pharaoh Onnos (Unis, Unas) in 1486 BC (he was a first born and a cannibal), the year of the Exodus. The Egyptian records tell of him eating his slain enemies and are too gross for me to quote.

The records show the Exodus to have been 1486, yet I can show that using only the *Bible* we get a date of 1446 BC for the Exodus. Why this 40 year difference I have not yet been able to determine. For the purpose of this document I will use the dates as determined in the actual records when I am quoting old records, and will use the Biblical date when quoting the *Bible*. For our purposes, it does not make much difference.

A possible explanation for this 40 year discrepancy is given in *Ezekiel 30*. Ezekiel records God's words against Egypt: "...I will bring a sword upon you, destroying man and beast within you, till the land of Egypt lies desolate and waste...I will turn the land of Egypt into an utter waste of desolation....no foot of man shall pass over it, no foot of beast shall pass over it; for forty years it shall not be inhabited; I will make the land of Egyptlie waste for forty years" (Moffatt Version). From 567 BC till 527 BC the land of Egypt was totally desolate, with no inhabitants, no people, no animals. Then in 527, Cambyses of Persia supposedly assumed control over Egypt [control over what? The sand?]. Persian rule continued until 405.

If you compare this document with modern histories of Egypt, you will find vast differences. Someone is sure to ask me, "How can you disagree with the experts, are you an expert in Egyptian history?" No, I am not an expert in Egyptian history, but I do have a knack for determining who the real experts are. All the "experts" disagree or else just play follow the leader. In other words, there are NO experts when it comes to dating the dynasties!

The Unis/Onnos/Unas mentioned above is the Jannes mentioned in *II Timothy 3:8*.

Dynasty V was at Elephantine, in the South, in Upper Egypt on the borders of Nubia (Upper Egypt was South, Lower Egypt was North). Dynasty VI was at Memphis. It lasted 1616-1445 BC. In this dynasty King Merenre II also dies in 1486, after only one year's reign, at the time of the Exodus. He was succeeded by Nitocris, his wife, then by Nerferka "the younger", his son (not his oldest son, who died at Passover).

The Lake Moeris was developed during the time of Joseph, and is fed by a long canal/river (see modern maps) that to this day is called the "Bahr Yusuf"—the River of Joseph! There was also a canal from the Nile to the Red Sea. The guide to *Egyptian Collections in the British Museum*, p. 286, says of Pharaoh Necho: "He recut and enlarged the old canal which in the time of Seti I joined the Nile and the Red Sea." There also was a major branch of the Nile called the Pelusiac Nile that ended at the seacoast town of Pelusium. This branch has since completely disappeared, and Pelusium is now about 3 miles from seashore, due to silting. The capital city of Zoan (also called Doan, Dan, Tanais) was located beside a branch of the Nile.

Ships from the Red Sea traveled through this canal to the Nile and thence up or down the Nile or into the Mediterranean.

The *Bible* tells of a great famine and the people selling their land to Pharaoh for food, so that the Pharaoh ended up owning all the land (*Gen.* 47:20-25). The various theories that place Joseph during the times of much later dynasties do not fit with the facts at all. The facts show that during this great famine, the people sold themselves to Pharaoh who put them to work doing his projects, such as building pyramids ("And as for the people, he removed them to the cities from one end of the borders of Egypt even to the other end thereof and they (the Egyptians) said, 'Thou hast saved our lives, let us find grace in the sight of thy Lord, and we will be servants to Pharaoh'.").

Marble Cormick, *Imhotep, Builder In Stone*, published by Franklin Watts in 1965, says (page 29), talking of the time of Imhotep, "taxes were paid by every noble and peasant. Income tax in Egypt was one fifth of the harvest and one fifth of the increase of cattle plus several months of labor each year on great public works by all able bodied men." Now notice what the *Bible* says: "And Joseph made it a law over the land of Egypt unto this day that Pharaoh should have the fifth part except the land of the priests only, which became not Pharaoh's" (*Gen. 46:26*). How could you have two different viziers who were the first to institute a one-fifth tax unless they were both the same person? A little bit of study will show that Imhotep was in fact Joseph. He designed and built the Zoser complex, then started to build a great complex for Zoser's son Huni, but something happened and building stopped.

Peter Thompkins says "The Egyptians ascribed the invention of the art of building with stone to Imhotep, vizier and architect of King Zoser, who reigned about 50 years before the building of the Great Pyramid. The Egyptians described Imhotep as a sort of Leonardo da Vinci of Egypt, mathematician, scientist, engineer and architect." Imhotep was still alive at the time of Sneferu as proven by the Potomac inscription on a coffin BT 1256 and on a stele of Sneferu (British Museum #380). This would make Imhotep contemporary with Cheops/Khufu and the Great Pyramid. Traditional history puts Joseph and the Israelites long past the time of pyramid building, in contradiction to the facts. Josephus said, "They [the Egyptians] set them [the Israelites] also to build pyramids and by all these wore them out and forced them to learn all sorts of mechanical arts and to accustom themselves to hard labor." He also said, *Antiquities of the Jews*, Chap. 9, v. 5: "And having in length of times forgotten the benefits they [the Egyptians] had received from Joseph, particularly the crown being now come to another family, they became very abusive to the Israelites." Historians say Josephus did not know what he was talking about.

Joseph lived 110 years, spanning the 19 year reign of Zoser, Huni's reign of 24 years, Sneferu's reign of 24 years, and Khufu's reign of 23 years. Further proof that one person could live during these various dynasties is given: "Her [Queen Mertaitis] inscription helps in determining the succession as she was a favorite of Sneferu and of Khufu of Dynasty IV and attached to Khafra in her old age." Mertaitis lived during two Dynasties and during the reigns of at least four kings. Traditional historians try to stretch out these dynasties to hide the truth.

Imhotep was an important man in Egyptian history. And why not—Joseph/Imhotep said: "God hath made me lord of all Egypt" (*Gen 45:9*).

Mendelssohn says: "While Imhotep himself was evidently not a king's son, he may have been connected with the Royal House by marriage." *Gen. 41:45*: "And Pharaoh called Joseph's name Zaphnathpaaneah; and he gave him to wife Asenath the daughter of Potipherah priest of On. And Joseph went out [ruled] over all the land of Egypt." On, Onnas, Eanus, Oinas, Janus, etc., trace back to Noah and the God

of Noah (Oinos is Greek for wine, tracing back to the discovery of wine by Noah, who got drunk from it). On is in fact No, or Noah, depending on whether it is read left to right or Hebrew style, right to left.

Zaphnathpaaneah is Zuph or Suph, one of the names of Joseph, meaning Wisdom (Soph, Sophia, Sophisticated, Yusuph, Ieu-souph (wisdom of God), etc., and nath is neith or net, another name for Noah's wife Naamah (also Ase-Nath) and from the Hebrew *nthe* which means sofa, divan, seat of wisdom, etc.. Higgins (p. 177, 178) says Phoenix comes from panneah and "His name Psonthom Phaneah, is our Proteus, or Phantom, and the Santon of the Orientals. The Phaneah is the *fh*nn = 608." Some ancient translators translated this in Latin as "It vocavit Paroh nomen Joseph *Saphenath Pahaneah*." St. Jerome translated this as "Salvatorem Mundi," which means Savior of the World, Mundi meaning world or world-cycle or current world order. Suidas translates it as Faunus. It has been rendered *Revealer* of the Secrets of the Stars. Higgins says this is the Roman Faunus and the Phoinix. He also said: "But Joseph was also called by another name *slit*. Gen. xlii. 6. In the *slit* and *slt* we have a trifling *mispelling* [sic.?] (if any attention is to be paid to radical letters) of the feminine termination of the 360, for the origin of Salus, Salutis, for the name of the Sun, the Phoenix, and the *Redemptor* or *Salvator Mundi*. And in old Irish our female Sall = 360, means a year. Several authors have thought that the Proteus of the Greeks, which word has the same meaning as *slit*, was Joseph" (I left out the Hebrew letters from the quote).

Joseph had two sons, one named Manasseh, which is derived from Asenath, the mother. The other was Ephraim, which is a variation of the name pharaoh and shows up in other Egyptian names such as Mephres, Uenephres, Uenephres, Greek Ouephres, Hebrew Hophra (meaning priest of the sun). The "ph" is the Coptic "the" and "re" is "sun" (See Higgins, p. 716). Egyptologists tell of a vizier who served under Khufu by the name of Heman. The *Bible* Research Institute suggests that Heman may have been Manasseh.

There were more than one Pharaoh or king at the time of Moses, at least three, ruling in Upper Egypt, Lower Egypt, and Goshen. About 40 years after the reign of Mermeshoi, Egypt collapsed.

Here is something for you to ponder. Amenhotepe (Amenophis) IV ruled for about 4 years then he suddenly changed his name to Akhnaton (Akenaten, Ikhnaton, Akhenaton, Akhenaten, etc.). The *Encyclopedia Britannica* says he ruled 1379 to 1362 BC but that is only a consensus guess. Is it possible that he actually ruled circa 1700 BC, the time of Joseph? And might Joseph, or perhaps even Abraham or Moses, have had anything to do with his conversion? The date of his reign is by no means firmly established. Lester J. Mitcham has evidence in the form of Tell-el-Amarna correspondence that shows: "In conclusion I advise that in this paper I have accepted two identifications—that of Rib-Addi as Jehoram of Israel and that of Aziru as Hazael of Damascus, together with an overall span of circa 850-29 [BC] for the Amarna period—based on dates of circa 874-37 and 848-32 for Amunhotep III and Akhnaton." See *Catastrophism And Ancient History*, Vol. II, Part I, August 1979, p. 64. I don't think this is being published any more. It was published by Catastrophism & Ancient History, 3431 Club Drive, Los Angeles, CA 90064. Bronson Feldman puts the dates of Akhenaton's reign at 839-823 BC (*Proceeding of the First Seminar of Catastrophism and Ancient History*, Dec. 4, 1982, p. 58).

Christian O'Brien in *The Genius of the Few* said one possibility was "equating Joseph with Amenhotep, son of Hapu, who was a scribe, philosopher and official at the court of Pharaoh Amenhotep III (reigned circa 1417 to 1379 BC), where he might have influenced the young heir-apparent who was to become the so-called heretic Pharaoh Akhenaten."

Charles McDowell, in an article called "The Egyptian Prince Moses", in *Proceedings of the Third Seminar of Catastrophism and Ancient History*, 1986, says that the Exodus occurred 1437 (my date is 1436) and says that the Pharaoh for whom no funerary site has been found because he drowned in the Reed Sea was the Twelfth Dynasty (Hyksos) Pharaoh Amemenhet IV (1445-1437) who was contemporary with Akhenaton (1409-1392) in the Eighteenth Dynasty. Here are the dates of the Eighteenth Dynasty as determined by McDowell:

Ahmose I 1609-1584 Amenhotep I 1584-1562 Thutmose I 1562-1544 Thutmose II 1544-1524 Hatshepsut 1522-1500 Thutmose III 1524-1470 Amenhotep II 1470-1445 Thutmose IV 1445-1437 Amenhotep III 1437-1399 Akhenaton 1409-1392 Smenkh 1392-1389 Tutankhamen 1389-1380 Ay 1352-1348 Horemheb 1348-1313

WHO WAS CHEOPS?

In Dynasty IV we find the name of Cheops (Khufwey or Khufu). He reigned 23 years from 1726-1703 BC. Since Joseph began his reign in 1734, he and Cheops were contemporaries. Note above that the seven years of famine began in 1726, the same year Cheops became king. We pronounce Cheops with two syllables (Chee-ops) but the original pronunciation was one syllable (Chop or Chob, with long "o").

cheops

FACE OF CHEOPS

Living at this time was the Biblical character Job. Now J did not exist in the English alphabet until after King James had the *King James Bible* written. It is claimed that originally the name Job was Chob—yes, Cheops and Job were the same person. The name is spelled "Eyob" in the Moffatt *Bible*. The Great Pyramid of Cheops was built by the Biblical Job. It was built during (and after) the seven years famine, by labor from people who came to Egypt to purchase or work for food to survive the famine. Some want to make the pyramids much older than this. Perhaps so, I merely use the evidence I have. I have no evidence of older pyramids. The Sphinx, however, does seem to be considerably older.

Herodotus said the Pyramid took about 20 years to finish.

Job had something of a big head for his accomplishment as supervisor of the construction of the Pyramid, but God brought him down to reality when He asked Job, "Where were you, when I founded the earth...who fixed its keystone on high?" (*Job 38:4-6* Ferrar Fenton Version). The pyramid is the only type of building in which the cornerstone (keystone) is placed last (on high).

Job's afflictions began in 1703 BC, at which time Joseph took charge of his dynasty (per Manetho and Turin Canon).

Now just because Job and Cheops were originally the same name is not solid proof that Job built the Great Pyramid, so let's look further.

The Egyptian historian Manetho, who lived in the third century before Christ, said that Khufu (Khufu is Egyptian for the Greek name Cheops) "was of a DIFFERENT RACE" from the Egyptians (Wathen's *Arts and Antiquities of Egypt*, p. 54). Cheops was not a native Egyptian.

Herodotus, the Greek historian of the 5th century BC, said the builders of the Great Pyramid were SHEP-HERDS (*Euterpe* 128).

Egyptians were not shepherds. *Gen.* 46:31-34: "And Joseph said unto his brethren...I will go up, and shew Pharaoh, and say unto him, My brethren, and my father's house...are come unto me; and the men are shepherds.... And it shall come to pass, when Pharaoh shall call you, and shall say, What is your occupation? That ye shall say, Thy servants' trade hath been about cattle.... For every shepherd is an abomination unto the Egyptians."

Josephus said the Egyptians made the Israelites "to build pyramids" (*Antiquities of the Jews*, Bk. II, Ch. ix, v. 1). These were later and inferior copies of the Great Pyramid, which they also helped build. Cheops did not worship Egyptian gods, he worshipped the One God. Herodotus (*History*, Bk. II, v. 124) said: "Cheops closed the temples and prohibited the Egyptians from offering sacrifices." He said Cheops worshipped the God "Amen," which is one of the names of Christ (*Rev. 3:14*).

Cheops was contemporary with King Zoser, who built the "step pyramid" shortly before Cheops built the Great Pyramid (E. A. Wallis Budge, *A History of Egypt*, Vol. II, p. 9). Zoser ruled Lower Egypt at the same time Joseph was Prime Minister under Amenemhet III. Zoser recorded the seven years drought: "My heart is in great anxiety, for in my time the Nile has not overflowed for a period of seven years" (*Cambridge Ancient History*, p. 309-310, Vol. I).

Cheops was a foreign king whose rule extended into Egypt.

A man who helped Cheops build the pyramid was called "Souf". He was "chief of the works of Khufu" (Cheops), per Rawlinson's *Egypt*, Ch. 14. He is also called "Saf-hotep", meaning "Saf the servant". He was one of twelve brothers who built the Labyrinth for Amenemhet III (Wathen's *Antiquities*, p. 142).

Joseph served under Amen-em-het III, Pharaoh of Upper Egypt, who gave Joseph "to wife Asenath the daughter of Potiphera priest of On" (*Gen. 41:45*). Amen was part of the Pharaoh's name and On is another name for Christ. In *Rev. 1:8*, Christ says he is the "One who is," the "existing one". In the original

Greek, the word used was "On", the "existing one" and also means NO or NOAH.

Pharaoh called Joseph "Zaph-nath-paaneah" (*Gen. 41:45*) which is the same as "Souf-nath-paaneah". The Egyptians still call Joseph "Yousuf". One Egyptian story tells of Cheops calling an aged Sage to his palace, who died at age 110. Joseph died at age 110. It is obvious that the Souf who helped Cheops could have been and probably was Joseph.

Manetho said that Cheops "was arrogant toward the gods, but repented and wrote the Sacred Book...a work of great importance" (Wathen's *Antiquities*, p. 268; and Budge's *Egypt*, Vol. II, p. 31). Since Cheops closed the Egyptians' temples, this Sacred Book would not have been sacred to the Egyptians. Cheops was a foreigner, so it was a foreign book.

Cheops was also known as "Saaru" or "Shaaru" (Petrie's *History of Egypt*, Vol. I, p. 37).

Saaru was the name for people who lived at Mt. Seir (Rawlinson's *History of Egypt*, Ch. 22). Petra (later called Sela) is located in the Mt. Seir area, which is famous in history as the "Land of Uz" (Vol. III of *Clarke's Commentary*, preface to Book of Job). Uz was a descendant of Seir the Horite (Gen. 36:28). The Arabs called Job the "Wizard of Oz".

It becomes obvious that, if this material is correct, Job, the Wizard of Oz, was from Mt. Seir and wrote the *Book of Job*. In *Job 3:11-15*, he says "Why died I not from the womb? Why did I not expire when I came out of the womb... Then had I been at rest with KINGS and counsellors of the Earth, WHICH BUILD DESOLATE PLACES for themselves." Note Job was qualified to be buried in specially built places with kings, because he was a king. He was also a counsellor: "Unto me men gave ear, and waited, and kept silence at my COUNSEL. After my words they spake not again.... I...sat as chief, and dwelt as a KING in the army, as one that comforteth the mourners" (*Job 29:21-25*).

When Bildad was talking to Job, he said: "Thou that tearest thyself in thine anger, shall the earth be forsaken of thee? Or shall the rock be removed out of its place?" (*Job 18:4*, Jewish trans.). Even if Job were to die, the earth would not be forsaken of Job and his rock monument (pyramid) would still be there in memory of him.

Further proof of when Job lived is given in the *Bible*. Job's friend, Eliphaz the Temanite (*Job 2:11*) was father of the Temanites (*Gen. 36:11*) and son of Esau, Jacob's brother (v. 10). Eliphaz and Joseph were first cousins, proving that Joseph and Job were contemporary. The *Midrash* says Job was grandson of Esau. Thus Joseph and Job were first cousins.

Louis Ginzberg gathered many of the old records of the Jews into a seven-volume series of books called *The Legends of the Jews*. He said that Job was a king of Edom, a land also called "Uz" which meant "counsel". The four friends of Job were related to one another, and each one was related to Job. Eliphaz, king of Teman, was son of Esau. Bildad, Zophar, and Elihu were cousins, their fathers, Shuah, Naamat, and Barachel, were sons of Buz, who was brother of Job and a nephew of Abraham. Job's first wife was Zitidos. She died "of exhaustion" near the end of Job's trial. He later married Dinah, the daughter of Jacob and sister of Joseph, and bore him seven sons and three daughters. The sons are not named but the daughters were Jemimah ("Day"), Keziah ("Perfume"), and Amaltheas ("Horn") (her name is "Kerenhappuch" in the KJV).

Pharaoh gave the Israelites the Land of Goshen (*Gen. 47:11*) which extended from Palestine to the Nile River (*Gen. 15:18*) and included especially the Nile Delta. The Great Pyramid was a boundary marker. The Nile Delta area, beginning at the Pyramid and extending northward to the sea, belonged to Israel. Other records, as we shall see later, show that even the island of Crete was included as Israel's territory. This was the kingdom over which Cheops ruled as king of Dynasty IV, and included the Mt. Seir area around Petra in Palestine.

Isaiah 19:19 speaks of a pillar "in the midst of Egypt" that is also "at the border thereof". This is referring to the Great Pyramid, which is in the midst of Egypt and is also at the border of the Land of Goshen.

A badly worn statue of Cheops exists, found at Abydos in Egypt. We saw earlier that James Henry Breasted, in *A History of the Ancient Egyptians*, p. 40, says Menes was "buried in Upper Egypt, either at Abydos near his native Thinis [south of Thebes]" or nearby.

Many have wondered how the Egyptians could have moved the huge stones used to build the pyramid. One record I found stated that canals were dug to float the heavy stones to the pyramid, so that may be one part of the answer. Another method of moving huge stones was to carve them from the quarry in the round, then roll them to the site, where they were then squared. Very possibly, they used powers that we are not aware of now. However, the best evidence is that the stones were poured—see elsewhere in this document.

The pyramid was likely used as the resting place for the mummy of Joseph until it was removed during the Exodus (*Ex. 13:19*).

I will point out that the *Book Of Jasher* tells a story very similar to the Job story, except in *Jasher*, the hero is *Abraham* and NOT Job. I suspect a possibility that Job was an Egyptian that was "adopted" into Israelite history and the story modified. More later.

THE EGYPTIAN GENERAL MOSES

The king mentioned in *Exodus 2:23* ("And it came to pass in the course of those many days that the king of Egypt died") was Neferkare (Phiops, Pepi II) who reigned for 94 years from 1581 to 1487, then died at age 100. Then God told Moses, "Go, return into Egypt; for all the men are dead that sought thy life" (*Exodus 4:19*). Merenre II succeeded Neferkare and was the Pharaoh that Moses and Aaron dealt with and who died in the Red Sea. At this point Egyptian history collapsed and foreigners invaded.

The *Book Of Jasher* says: "And it came to pass in those days in the hundred and second year of Israel's going down into Egypt that Pharaoh king of Egypt died and Melo (called Malol by Ginzberg, p. 277) his son reigned in his stead and all the mighty men of Egypt and all that generation which knew Joseph and his brethren died in those days. Melo was twenty years old when he began to reign and he reigned 94 years and all Egypt called his name Pharaoh after the name of his father. And all the children of Israel called Melo the king of Egypt, 'Mere (meaning to embitter) king of Egypt', because in his days the Egyptians had embittered their lives with all manner of work" (*Jasher 63:4, 9 and 65:37*). This Melo must have been Pepy II, who reigned the same length of time and is the only king recorded who reigned that long. No other king came even close.

The grave site of Pepy II is well known, but there is absolutely no record of the burial of Merenra/Merenre II. This was the Pharaoh that perished in the Red Sea. However, in the truth-is-stranger-than-fiction category, the *Book of Jasher* says that this king alone escaped and fled to Nineveh where he ruled for many years as king of that city. This may have something to do later with the Israelite prophet Jonah going to the "gentile" city of Nineveh and warning them to repent. This, however, is mere conjecture. See *Jasher* 81:41.

Above I said that Merenre II was the Pharaoh of the Exodus, yet if you were to check closely you would see that *II Timothy 3:8* says that Onnos/Jannes was the Pharaoh that "withstood Moses". There seems to be a problem here, until we learn more.

Acts 7:22 says that Moses was learned in all the wisdom of the Egyptians and was "mighty in words and deeds". This was before he fled Egypt, so is not referring to the Exodus. What were the mighty deeds of Moses before the Exodus? The *Bible* does not say, but one of the deeds is recorded by Josephus, Antiquities of the Jews, Chap. X.

The Ethiopians had attacked Egypt, and the Pharaoh asked his oracles and prophets what he should do. They answered that he should make Moses a general and use his assistance. This made the Ethiopians glad because they thought he could be easily overcome, and the Egyptians were glad because they thought it would be a good way to have Moses killed. So they made Moses the General in command of the army—a position only a king could have, so Moses became a king of Egypt.

The Ethiopians expected Moses to attack from along the river, but instead Moses went inland and came around to surprise them. They did not expect an attack from inland because no one dared enter there because of the abundance of poisonous snakes. According to Josephus, Moses took along snake killing birds (Ibis) that kept the area cleared of snakes. He surprised the Ethiopians and defeated them, then advanced on their capital city of Saba. Saba was defended by Tharbis, daughter of the King of the Ethiopians, who fought Moses to a standstill. She fell in love with Moses and became his wife (or perhaps it was merely a political marriage), and Moses took the city without further bloodshed and took her back to Egypt.

The Egyptian king plotted to kill Moses. This was the Jannes/Onnos mentioned in *Timothy*, and the Jambres/Iambres mentioned in *Timothy* was apparently the Egyptian high priest. Later Moses fled Egypt, again going unexpectedly into the desert, where he spent the next 40 years. The *Bible* takes up the story here.

The Ethiopian wife of Moses complained about by Miriam and Aaron in *Numbers 12* was Tharbis, daughter of the King of Ethiopia. It is generally believed that Tharbis was Black, but I came across information that she was descended from Abraham through Ishmael and was thus Arabic. The Black dynasty in Ethiopia began with Ahmose (Tethmosis) in 1076 BC. At the time of Moses, Ethiopia was ruled by Arabs—for information see the histories of Arabia. Whether she was Black or not, the fact is that Moses' sons did not inherit the priesthood, because Moses married outside his race/nation. The priesthood instead was transferred to Aaron, the brother of Moses.

One of the reasons the Pharaoh wanted Moses killed was because he (Pharaoh) had a daughter, but no

sons or grandchildren, making Moses heir to the throne of Egypt (see Josephus, Bk. II, Chap. IX). Josephus says, "Thermitus, the king's daughter, perceived him to be so remarkable a child that she adopted him for her own, having no child of her own, yet because, if Moses had been slain, there would be no one, either a kin or adopted, that had any oracle on his side for pretending to the crown of Egypt." Moses lived during the reign of a single king from his birth until he fled at age 40, which helps to locate which king he lived under. This king lived until one year before Moses returned (*Ex.* 7:7), and the new king had been reigning only 1 year. This new king then died in the Red Sea, leaving no firstborn to follow him. Egypt was virtually destroyed soon after this. This information helps to pinpoint exactly which king ruled during the time of Moses.

Since Moses was an Egyptian King, he must be mentioned in the Egyptian King lists and indeed he is. The Egyptian word for "general" is "mermeshoi". In Dynasty XIII, king number 17, according to the Turin Canon, is Mermeshoi, with the throne name of Semenkhkare, a name which appears to have something to do with Sem (Shem). This is the only time in any of the king lists that a king is called Mermeshoi. This was Moses. Two large, well preserved statues of Mermeshoi have been found at Tanis (Danis, Zoan, capital of Goshen) in the Nile Delta. I have seen pictures of these statues, so I can say I know what Moses actually looked like!

The king just before Moses in the lists was Userkare Khendjer. His pyramid has been found at South Saqqara. He had no male descendants, and was apparently the Pharaoh whose daughter (or, more likely, granddaughter) adopted Moses. Her name was Bithiah (Hebrew for "worshipper of Yah") and she was married to Mered, a prince of Judah. Bithiah was of the tribe of Levi (see *I Chron. 4:18*). Her Egyptian name apparently was Thermitis. According to the king lists, Userkare appears to be grandfather (perhaps by marriage only) of Pepy II (also known as Phiops and Neferkare), and the family members were ruling in different cities.

THE EXODUS

There is much contradiction on the exact route of the Exodus, some say the Exodus route went through a "Reed-sea" where the Israelites were merely ankle deep in swamp water. Others choose routes that do not cross any significant water at all.

The Israelites dwelt in the Land of Goshen. Where was Goshen? I have already said it was the Nile Delta area, but let's see the proof for this.

Gen. 46:28: "And he [Jacob] sent Judah before him unto Joseph, to direct his face unto Goshen." Jacob was coming to Goshen from Palestine and sent Judah on ahead to tell Joseph. "And they came into the land of Goshen. And Joseph made ready his chariot, and went up [northward] to meet Israel [Jacob] his father, to Goshen, and presented himself unto him."

Joseph did not live in the Land of Goshen. He lived where Pharaoh was (in Pharaoh's Palace), at the capital of (Lower) Egypt, at Memphis. Goshen, then, was north of Memphis.

Gen. 47:5: "And Pharaoh spake unto Joseph, saying, Thy father and thy brethren are come unto thee: The land of Egypt is before thee; in the BEST of the land make thy father and brethren to dwell; in the land

of GOSHEN let them dwell: and if thou knowest any men of activity among them, then make them rulers over my cattle." So we see that Goshen was the best land in Egypt, where Pharaoh kept his cattle. This was the Nile Delta area, directly north of Memphis, beginning at what is now known as Old Cairo and where the Great Pyramid now stands.

V. 10: "And Jacob blessed Pharaoh, and went out from before Pharaoh. And Joseph placed his father and his brethren, and gave them a possession in the land of Egypt, in the BEST OF THE LAND, IN THE LAND OF RAMESES, as Pharaoh had commanded." Note that the best of the land was the land owned by the Pharaoh (Rameses) himself, which he could give away if he wished (as opposed to the land owned (actually leased) by the Egyptian farmers). There can be only one best, so the land of Goshen was also called the land of Rameses.

Rameses is a title that applied to many Pharaohs, some mistakenly believe that Rameses the Great (who began his reign about 790 BC) was the Pharaoh spoken of here. He was not. He was not even great, historians have mistakenly given that title to what was really a very minor king. He got the title because of the unusually large number of monuments and buildings that had his name on them, but later they found out that he had merely erased the original name and inscribed his over it.

At the time of the Exodus, the children of Israel still lived in Goshen (*Ex.* 26:9).

On Passover, the night of Abib 14, all the eldest males of the Egyptians were killed. That same night, Pharaoh left his palace and went to Moses and Aaron and told them to leave Egypt. The Pharaoh was not very far away from the Israelites. His palace was in Memphis, the capital of Lower Egypt, not in Thebes of Upper Egypt as some modern commentators claim.

The Israelites spent the night of the 15th at Rameses, then from Rameses they went to Succoth (*Ex. 12:37-38*). The city of Rameses was what is now called Old Cairo, and which was called Letopolis and Babylon by Josephus (*Antiq.*, Bk II, Chap. XV). Letopolis was the Greek name for Rameses, "opolis" meant city and "Leto" came from Letona—one of the names of the Queen of Heaven (Easter/Ishtar). The word "Latin" comes from this same root word.

When Cambyses the Persian invaded Egypt, he named Letopolis "Babylon" because of all the Babylonian gods there. *Smith's Classical Dictionary Of Greek And Roman Biography* says this Egyptian Babylon was later known as Fostat and Old Cairo. It was located on the right bank of the Nile exactly opposite the pyramids of Giza, at the beginning of a canal which connected the Nile with the Red Sea. Old Cairo is a suburb of modern Cairo. It is the old section of town.

Imperial Bible Dictionary, Vol 5, subject "Rameses" says: "Immediately south of this region of Old Cairo there is an area where there were ancient quarries in a rocky mountain, from which much of the material for the pyramids was procured, and in which the poor Jews [sic] are said by Manetho [ancient Egyptian historian] to have worked."

Opposite the pyramids at Memphis is a place that is called to this day "Mera-vad-Musa" or "Habitation of Moses".

For the rest of the story of the route of the Exodus, I have written another article on the route. [To be continued.]

CHAPTER 3

THE NEW DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 4/4/98

ARKANSAS SATANISTS?

School-Killings Suspect 'Dabbled In Devil Worship'

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, <wrldline@texas.net>, 3/30/98: [quoting]

Arkansas police are investigating another suspect in the Jonesboro killings after children at the school claimed that the elder of two boys charged in the murders was involved in a satanic cult.

Counsellors at Westside Middle School, where four girls and a teacher were hit by a hail of gunfire on Tuesday, said other pupils had spoken openly only during the final lesson of the first day back at school.

They said that Mitchell Johnson, 13, who with Andrew Golden, 11, has been charged over the murders, had for months been dabbling in the occult, drawing satanic symbols on his exercise books.

"The kids told us there was someone else Johnson was working with. They identified an unknown individual as the leader of a coven and police are looking into that now," one counsellor said. "They said that Johnson had told them 'if I don't get you all there is someone else who will finish the job for me'."

At least two-thirds of the school's students talked of a satanic cult, <u>a connection that will send a chill</u> through the entire country [emphasis mine]. In Pearl, Mississippi, last year, Luke Woodham, 16, murdered his mother, killed two girls and wounded seven others, allegedly inspired by devil worship and a cult called Kroth.

Two older boys, Grant Boyette, 18, and Justin Sledge, 16, were later charged as accessories before the fact after prosecutors alleged that they had persuaded Woodham to commit the crimes to "meet the goals of their shared belief system".

In Jonesboro, the young killers had collected food, sleeping bags and other survival gear and had a map of their escape route with extra ammunition and guns in a van near the scene.

Lieutenant-Colonel David Grossman, 41, a former professor at Arkansas State University who still lives in Jonesboro, said the actions taken by the boys on [the fatal] Tuesday bore all the hallmarks of a copycat killing.

Johnson and Golden, he said, had probably heard about the Pearl incident and also another event in southern Arkansas in December in which a 14-year-old sniper fired from woods at a school, wounding two pupils.

Colonel Grossman believes that Golden was probably following the orders of his older classmate and blamed the *increased cultural conditioning* of children.

Just as soldiers were trained to respond automatically to targets, so children reacted to television, Hollywood films and visual stimulants such as violent video games, he said.

"It's like a reverse *Clockwork Orange* where we have millions of children watching violent movies and associating them with their favorite chocolate or a girlfriend's perfume.

"In video arcades they learn to shoot and kill, shoot and kill, they watch as the bodies twist and the brains fly and we have the audacity to ask how they have learnt to kill and like it when we taught them how to do it in the first place."

He said that towns subjected to saturation television coverage showed a 50 per cent increase in violent crime. From Tom Rhodes In Jonesboro, Arkansas [End quoting]

I want it made known that I don't have the time to verify the stories I use so discernment is a must—it's wise to ask for the "Light" to surround you when reading anything—but I do feel that the stories have truth in them or I don't use them.

This story is a good example: how can I prove it? But it certainly follows the modus operandi of the dark forces. So even if it isn't true it is a very logical story considering what is true of the actions around us in this day and time. (By the way, does brainwashing include *increased cultural conditioning*, or vice versa?)

I venture to say this is likely tied in with the **Bohemian Grove big-wig Bush-Kissinger gang** and their covens. It is for certain tied in with gun-control since Senator Dianne Feinstein is already hyping more control of them because of this episode.

<u>CIVILIAN INTERNMENT</u> <u>CAMPS UP FOR REVIEW</u>

Excerpted from the INTERNET, courtesy of Teri York, <teriyork@primenet.com>, 3/30/98: [quoting]

In a revealing admission, the Director of Resource Management for the U.S. Army confirmed the validity of a memorandum relating to the establishment of a civilian inmate labor program under development by the Department of the Army. The document states, "Enclosed for your review and comment is the draft Army regulation on civilian inmate labor utilization" and the procedure to "establish civilian prison camps on installations". *Cherith Chronicle*, June 1997.

Civilian internment camps or prison camps, more commonly known as concentration camps, have been the subject of much rumor and speculation during the past few years in America. Several publications have devoted space to the topic and many talk-radio programs have dealt with the issue.

However, Congressman Henry Gonzales (D, Texas) clarified the question of the existence of civilian detention camps. In an interview the congressman stated, "the truth is yes—you do have these stand-by provisions,

and the plans are here...whereby you could, in the name of stopping terrorism...evoke the military and arrest Americans and put them in detention camps." [End quoting]

Finally an honest comment on their devious plan—however, they do not own up to the fact they have a **far** more dastardly plan for their use.

MYSTERY SIGNAL DISRUPTS CHINESE SATELLITE

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 3/28/98: [quoting]

A mysterious signal hitting a Chinese telecommunications satellite is disrupting share trading, earthquake monitoring systems, and pager services in China, a newspaper reported today.

Puzzled technicians had ruled out a problem with the satellite and tests showed that the interference, which began on 14 March, was Earth-based, said the *Beijing Youth Daily*, which reported that investigators had not ruled out an attack by domestic or foreign saboteurs.

A transmitter aboard the *Apstar-1* orbiter had "suddenly received a signal of neutralizing interference from an unknown outside source," the paper said.

The disruption reportedly affected more than 400 securities and futures companies and 100 paging services, cutting off service to more than 10 million pager users.

Service had been restored to most users of the satellite by switching them to other channels.

Apstar-1 was launched in 1994 and targets television users across Asia.

It was not clear if the disruption also affected other users of the satellite in the region. [End quoting]

This is a good reminder of how easy it is to pull down the structures of all of this world's governments and financial systems. The satellites are out there where anybody with the equipment—there are quite a few people with the know-how and/or equipment to do this—can destroy or stop the data from flowing and the world's entire electrical infrastructure shuts down. Then what do you do??

ALLEGED KIDNAPPERS LYNCHED IN MEXICO

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 3/27/98: [quoting]

Huejutla—Enraged after a judge ordered two kidnapping suspects freed on bail, a mob stormed the court, beat the judge and lynched the two men early Thursday.

Jose Santos Vazquez and Salvador Valdez were accused of trying to force four girls, ages 4 to 12, into their pickup truck. Residents said one of the men confessed that he was planning to sell the girls' organs to

a man in Texas.

Thirty residents of this central Mexico town have been arrested in the lynching.

The reported kidnapping attempt occurred Wednesday. Residents said they were alerted by one of the girls, captured the men and turned them over to police. The men were residents of Tihuatlan in the eastern state of Veracruz.

But later that day, a judge said he would free the men on \$600 bail.

About midnight, a crowd of about 300 people entered the judge's chambers and hit him until he agreed to hand over the suspects. Badly beaten with their arms tied in front of them, the pair were interrogated, led to the local park and hanged from the band shell.

"Before they died, one of them confessed that he worked for a man in Texas. The children were to be taken there to have their organs extracted," said Jose Alfredo Samillian Flores, 17, who witnessed the lynching.

Police were unable to stop the crowd.

On Thursday afternoon, hundreds of state police guarded the town hall, the jail and the courthouse, which angry residents had sacked and burned. Still furious, townspeople gathered in the town square, just yards from where the men's bodies had hung.

Asked whether they thought the morning's lynchings were just, dozens in the crowd raised their hands. None said they thought that an injustice had been done to the two men.

"They never had any compassion for us, why should we have compassion for them," said Angelica Lopez de la Cruz, whose husband, Martin Hernandez, was among the 30 arrested.

Townspeople said there had been rumors and reported kidnappings of children for more than a year. They cite the case of a child of a traveling circus worker who disappeared here more than a year ago. [End quoting]

There will no doubt be more and more of this type of "justice" taking place as people all over the world get sicker and sicker of the bought-and-paid-for criminal-gangster judges.

Do you think that some of the judges who want to keep their jobs might be scared into handing out some sane and honest decisions?

POWER OVER NICOTINE ITEMS

Excepted from *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 3/30/98: [quoting]

Washington—Negotiators on Sunday agreed on most of the provisions of Congress' leading tobacco bill that would charge the industry about \$138 billion more and impose harsher restrictions than the settlement companies and states reached in June.

Negotiators also approved broad authority for the Food and Drug Administration to regulate nicotine products, a victory for the health community and the White House. But the bill also would set strict guidelines for the agency if it ever tries to ban nicotine. [End quoting]

Now Billy Boy and the other politicians will probably start selling **nicotine content licenses**—the higher the nicotine content, the higher the license fee—to the highest bidders, like they do air pollution credits.

BRE-X MINERALS

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 3/30/98: [quoting]

Q. I hold 200 shares of Bre-X Minerals. While I know the company was delisted from the Toronto Stock Exchange for falsifying mineral assays, what's the latest word on it? Is it defunct or bankrupt? M.L., Charleston, W. Va.

A. Bre-X Minerals Ltd., the now-bankrupt Canadian company responsible for the fraudulent gold "discovery" in Busang, Indonesia, is in limbo. Its stock, which once boasted a total market value of \$4.5 billion, remains worthless.

As might be expected, lawsuits abound. Most recently, Deloitte & Touche Inc., the firm's bankruptcy trustee, sued former Bre-X geologist and Vice Chairman John Felderhof for \$2.1 billion and won a court order freezing his assets in the Cayman Islands.

The Ontario Securities Commission in Toronto says there's "absolutely no trading" in the once high-flying securities of Bre-X and no secondary market, either.

"After Bre-X was delisted on the Toronto Stock Exchange on May 7, 1997, there briefly was over-the-counter trading on the Canadian Dealing Network, but it was halted there as well," said Paul DeSouza, manager of market operations for the OSC. "There's no trading in the stock now because such trading would be illegal."

Of course, so long as the company exists as a legal entity, it could conceivably come to life again one day if it somehow remedies its deficiencies and once again is in good standing, DeSouza added. Some shell companies do come back and wind up having some value, he said.

"While some Bre-X certificates were supposedly selling in Canada for \$10 to \$30 apiece (as collectibles) after the story hit, that phenomenon has worn off and they're now completely worthless," concluded Robert Fisher, president of the Robert D. Fisher & Co. stock-search firm in Cliffside Park, N.J. "There's

a load of those certificates around and we wouldn't be interested in buying any of them." [End quoting]

I wonder if there actually is gold in their mine and this is a scam to steal it from their stockholders or just maybe it was an actual salted mine. Any way you look at it, ol' Georgie Boy (Bush) I bet has a bank full of money from this one.

CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL WARFARE PROGRAM

Public Law 95-79 Title 50, Chapter 32, Section 1520

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Robert Nakaya, 3/26/98: [quoting]

"The use of human subjects will be allowed for the testing of chemical and biological agents by the U.S. Department of Defense, accounting to Congressional committees with respect to the experiments and studies. "The Secretary of Defense [may] conduct tests and experiments involving the use of chemical and biological [warfare] agents on civilian populations [within the United States]."

Folks, you have a responsibility to verify for yourself that they have issued a law authorizing the poisoning of you and your family. Let us not sit and wait for them to infect us with disease by aircraft spraying microbes down upon us or by infectious biological agents planted in our water supply. In later episodes, I will post transcripts of radio interviews with 1950s childhood victims of the U.S. Army's secret bacteriological warfare attack upon the Clinton School in Minneapolis.

Those poor people have suffered severely all of their lives with diseases wrought by that bacterial attack upon their elementary school.

Their lives have been severely damaged and curtailed. Such a fate is probably in store for some of our children throughout this land.

Whose school will they secretly spray next? We just don't know in what part of the country the Government terrorists will strike next.

We will know when we see whole populaces fall ill. John DiNardo [End quoting]

The elite haven't stopped experimenting on the public and I wouldn't expect them to do so until **we force them** to stop with our pressures on congress and the president.

BILLY GRAHAM DOES POLITICAL FAVOR FOR PRESIDENT CLINTON

From *FLASHPOINT* newsletter 9/97, courtesy of the Wilders, [quoting:]

In the U.S.A., the world's most beloved evangelist, Billy Graham, has assured passage of a shaky congressional bill conferring "Most Favored Nation" trade status for Communist Red China by writing a letter

strongly supporting the bill. Hesitant legislators on the fence quickly caved in to White House demands and voted for the bill after receiving Billy Graham's politically charged letter. (*Reuters*, June 23, 1997)

This same Billy Graham is the man who once raved about butcher Mao Tse Tung's sayings, favorably comparing them to the *Ten Commandments*. Graham also once complimented a gulag-ridden Soviet Russia during the dark era for its "freedom of religion", and he called North Korea's vicious, bloody dictator, the late Kim Il Sung, a "great leader".

Now Billy Graham aids the Illuminati agenda as he seeks to gain financial advantage for a barbaric Red China. Red China's leadership slaughtered thousands in Tiananmen Square and, even now persecutes and locks many Christian Chinese up in filthy jail cells.

Billy Graham has long been a water carrier and an errand boy for the Rockefellers, the Presidents, and other political and financial bigwigs. His recent scam, helping Communist China at President Clinton's behest, is just the latest in a string of political favors that Graham has tendered his influential and powerful friends in high places.

The unseemly behavior—and the political and moral compromises—of the world's most famous "evangelist" is one signal that the great falling away from the Truth foretold in *Bible* prophecy is underway (*11 Thess.* 2). [End quoting]

CONTACT readers will not be surprised at this story since Hatonn has enlightened us about his history from the very start of his "ministry" when he held a tent meeting in Los Angeles where he met with Randolph Hearst—the newspaper magnate—and sold out to his promise to make him a star. Another case of "selling your soul to the devil".

AIR BEEFS UP ALUMINUM

From *POPULAR MECHANICS* magazine, Mar. 1998: [quoting]

aluminum foam

Foamed aluminum could make cars stronger, safer and faster.

The process, developed by Alcan Ltd., sends a jet of air through a mixture of molten aluminum and microscopic ceramic beads to create foams of various densities, as shown above.

When blocks of foamed aluminum are subjected to an impact, they crush at predictable rates, says developer Jeffrey T. Wood. Filling critical areas of an autobody with the foamed metal would allow for the use of thinner materials throughout.

Since weight reduction enhances performance, aluminum foam also has the potential to reduce engine size,

says Wood. [End quoting]

Ohh—if the elite would only let us have the transportation technology they're hiding from us.

JAPAN IS THE WORLD'S LEADING SOURCE OF CAPITAL AND TOP CREDITOR TO AMERICA

Global Overcapacity May Slow Consumer Spending

From *U.S. NEWS & WORLD REPORT*, 3/30/98: [quoting]

The Asian economies are all overinvested in automobiles, semiconductors, shipbuilding, steel, and petrochemicals. This overcapacity combined with the tendency of American multinational companies to ship high-wage jobs to low-wage areas adds up to a potential structural collapse of demand. Foreign workers are paid too little to consume any significant amount of what they produce, and American consumers cannot absorb all the cars and computers spewed forth around the world, because the U.S. economy is not growing fast enough. Replacing high-wage consumers with low-wage ones is ultimately debilitating for the entire system. [End quoting]

This is the downward economic sprial that has been set up like a row of dominoes, ready to fall as soon as the proper moment is reached. The elite know exactly what they are doing to bring the world under their control.

ISRAEL SNUBS BRITISH ENVOY OVER SETTLEMENT

Dinner Is Canceled On Short Notice

Excerpted from *THE SEATTLE POST-INTELLIGENCER*, 3/18/98, courtesy of the Wilders: [quoting]

An angry Israeli Prime Minister Benjamin Netanyahu yesterday canceled a dinner and cut short his meeting with visiting British Foreign Secretary Robin Cook.

Israeli officials said the decision was in response to a meeting Cook had with Palestinians at Har Homa, site of a controversial new Jewish settlement in Arab east Jerusalem.

Netanyahu lashed out at Cook, vowing to build "thousands of homes" on disputed land in east Jerusalem and canceling a dinner and even a traditional handshake with Cook.

The cancellation, at short notice, stunned European Union officials who said it was "a real slap in the face for E.U. efforts to revive Middle East peace talks".

Cook, who is representing the British presidency of the European Union, had hoped his Middle East tour would raise Europe's profile in the peace process without seeking to bypass the key role played by the United States. Israel has always been against the Europeans playing a more active role, claiming they are too pro-Palestinian to be even-handed.

British officials said they were bewildered at the Israeli reaction to an arrangement the Netanyahu government had already agreed to. [End quoting]

Netanyahu got snubbed by Billy Boy Clinton when he last visited the U.S. and now he snubs Britain's Foreign Secretary—the fight is on among the elite for "King of the World".

<u>UPDATE ON LARRY HARRIS—</u> THE MICROBIOLOGIST

[Dr. Al]

Larry Wayne Harris, microbiologist, has gained his freedom from returning to prison for violation of his probation having to do with his recent arrest for allegedly having a vial of a dangerous form of anthrax virus while in Las Vegas. However, his probation was extended for another five months.

According to the story I previously presented, his original probation was because he allegedly made an interstate phone call without leaving his identification on an answering machine—**big brother snooping.**

HOLOCAUST-DOUBTER FINED

From *THE GAZETTE*, MONTREAL, 2/28/98: [quoting]

A French court yesterday fined French writer Roger Garaudy the equivalent of \$28,800 Canadian for questioning the Holocaust.

Anti-racism groups had taken Garaudy to court for questioning the extermination of Jews in his book *The Founding Myths of Israeli Politics*, in which he argued that calling Nazi crimes a genocide was an exaggeration. Garaudy, a former Communist Party leader who converted to Christiantiy and later to Islam, has denied any wrongdoing. [End quoting]

It's as bad here in the U.S. and will get worse if we don't stop the elite Jews **NOW!!** Ask the Nevada court about the **true** reason **they confiscated thousands of** *Phoenix Journals*.

NEW FLU DEATHS SCARE HONG KONG

From *THE TORONTO STAR*, courtesy of a friend in Canada, 3/26/98: [quoting]

Hong Kong—A lethal strain of influenza suspected in killing two people in Hong Kong has sparked a health scare, only months after a "bird flu" killed six in the territory.

Two men in their 60s died in the city's Prince of Wales Hospital in January after catching the H3N2 "Sydney flu' virus, found in Australia last June.

"They contracted the Sydney virus but, the causes of their death have to be confirmed," said a hospital doctor who declined to be identified.

A child, who caught the same virus, is in critical condition, the doctor said,

A health department official said it had no figures for deaths from the Sydney flu.

Experts fear the Sydney virus could mix with avian H5N1 and mutate into an easily transmitted human strain. [End quoting]

If this weren't so deadly, it would be funny. They're actually telling us, black on white, **how they're going to do it!** [comment by contributor]

RIGHT APPROACH

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, letter to the editor, 3/23/98: [quoting]

It has long puzzled me why readers write in, outraged by this or that, and ask to have their subscription canceled. As a subscriber to many "alternative" news sources, I ask only for news and views not available elsewhere; complete compatibility with my beliefs is not sought or desired.

No soothing mainstream propaganda; rather the un-nerving, even jolting, truths and opinions in *The SPOT-LIGHT*. Subscribe to be fearlessly informed and provoked—not coddled. —Ed Chesnavich, NJ [End quoting]

We all need to open our minds instead of staying in the ruts of our present beliefs. Wisdom comes from understanding others' ideas and beliefs—I didn't say, necessarily, to believe them.

BANKING'S BIG BOTTOM LINE

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 3/23/98: [quoting]

Heading into the sixth straight year of record earnings, bankers somehow find it necessary to add charges for most of those peripheral services that used to come with the account. An industry sheet, *Fee Income Report*, records 240 different fees in 1995, up from 96 in 1990. Bankers argue that "increased competition, consumer demand, pressure from Wall Street and shareholders, and new technology" forces them to change how they operate. They claim they need to get a larger percentage of income from services and less from interest. [End quoting]

Do you believe these **scam artists?** No wonder they're called banksters—banking gangsters.

JUSTICE DELAYED

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 3/23/98: [quoting]

Maynard Campbell, who wrote the first book exposing the government's role at Ruby Ridge, Idaho, was brutally murdered in a suspected "hit" in the Florence, Arkansas federal prison over a year ago. Prison authorities have two prime suspects but government authorities say they are in no hurry to file charges against anyone. [End quoting]

Doesn't that statement say an awful lot?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL FIND

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 3/23/98: [quoting]

Humiliated over a year ago by Bureau of Land Management agents who raided his home looking for artifacts the government suspected may have come from public land, archaeologist Allen Pastron of Oakland, California is now owner of a prime rarity. He possesses from the Justice Department a letter of admission of federal agents' misconduct toward him together with an official apology. [End quoting]

Will wonders never end?? I wouldn't advise to base our hopes on a rare exception, however.

JAPAN AND COLD FUSION

Conflicting Reports
On Cold Fusion Out Of Japan

From FUTURE TECHNOLOGY INTELLIGENCE REPORT (FTIR), Nov. 1997: [quoting]

We suggest caution, things are not always what they seem, or as reported. First the Japanese Government is DISCONTINUING all cold fusion as of March 1998. MITI has provided \$20 million since 1992. The Sapporo Laboratory will be shut down. A consortium of Japanese firms provides \$1 million a year, this will also be discontinued. We believe the Laboratory in France will also be closed.

This report was in the *NEW YORK TIMES* August 26th, 1997. The reason for closure was given as "failure to confirm cold fusion". Second, far from "failure to confirm", the process has been widely confirmed world wide including Japan. So we question the reason given in the *NEW YORK TIMES*. We would expect the *NYT* to give the report its own spin. There is a widespread pervasive program to distort or refute cold fusion experimental results within the U.S. at all levels. Sometimes these attempts are both crude and dishonest. [End quoting]

You can bet your life they haven't given up on cold fusion. The more likely explanation is the elite probably want to bury even deeper any knowledge about successes.

BIG BUCKS IN EXPANSION OF NATO

Just Another Scam

The government poised to harvest the biggest profits from the expansion of NATO is not even a member of the treaty organization.

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 3/23/98: [quoting]

Behind all the rhetoric from "defense experts" the real reason for the big push to enlarge NATO is arms contracts. Who gets them, Israeli or U.S. arms manufacturers?

But for a massive lobbying effort by the U.S. defense industry, the Israelis would have cleaned up on arms contracts from Eastern Europe.

The three nations scheduled to be formally admitted as new NATO members in April—Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary—will have to spend between \$35 and \$70 billion in the next four years to make their antiquated, Soviet-equipped armed forces compatible with the high-tech military of the NATO countries.

"NATO's internal reports portray the military equipment [of these three countries] as old, or close to obsolete, and incapable of joint operations with present NATO members," says Dr. Tomas Valasek, an analyst at the Center for Defense Information, a Washington think-tank.

American taxpayers will end up paying for much of the massive modernization and procurement required by the decision to augment the North Atlantic alliance. These former Soviet-bloc members don't have the money to upgrade their threadbare troops, defense industry sources say. [End quoting]

Always another scam. What more can we expect from the greedy scumbags? Their day is coming and it doesn't look like it will be very much longer.

BILDERBERG WANTS YOUR LAND

Congress must act to prevent President Clinton—on behalf of Bilderberg from taking control of your yard or pasture if you live in a river valley.

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 3/23/98: [quoting]

Your congressman is probably unaware of President Bill Clinton's latest mischief, so he needs your help.

With no constitutional or legislative authority, Clinton plans to take over the nation's rivers and adjacent lands. If he succeeds, Washington bureaucrats could forbid you to plant flowers, grow corn, raise hogs or build a shed.

The American Heritage Rivers Initiative would impose federal zoning and land-use controls on private property owners in America's great river valleys.

Congress has authorized no such power-grab; Clinton plans to find taxpayer dollars from 12 federal departments and agencies to implement his plan under Executive Order 13061. This is using money Congress appropriated for other purposes, which is illegal.

Federal bureaucrats would have power over the "characteristics of the natural, economic, agricultural,

scenic, historic, cultural or recreational resources of a river", under the executive order.

"Unless Congress votes specific legislation prohibiting the president from using any public funds whatsoever for this project, bureaucrats will be confronting Americans planting rose bushes in their own yards," said a State Department source.

There is hope. Rep. Helen Chenoweth (R-Idaho) has introduced H.R. 1842 to forbid funding of the rivers program by any federal agency. She has 46 co-sponsors but needs more.

If the rivers project succeeds, a State Department mole predicted, UN "historic sites" designations—similar to those now applied to the Empire State Building and Yellowstone Park—will follow. Then, he said, implied UN control will become actual UN control.

FIRST STEP

Clinton plans to start with 10 rivers this year, adding 20 more by 2000 and ultimately more rivers—seizing control of vast amounts of American land.

If any American deludes himself into believing Washington—and ultimately the UN—will rule over his land benevolently, he should check recent history, the official said.

"Ask the farmer who can't till his land because a mud puddle has been designated a 'wetlands' by the Interior Department," he said. "Or ask the man who cannot build a house because a bureaucrat said his land is a 'natural habitat' for a rare bug."

Clinton's mischief would take more power from the states and local governments and place it in Washington, which is unconstitutional. It would stifle economic growth and individual liberty.

It is also part of the Bilderberg-Trilateral grand plan (the president and first lady are both members) to move power from the states to Washington, then to an emerging world government. [End quoting]

Are we going to put our support behind stopping this or are we going to wait until they take <u>our</u> property—or even <u>us</u>—before we'll help stop this madness??

<u>FARROW</u> <u>CREDITS GOD AND KIDS</u>

Actress overcame grief and loss through love

From FAX, 4/1/98: [quoting]

An unshakable faith in God and a profound love for children Is how actress and mother Mia Farrow says she has survived through a life marked by loss, pain and grief.

"Rage and grief are savage companions," Farrow told a sold-out crowd of mostly women last night at the Unique Lives & Experiences lecture series held in Roy Thomson Hall.

"But despair is the final undoing."

In a lecture marked by religious imagery, as well as laughter about the trials and tribulations of raising a family of 14 children—seven of whom were adopted—Farrow enthralled the crowd with the story of her life.

From her survival of polio at age 9, to her adolescent love affair and marriage to singer Frank Sinatra, to the pain of discovering her partner Woody Allen's seduction of her adopted teenage daughter, Soon-Yi Previn, Farrow bared all.

The rage at discovering the pornographic photos of her daughter in the possession of Allen stood in marked contrast to her account of trying to escape to the Himalayas in the 1960s for a period of silence and reflection—only to discover the Beatles and the world press as her next-door neighbors.

But not once throughout the hour-long talk, which was followed by a question and answer period, did she display any bitterness.

Instead, Farrow mainly focused on what she called her "greatest gift"—her 14 children—describing in detail how she bore seven of her own and adopted the rest.

It was her children, she said—many of whom were adopted from around the world despite having cerebral palsy, blindness and malnutrition—who taught her not to be bitter.

"The children made me," she said. "They taught me a whole other way of tuning into life."

"Alot of people think I'm crazy," she said. "It's my way of giving back. I believe it's a vocation. It's what I was meant to be."

And of her ability to keep going without a chip on her shoulder, she said: "My whole struggle through all of it was not to be diminished. I knew that was the pitfall—to become bitter, you lose."

She touched on the highly publicized affair between her adopted daughter and Allen, describing how she'd tried unsuccessfully to win Previn back and then said simply: "This is an awful way to lose a child."

'JUST ME AND GOD'

And when asked about who had been her greatest inspiration, Farrow had the audience clapping enthusiastically when she paused for a moment, thinking aloud of "a man" she could name and then saying "Just me and God. I haven't had much help at all."

Over the years, Farrow has elbowed her way into the popular consciousness by starring in famous roles such as that of a teenage waif in *Peyton Place*, the groundbreaking prime-time soap opera that made her

a household name.

She followed up with another starring role in the acclaimed film, *Rosemary's Baby*, and others such as *The Purple Rose Of Cairo* and *Hannah And Her Sisters*.

The child of actress Maureen O'Sullivan and director John Farrow, Farrow was married briefly to Sinatra and then conductor André Previn. [End quoting]

And most of us think we have—or have had—a hard life. God bless her for telling her story candidly so that it can inspire many thousands to continue when the way seems impossible.

CHAPTER 4

THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON AN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS PART IX IN A SERIES by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98

Editor's note: The following continues this series from Calvin Burgin which began in the 2/10/98 issue of CONTACT. As he explains in a footnote, Heptameron means: Heptameron (hep-tam'-e-rön): "a book or treatise containing the actions of seven days, in the style of Boccaccio's Decameron or the Heptameron of Queen Margaret of Navarre (1492-1549)."

THE ZODIAC ORIGIN OF THE ZODIAC

Any reference work will affirm that the zodiac can be traced back to early Mesopotamia, specifically to the Chaldeans. The name "Chaldean" is practically synonymous with "astrologer". Unger's Dictionary, under Chaldean Astrologers says: "Because of their proficiency in the science of astronomy and their skillful practice of astrology, the Chaldeans became a special caste of astrologers." Unger adds that one of the "astounding contributions" of the Chaldeans was their determination of the length of the year as 365 days, six hours, fifteen minutes and forty-one seconds. I might add, did nobody know the length of the year until the Chaldeans figured it out? The answer is, the length of the year at that point in time CHANGED and the Chaldeans re-figured it, but that is another subject.

In later years, the Chaldean wise men and their students were known as "Magi".

Genesis 1:14: "And God said, Let there be lights in the firmament of the heaven to divide the day from the night; and let them be for SIGNS, and for SEASONS, and for days, and for years." When someone asks you, "What is your sign," you understand what they are talking about. The *Bible* clearly says that one of the purposes of the heavenly bodies was to be for signs.

Job 38:32: God asks Job: "Canst thou bring forth Mazzaroth in his season? or canst thou guide Arcturus with his sons? Knowest thou the ordinances of heaven?" Unger's Dictionary says "Mazzaroth" is "the twelve signs of the zodiac". I have written previously how the Twelve Tribes of Israel were arranged in the order of the Zodiac when encamped during the Exodus. Sometimes the Tribe of Joseph was divided into the tribes of Ephraim and Manasseh, thus making 13 tribes, and in astronomy we learn that there are actually 13 "houses" of the Zodiac under some systems of counting, with Ophiuchus (between Scorpio and Sagittarius) making thirteen. "Although Ophiuchus is not a constellation of the zodiac, the Sun spends 20 days within its boundaries, from November 27 to December 17" (*The Illustrated Encyclopedia of Astronomy and Space*, Thomas Crowell Publishers, 1979, p. 147). The actual dates when the sun is in the "house" of Ophiuchus depends on the year. This constellation contains Barnard's Star, the second-closest star to our Sun.

WHO WERE THE MAGI?

According to *Herodotus*, *I*, 101 and Pliny, *Natural History*, V, 29, the Magi were a priestly tribe of the Medes, something like the Biblical Levites. According to Strabo, XVI, 762 and Cicero, *De. Devin.*, I, 41, their job was to be advisors to kings and interpreters of heavenly signs. They were very influential and respected (*Diog. Laert. IX*, 7, 2) and had the power to set up or overthrow kings (*Herodotus, III*, 61 seq.).

Daniel became "master of the magicians," also called "Chaldeans" (see Daniel 5:11). The original word for this was "Rab-mag" or "Rab-magi" and this term is used in Jeremiah 39:13: "So Nebuzaradan the captain of the guard sent, and Nebushasban, Rabsaris, and Nergalsharezer, Rabmag, and all the king of Babylon's princes."

HOW WISE WERE THE MAGI?

How wise were these "wise men"? They knew a lot more than you think!

During the middle ages everyone thought that the Earth was flat, that the Earth was the center of the universe and that the sun and planets rotated around the Earth.

Then in 1543 A.D. Copernicus, who has been called the "Father of Modern Astronomy", published a study that said that the sun was the center of our solar system and the Earth and planets rotated around the sun. He had the study published while on his death bed, he dared not publish it earlier because he knew the Catholic Church would torture or kill him for publishing it. The Catholics tortured to death others who said the same thing.

Copernicus did not simply figure out this truth in his head, his own writings say that he learned this truth FROM STUDYING THE OLD RECORDS! Specifically, he said he learned from Ptolemy, Hipparchus, and Aristarchus of Samos.

If you take a modern course in astronomy, you will learn that stars are given numbers to indicate their degree of "brightness". This system was originated by Hipparchus, who lived in the second century BC in Asia Minor. Hipparchus also taught about the "displacement of the solstitial and equinoctial sign", what we now call the precession of the equinoxes. This can only be understood if you also understand that the Earth is a sphere in a spherical universe.

Zecharia Sitchin, in *The 12th Planet*, said, "the interesting fact is that astronomers knew more in 500 BC than in A.D. 500 and 1500."

The precession of the equinoxes is a cycle of 25,920 years. How did Hipparchus know about it? Do you, with your modern education, know about it?

Hipparchus said that he learned from "Babylonian astronomers of Erech, Borsippa, and Babylon". Diodorus

Siculus, in the first century BC, said that "the Chaldeans named the planets...in the center of their system was the Sun the greatest light, of which the planets were 'offspring', reflecting the Sun's position and shine." In fact, the name "Chaldean" is synonymous with "stargazers" or astronomers.

The old records say that Abraham taught astronomy to the Egyptians. Where did Abraham learn astronomy? Abraham, according to the *Bible*, was from "Ur of the Chaldees". It is easy to trace the origin of the knowledge of astronomy back to the Chaldeans, another name for Babylonians, specifically to a group of Chaldeans later known as the "Magi". These Magi were "wise men", who were highly trained in all the wisdom of the day, and who had the ability to interpret dreams. The wise men who went to see the baby Jesus in the "Christmas Story" were told "in a dream" not to go back to Herod, but to take a different route back home.

Josephus, *Antiq. of the Jews*, Bk. I., Chap. VIII, v. 2, says Abram was "admired by them in those conferences as a very wise man.... He communicated to them arithmetic, and delivered to them the science of astronomy; for, before Abram came into Egypt, they were unacquainted with those parts of learning; for that science came from the Chaldeans into Egypt, and from thence to the Greeks also."

The question then arises, how in the world did these Chaldeans know astronomy, without telescopes, without computers, without modern math? They taught things that were simply "impossible" for them to know! For instance, they taught that there were originally twelve "stars" in our solar system, including the sun and the moon. The sun is one, the moon is two, then there are Mercury, Venus, Earth, Mars, Jupiter, Saturn, Uranus, Neptune, and Pluto. That is eleven. Modern astronomers know about the asteroid belt, where a planet existed and at some point in time was smashed to bits. This would have been number twelve.

How in the world could those ancient Babylonians have known about the missing former planet? How could they have known about Pluto, which was not discovered until 1930? How could they have known about Uranus or Neptune, which cannot be seen without a high-powered telescope?

Sitchin says, p. 204 of the Avon Books paperback *The 12th Planet*, "An Akkadian seal from the third millennium BC, now at the Vorderasiatische Abteilung of the State Museum in East Berlin (catalogued VA/243), departs from the usual manner of depicting the celestial bodies. It does not show them individually but rather as a group...encircling a large, rayed star. It is clearly a depiction of the solar system as it was known to the Sumerians: a system of twelve celestial bodies."

The Babylonians kept accurate ephemerides. These were tables that listed and predicted the positions of celestial bodies. George Sarton, in *Chaldean Astronomy of the Last Three Centuries BC*, found that they used two different systems of computing: a later one used in Babylon, and an earlier one from Uruk. He found that the older system was more sophisticated and more accurate than the later one! How could that be possible?

Professor O. Neugebauer (*Astronomical Cuneiform Texts*) said that the ephemerides, precise as they were, were not based on observations of the Chaldeans who made them, but were calculated "from some fixed arithmetical schemes...which were given and were not to be interfered with" by the astronomers using them. They used "procedure texts" that "gave the rules for computing ephemerides step by step" accord-

ing to a "strict mathematical theory". Neugebauer said that the Babylonian astronomers were actually ignorant of the theories on which the ephemerides were based, they merely followed some ancient formulas they had inherited. Professor Alfred Jeremias (*Handbuch der Altorientalischen Geistkultur*) said that the Babylonian astronomers knew about the astronomical phenomenon called retrograde, something which would be very difficult to learn by mere observation, as it would require very long periods of observation. They knew that the Earth was a sphere with an equator and poles, they divided the heavens into equatorial and polar lines, they knew about the ecliptic, the equinoxes and the solstices. They knew how to figure the calendar. We inherited from them our system of 360 degrees in a circle, of sixty minutes in an hour, of 24 hours in a day. Our calendar traces back to them. We buy by the dozen and the gross, traceable to them. How did they know all this?

ARPHAXAD, ARAMEANS, AND THE ZODIAC

Shem had five sons mentioned in Genesis 10:22. One of them was Arphaxad. *Josephus, Bk. I, Chap. VI, v. 4* says: "Shem, the third son of Noah, had five sons, who inhabited the land that began at Euphrates, and reached to the Indian Ocean; for Elam left behind him the Elamites, the ancestors of the Persians. Ashur lived at the city of Nineve; and named his subjects Assyrians, who became the most fortunate nation, beyond others. Arphaxad named the Arphaxadites, who are now called Chaldeans." He continues with the others, but take note that the sons of Arphaxad were the first people known as "Chaldeans". The Chaldeans were direct descendants of Shem. Arphaxad was born two years after the Flood.

Arphaxad had son Eber or Heber, whose descendants were known as Hebrews. Heber had son Peleg, during whose time the Earth was divided (*Gen. 10:25*). Peleg had son Reu, who had son Serug, who had son Nahor, who had son Terah, who had son Abram. Thus Abram was a Chaldean and Hebrew, a direct descendant of Heber and Arphaxad and Shem. Keep in mind that Shem lived for 160 years after the birth of Abram. How did Abram learn so much about astronomy and science? It is obvious—he learned from Shem, the Great Teacher!

David Fasold, in *The Ark of Noah*, says (p. 183): "Bailly and others assert that astronomy `must have been established when the summer solstice was in the first degree of Virgo, and that the solar and lunar zodiacs were of similar antiquity, which would be about four thousand years before the Christian era. They suppose the originators to have lived in about the fortieth degree of north latitude, and to have been a highly civilized people." Mt. Ararat, where Noah's Ark supposedly landed, is just slightly south of the fortieth degree latitude (I say "supposedly" because the *Bible* actually says "mountains", plural, of Ararat, naming a general area but not a specific mountain).

Abram was from "Ur of the Chaldees" (*Gen. 15:7, Neh. 9:7*, etc.). *Gen. 11:28* says: "And Haran died before his father Terah in the land of his nativity, in Ur of the Chaldees." Most commentators say that Abram (Abraham) was from Ur in Southern Iraq (see any *Bible* Atlas or maps in the backs of *Bibles*). However, other maps show the city of Haran and Urfa to be on a tributary of the Euphrates River just North of the Syrian border in Southern Turkey. Haran was named after Abram's brother Haran, and Abram's father was buried in Haran (*Gen. 11:32*). *Gen. 24:4, 5, 10* shows that Abraham was from the city of Nahor of Ur. Nahor's city was Haran of Ur (*Gen. 11:29*). Mt. Ararat is in the land of Urartu. Ararat is merely a variant of Urartu. The language of this area was, and still is, Aramaic. Unger's shows

that Ur was in Padan-Aram; compare this with Gen. 28:5.

The next tributary entering the Euphrates downriver from Haran is the river Khabur on modern maps, called Chebar of the Chaldeans in the *Bible* (*Ezek. 1:3*). See any modern map between 36 and 38 degrees latitude and 38 and 40 degrees longitude, with Khabur mostly between 40 and 42 degrees longitude. The New International Version of the *Bible* says "by the Kebar River in the land of the Babylonians". This is very deceptive, who would ever think to look for the Babylonians in Southern Turkey?

Abraham is called a Syrian in *Deut. 26:5*. Isaac's wife was a "Syrian of Padanaram" (*Gen. 25:20*). Padanaram was Abram's homeland (*Gen. 28*, etc.), also known as Syria. Harran (Haran) is located about 11 miles north of the modern Syrian border.

Unger's says Padan-Aram was the "plain of Aram". Aramaic was the language of Aram, whose descendants lived in Armenia (Aramenia). These variations in names are confusing but it is important to work out the connections.

Gen. 11:2 says: "And it came to pass, as they journeyed from the east, that they found a plain in the land of Shinar; and they dwelt there." My references said that this should have been translated "they traveled eastward", and it is so translated in the NIV, for instance, which is exactly opposite the KJV. I believed this mistake until recently, for at the time I understood Ur to be in lower Iraq. I now see my mistake and see that the KJV was correct (as are the Ferrar Fenton Version, Lamsa's Aramaic Version, and the Septuagint. Most modern Bibles are wrong).

All these details are meant to show you the fact that knowledge of astronomy and the zodiac traces back to Abraham and then to Shem.

William Dever, a prominent Palestinian archaeologist, in a recent issue of *Biblical Archaeology Review*, said: "We've given up the patriarchs. That's a dead issue." The "experts" make the assumption that the Biblical patriarchs are "Jewish" patriarchs of Palestine, then are frustrated when they can find only very little to support the *Old Testament*.

May I make a suggestion to the "experts"? Change your assumptions to the possibility that the "patriarchs" were Egyptian, and take a look! You will find all kinds of written records, stone statues, pictures, and even a piece of Noah's robe! Do you think maybe somebody has been trying to hide the truth?

Circumcision originated in Egypt. Monotheism originated in Egypt (with Aton).

WHO WERE THE "SONS OF GOD"?

Sitchin said that the word "Nefilim" stems from the Semitic root NFL which means "to cast down". The word "Nefilim," which is used in *Genesis 6:4* in some versions of the *Bible*, means "those who were cast down upon the Earth", or in other words, it means the fallen angels. *Young's Concordance* says that the word "naphal" means be cast down, fall, fall down, be fallen, etc. These "sons of God" who were marrying "daughters of men" and producing giant children were fallen angels, what we now call demons. This is the Judeo-Christian viewpoint—in other societies these were considered to be the angels of God,

these were our CREATORS, our Fathers.

In studying the archaeology of ancient Sumer and Babylon, you will find many statues and carvings of larger than normal men, some of them being depicted with wings. THESE WERE REPRESENTATIONS OF REAL PEOPLE. People such as Gilgamesh, Utnapishtam, etc., really existed, and the so-called myths telling about these people were based on real events and facts.

C. Leonard Wooley was one of the world's foremost archaeologists. He wrote a book called *The Sumerians* in which he stated that when Egyptian civilization was just beginning, Sumerian civilization was already old. He directed the excavation of Ur of the Chaldees and found many cuneiform tablets. Among his finds were lists of the kings of Sumer. Larsa list #1 gives the names of one line of kings BEFORE the Flood! I shall list them here in the following order: Name, city, and length of reign. I have explained in my previous writings that the Babylonian historians were in a contest with Egyptian historians, each trying to make their civilization the oldest. They used mathematical tricks in listing the lengths of reign, which were explained by a third historian.

The tablet says, "When kingship was lowered from Heaven kingship was first in Eridu." Then it lists the following:

A-lu-lim, Nunki, 28,800 years.
A-la(l)-gar, Nunki, 36,000
En-me-en-lu-an-na, Bad-tabira, 43,200
En-me-en-gal-an-na, Bad-tabira, 28,800
Dumuzi "the shepherd" [this was the original Tammuz], Bad-tabira, 36,000
En-Sib-zi-an-na, Larak, 28,800
En-me-en-dur-an-na, Sippar, 21,000
(?) du-du, Suruppak, 18,600

Then the list says "The Flood came. After the Flood came, kingship was sent down from on high." The Larsa list then continues with 23 more names of the kings of the First Dynasty of Kish, after the Flood.

Samuel Kramer, in *The Sumerians, Their History, Culture and Character*, p. 92 said the Sumerians counted by sixes, not by tens. They had a particular character for the number 6, a different character for the number 60, and another character for the number 600. For instance, to express 3600, they used another symbol, not 6×600 as we do.

This 600, 60 and 6 can be traced from Sumer to Babylon and then on down to the Roman Empire ("Mystery, Babylon the Great" and "his number is six hundred threescore and six"). We still preserve this system with our 360 degrees in a circle and 60 minutes in an hour.

Herman Hoeh, in his *Compendium*, says: "Now what the clever priest-kings did was this: They took for example, a man whose length of reign was 14 years and altered the figures the following way. They multiplied the 4, the first figure to the left of the decimal point by 60. The result was 240. Then they multiplied the 1, the second figure to the left of the decimal point by 600. The result was 1×600 plus $4 \times 60 = 840$. By working back from the expanded figures now preserved, it is possible to determine the real

length of reigns of the priest-kings of Kish who were elected to the office." The old records show that the Tower of Babel incident occurred in 2256 BC and Nimrod began his government in 2254, as I have proven in my previous writings. I have complete lists (as complete as can be determined from the sometimes broken tablets) of all the rulers of the dynasties of Sumer, with the years listed by Hoeh. Hoeh was a head of a *Bible* department and head of a college, he taught classes in languages, history and *Bible* and he assigned his classes to research these subjects. I started learning from him about 1959, as he was also my church pastor. I took notes in the late '50s and '60s and did more study in the 1970s.

To get the correct number in the above Larsa list, divide all the numbers by 600. Or, perhaps you should divide by 3600. It is not clear to me yet what the exact solution to this puzzle is; the only thing that is clear is that there is some kind of trick involved in figuring these numbers, or else they refer to reigns of non-human (or non-physical) beings. In some records they defined 600 years as "one hour". This is another possible approach to the solution.

WHO WERE THE ANUNNAKI?

Zecharia Sitchin in *The 12th Planet*, which was the first of a series of books he wrote on ancient Sumeria, tells of stories that have been translated about the ancient Anunnaki. Who were these people the Sumerians called the Anunnaki?

Sitchin, in his second volume, p. 100, said the Anunnaki were "Those of Heaven Who Are On Earth". Christian O'Brien makes it plainer. He was head of the Iranian oil industry when he retired in 1970 and was an explorations geologist. He discovered and excavated the Tchoga Zambil ziggurat. He wrote a book called *The Genius of the Few* and, on page 37 he says: "The Anannage [also called Anunnaki], therefore, were the Sumerian equivalents of the biblical Angels." There are THOUSANDS of clay tablets that tell of these (fallen?) angels. One group, the Library of Ashurbanipal, contained over 25,000 clay tablets, arranged in order by subject. Once you understand that some of these tablets tell stories about angels, you can learn some fascinating information about them. Most historians consider these tablets to be mythological stories and are blind to the reality of what is before them.

We are told the "fallen angels" married human women and produced offspring called "giants", "Nefilim", and "men of renown" in *Bible* translations. Sitchin, p. 171, says: "What, then, does the term Nefilim mean? Stemming from the Semitic root NFL ('to be cast down'), it means exactly what it says: It means those who were cast down upon Earth!" The term apparently sometimes applies both to the fallen angels and the offspring they produced.

I had always been taught in church that angels could not have sex, and that no one knew for sure just what the Nefilim were. After doing my own research, I was "flabbergasted" to learn that there are many thousands of written (cuneiform) records of these Nefilim. As I said earlier, my *Young's Concordance* (and *Strong's*) says the Hebrew word "naphal" means "cast down", "to cause to fall", "be cast down," "fall down", "be fallen", etc., and Bullinger's *Companion Bible* in Appendix 23 and 25 gives plenty of proof that the "sons of God" in *Genesis 6:2* were fallen angels and he says (p. 28 of Appendix) "Nephilim, which means fallen ones (from Hebrew naphal, to fall)."

Bullinger also quotes the *Bible*: "There were Nephilim in the Earth in those days (i.e. in the days of Noah);

and also AFTER THAT, when the sons of God came in unto the daughters of men and they bare children to them, the same became (the) mighty men (Heb. gibbor, the heroes) which were of old, men of renown (lit. men of the name, i.e., who got a name and were renowned for their ungodliness)."

The *Moffatt Bible*, one of my favorite translations, says *Gen. 6:1:* "Now when men began to multiply over all the world and had daughters born to them, the angels noticed that the daughters of men were beautiful, and they married any one of them that they chose....(It was in these days that the Nephilim giants arose on Earth, as well as afterwards whenever angels had intercourse with the daughters of men and had children born to them; these were the heroes who were famous in the days of old.)"

The *Bethel Edition of the Sacred Names Scriptures* by Jacob O. Meyer says: "And it came to pass, when men began to multiply on the face of the ground, and daughters were born unto them, that the sons of Elohim saw the daughters of men that they were fair; and they took them wives of all that they chose. And Yahweh said, My Spirit shall not strive with man for ever, for that he also is flesh, yet shall his days be a hundred and twenty years. The Nephilim were in the Earth in those days, and also after that, when the sons of Elohim came in unto the daughters of men, and they bare children to them; the same were the mighty men that were of old, the men of renown."

One of the Nefilim was Gilgamesh, a prominent name in Sumerian and Babylonian literature. Another was Goliath, who was slain by David. To the best of my knowledge, the last Nefilim giant died around 1600 or 1700 A.D. If you remember from my previous writings, Cornwall in England got its name from a man who moved there for the express purpose of killing the giants (Nefilim) who lived there.

These fallen angels, called Nefilim (Nephilim, Naphalim, etc.) in the *Bible* and Anunnaki or Anannage in the clay tablets, passed on information to humans that was otherwise impossible for humans to know. One group of tablets told of three different ways of calculating distance between stars. Some told of Bode's Law, a modern astronomical law by which one can predict the orbit of planets. Our modern Zodiac was originated by these people. They identified constellations in the Southern sky, which they (that is, normal humans in Mesopotamia) could not have seen (and this is more proof that they knew the world was round).

Professor H. V. Hilprecht (*The Babylonian Expedition of the University of Pennsylvania*), after studying several thousands of tablets, said that "all the multiplication and division tables from the temple libraries of Nippur and Sippar, and from the library of Ashurbanipal (in Nineveh) are based upon [the number] 12960000." The precession of the equinoxes is called a Great Year and is a cycle of 25,920 years. The number 25920 divides into 12960000 exactly 500 times. This not only is more evidence of their knowledge of the Great Year, but indicates that their numbering system was set up 12,960,000 years earlier. This is information that was "impossible" for the Sumerians to know, and was also totally useless information. So how did they learn it?

The 25,920 cycle is also sometimes called the Platonian Year, which means Plato knew about it. He no doubt learned it from the Sumerians.

One tablet identified as AO.648 (Sitchin, p. 197) lists the twenty-six major stars visible along the Tropic of Cancer, and gives the distances between them measured in three different ways. One is measured by a unit

called "mana shukultu" which means "measured and weighed". Compare this with the ancient Aramaic term "Mene" in *Daniel 5:25*, which means "God hath numbered thy kingdom" (v. 26). Our word "money" can be traced back to the Sumerian word "mana". The Sumerian term was related to the weight of escaping water to the passage of time. The second column of figures gave the distance between the stars in degrees of arc, and the third column gave the distance in "beru ina shame" each one of which was equal to 11,693 yards.

In my previous article about the *Book of Revelation*, commenting on *Ezek. 28:13*, I said (p.2) that Satan was in charge of the Earth and "There was commerce going on, perhaps musical instruments were being made and gold and gemstones were being mined." Sitchin, *The 12th Planet*, p. 327, paperback edition, says: "The ancient texts described the Anunnaki as the rank-and-file gods who had been involved in the settlement of Earth—the gods 'who performed the tasks'," then he has several pages of quotes from the tablets about the mining activities that were going on, for gold and other metals and minerals.

Genesis 4:22 says Tubalcain was "an instructor of every artificer in brass and iron". Note that there was no such thing as a bronze age and an iron age—they were together. There were bronze CULTURES and iron CULTURES.

WHAT WAS KHAR-SAG?

According to O'Brien, the Garden of Eden was called Khar-sag in the tablets. *Enoch* 6:6 says: "Altogether, they were two hundred who descended in the days of Jared, on the summit of Mount Hermon." Jared was father of Noah.

Kharsag was originally at Nippur, southeast of where the modern ruins of Babylon now are. Nippur was where the Garden of Eden was. When they were driven from the Garden, Kharsag was moved to Mt. Hermon, a mountain on the northeastern border of Palestine near Lebanon and Syria. There is a modern village in Lebanon called Ehdin.

People have wondered for ages where the Garden of Eden was. The possible answer is simple when you learn that the word for "heads" in *Genesis 2:10* is what we now call "mouths". People have been looking at the rivers backwards. *Gen. 2:8*: "And the Lord God planted a garden eastward in Eden...." The Garden of Eden faced to the East, that is you had to enter on the East side and I think that is what this verse means. *Gen. 2:10*: "And a river went out of Eden to water the garden; and from thence it was parted, and became into four heads. The name of the first is Pison: that is it which compasseth the whole land of Havilah, where there is gold; And the gold of that land is good: there is bdellium and the onyx stone. And the name of the second river is Gihon: the same is it that compasseth the whole land of Ethiopia. And the name of the third river is Hiddekel: that is it which goeth toward the east of Assyria. And the fourth river is Euphrates."

If you get a good map of Iraq, you will see a river to the right of the Tigris that intersects, best I remember, roughly about Bosra. This was the Pison. If it is a really good map, you will see a Wadi to the left of the Euphrates that intersects at roughly the same area. This was the Gihon, and is now a river only when it rains. The Hiddekel is now called the Tigris. Havilah is located in *Gen. 25:18* and *I Sam. 15:7*. The rivers entered Eden then came to a head into one river which then exited Eden into the ocean. The shoreline is much farther away today than it was back then, because of silting.

Ethiopia used to include Saudi Arabia. The Queen of Sheba, who was Queen of Ethiopia, actually lived in what is now called Yemen. This explanation of the Garden of Eden's location is only a possibility, and I have some doubts.

In the tablets called the Epics of Kharsag is a story called the "Creation Myth" story. The opening lines, per O'Brien, say: "At Kharsag, where Heaven and Earth met, the heavenly Assembly, the Great Sons of Anu, descended—the many Wise Ones." Anu and Anunnaki are related words.

It is curious to me that Kharsag, on Mt. Hermon, "where Heaven and Earth met", is the same Mt. Hermon where, according to commentaries, Jesus had the Transfiguration and where Satan took Jesus to offer Him kingship over all the Earth. This is more circumstantial evidence that the ancient clay tablets were based on facts. If they made up the story, why did they choose Mt. Hermon?

This group of Sons of God were led by Enlil (Lord of Cultivation) and his wife-to-be, Ninlil, who was also referred to as Ninkharsag (Lady of Kharsag). Others in the group were Utu, also called Ugmash and later Shamash by the Babylonians, and who, according to O'Brien, was the Ogmius of the Celts and the Ogma of the Old Irish (p. 40)! He was deified by the Babylonians as the Sun-god and became the forerunner of Apollo and others.

We have seen that Shamash was a deified form of Shem, while Utu is sometimes identified with Noah! Shem was acting for Noah, as High Priest in place of Noah.

They were organized into a Council of Seven and had periodic meetings in the original Mountain House. Occasionally, Anu, the Most High, joined in their meetings. Nu and Noah are the same name.

Are there female angels? According to the tablets, Ninlil and Enlil came to Earth from Heaven together. There is no indication in the *Bible* of female angels, indeed the incidents of angels marrying women would seem to confirm that angels are male, but neither does the *Bible* state for a fact that there are not female angels. Just because nobody ever mentioned camel's knees to you in your life, does that mean camels do not have knees? The incidents of angels marrying women was anciently treated as cases of forbidden cross-breeding.

The ancient tablets do definitely have errors in them, the ancient stories of the Creation and of the Flood are proof of that. But the same stories are proof that they are based on common history and facts and there is more factual information in them than may at first be realized.

O'Brien's book has a photograph of statues of the Lady Ninlil and Enlil standing side by side.

The Kharsag Epic 1 tells of Ninkharsag arguing with the Council about where to build Kharsag. Here are a few lines:

They all turned around as she stood up to answer. She spoke rebelliously—she spoke strongly: "With this Settlement will come prosperity; an enclosed Reservoir—a water trap—

should be established.

The good land is full of water;
because of the water, food will be plentiful.

This perfect Eden is full of water;
it should be irrigated from a cascading watercourse.

By its side, a great, protected watercourse would gush forth—it would increase production; storm-filled, power would be generated by its pressure; this water would flow from the Reservoir."

Then in subsequent lines she speaks of building a house, a garden, a granary, roads, a "maternity building for mothers", an orchard, and of "testing the food soil". What did she mean by "power would be generated by its pressure"? She calls herself the Serpent Lady. She tells of her and Enlil and their son Ninurta getting sick, then she says the cause was "Father, eating meat is the great enemy." Further down, after a broken part, it reads:

```
"....its burning prevented eating,
where the Lord prohibited the eating of beef.
Many had eaten [broken]...where the sickness...[broken]."
```

She won her arguments and the buildings and canals were established where she wanted them.

Ugmash (Shamash, Shem) was responsible for solar observations and surveying and became known as the Sun god. He was thus the original Magi.

Kharsag Epic 2 is the one usually called the "Creation Myth".

The Creation Myth tablets tell that before the Anunnaki arrived:

"Man had not yet learned how to eat and how to sleep; had not learned how to make clothes or permanent dwellings.

People crawled into their dwellings on all fours; they are grass with their mouths like sheep; they drank storm-water from the streams."

Could this be talking about cave-men? Perhaps, but I think that the angels were on the Earth before and during the time of the cave-men, if cave-men existed before Adam. It could be that this particular group of angels were the only ones interacting with humans and thus the only ones that appear in the records.

O'Brien says that Ninlil later became known as Asarte and Venus.

Kharsag Epic 3 is a love story about Enlil and Ninlil, and is a story that would be censored out of a children's book (well, perhaps not these days).

Kharsag Epic 4 begins:

"My Prince—Great Ox of unbridled strength; Splendid Serpent of the shining eyes; Teacher of the digging of all canals; Great Ox of unbridled strength; Splendid Serpent of the shining eyes;"

Lucifer means "bright star" and may be related to the "Splendid Serpent of the shining eyes", and this appears to have some connection to bull worship (remember the golden calf in the story of Moses).

Kharsag Epic 5 tells of building the settlement and a reservoir, and tells of cutting cedar trees (what we later called the Cedars of Lebanon).

Kharsag Epic 6 tells of building the Great House of the Lord Enlil, which had the house with nursery and private bouldoir for Ninlil, a Council Chamber, a Banqueting Room, and rooms for the other members of the Council. It was lighted at night and had running water from the reservoir. It was made of cedar.

In this epic Enlil is called the Great Son of Anu and is also called the Bull Lord.

Kharsag Epic 7 tells of a great winter storm and flooding.

NOAH'S DESCENDANTS

TABLE OF NATIONS

The descendants of Noah's son Ham were the Black race, while the descendants of Japheth were the Yellow race. Because of intermixing of the races, there were many whites and various shades appearing in the descendants of these two sons. The sons of Shem were White, known as Semitic, and mostly remained White. The sons of Shem are listed in *Genesis 10*, which is called "The Table of Nations" by *Bible* commentators (seventy names per the Masoretic text, seventy-two in the *Septuagint*). Here is the Table of Nations:

NOAH'S DESCENDANTS THRU JAPHETH, HAM, SHEM

Japheth—became Jupiter Japetus

Gomer (1)—Cambodia, Burmese Ashkenaz (2)—Ashkenazis, now some claim to be Jews Ripath (3)

```
Togarmah (4)
 Magog (5)—Mongolians, Chinese, Koreans,
 Japanese, Manchurians
 Madai (6)
 Javan (7)—became Janus. Greeks, Italians,
 Spanish, Portugese
     Elishah (8)
     Tarshish (9)
     Kittim(10)
     Dodanim (11)
 Tubal (12)—Tobolsk, Russia
 Meshech (13)—Moscow, Russia
 Tiras (14)—Tyre, American Indians, Madagascars
Ham—became Ammon
 Cush (15)—Ethiopians, Ceylonese
     Seba (16)
     Havilah (17)
     Sabtah (18)
     Raamah (19)
         Sheba (20)
         Dedan (21)
     Sabtechah (22)
     Nimrod (23)
 Mizraim (24)—Egyptians
     Ludim (25)—Etruscans, Albanians
     Anamim (26)
     Lehabim (27)
     Naphtuhim (28)
     Pathrusim (29)
     Casluhim (30)
     Caphtorim (31)
 Phut (32)
 Canaan (33)—Moors of N. Africa
     Sidon (34)
     Heth (35)
     Jebusite (36)
     Amorite (37)
     Girgashite (38)
     Hivite (39)
     Arkite (40)
     Sinite (41)
     Arvadite (42)
     Zemarite (43)
```

Hamathite (44)

```
Shem
```

```
Elam (45)—Poland, Czechoslovakia,
   Romania, Yugoslavia
   Asshur (46)
   Arpachshad (47)
       Shelah (48)
           Eber (49)
              Peleg (50)
              Joktan (51)—Afganistan, Kashmir
                  Almodad (52)
                  Sheleph (53)
                  Hazarmaveth (54)
                  Jerah (55)
                  Hadoram (56)
                  Uzal (57)
                  Diklah (58)
                  Obal (59) (Ebal)
                  Abimael (60)
                  Sheba (61)
                  Ophir (62)
                  Havilah (63)
                  Jobab (64)
Lud (65)
Aram (66)
   Uz (67)—Syria
   Hul (68)—Armenians
   Gether (69)
   Mash (70) (Meshech—I Chron. 1:17)—
   Syrenians
```

Japheth has 14 sons, Ham has 30 sons, and Shem has 26 (including grandsons). It is perhaps a coincidence that number 49 (7x7) is Eber, the father of the Hebrews (NOT JEWS), and number 50 is Peleg, when God divided the nations. The numbers 6 and 60 and 666 are associated with the Chaldeans, who were descended from a branch of the Arameans and Aram, who is number 66 in the list. Canaan is 33, half of 66. The last name in the list, Mash or Meshech, is also listed among the last to fight with Christ at the battle in *Ezekiel 38* usually identified as the battle of Armageddon.

Some of Japheth's sons are listed to two generations, one of Ham's sons is listed to three generations, and one of Shem's sons is listed to five generations, showing a primary focus on Shem's descendants.

CHAPTER 5

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT IF THERE'S A GNAT IN THE HOUSE, BLOW UP THE HOUSE by Dr. Al Overholt 4/3/98

Excerpted from FREE AMERICAN NEWSMAGAZINE, Apr. 1998: [quoting]

The scenario of an Iraqi threat now presents itself as two possibly unarmed Scud missiles, a military force that has been bombed into the 80s, and unknown slow-flying crop dusters. Against this terrifying threat the United States has assembled the largest military force since the Gulf War.

According to Former Attorney General Ramsey Clark in a video produced by his organization, the International Action Center (IAC entitled "Genocide by Sanctions", and presented to the UN Security Council, the U.S. is spending \$50,000,000,000 [*That's billions, folks.*] a year patrolling the Persian Gulf!" Could this be analogous to threatening a one-winged, de-beaked mosquito with hundred-pound cannon balls?

In the infamous interview between Lesley Stahl and Madeleine Albright on CBS's 60 Minutes, Stahl compares the death toll of Hiroshima to the deaths, by sanctions, of Iraqi children. Albright, without a hint of remorse, frankly stated, "We think the price is worth it." The unspoken question imposed by Lesley Stahl to Albright is, "Who is paying?" Who is selling what? Who are the "we" that for whom the Secretary was speaking when she said, "We think the price is worth it"? What are the gains "we" can expect to receive from the death of 5% of an entire nation? It can be clearly observed as to who is paying. Iraq has paid dearly. It can also be known who are the beneficiaries by the obscene profits of U.S. arms manufacturers.

The Toronto Sun recently outlined the history involved in this dilemma. In concert with Ramsey Clark's production, the two clearly document Iraqi rule by British policies to the end that the United States and Great Britain could share control of 95% of that nation's petroleum assets. During the Faisal puppet monarchy established by Britain everything was under full Western control. First, young King Faisal II and his family were assassinated during General Abdul Karim Qassim's coup on July 14, 1958. Then, following a string of murders supposedly instigated and planned by the CIA, a "promising, young Ba'ath party enforcer, Saddam Hussein", was installed into power. However, rather than continuing in subjugation to his Western masters, Saddam did the unthinkable—he nationalized Iraqi oil production.

According to Clark's International Action Center production, the country began to climb out of poverty, building up a sound geographic and economic infrastructure. Women were afforded greater rights than in conservative Muslim countries and hunger was virtually eliminated. The video, contrasting scenes taken during King Faisal's reign, with the country as it appeared just prior to Desert Storm, clearly portrays the form changes in Iraq's economic status. But the America/British stranglehold on the oil had been broken up by nationalization which began the US/UK alliance attempting to regain control by enforcement of compliance with UN sanctions—to return Iraq, as it were, to its colonial slavery of 50s.

"The US also reinforced its dominant position, and taught the lesson that the world is to be ruled by force," says Noam Chomsky in *World Orders Old And New*. "Those goals having been achieved, Washington proceeded to maintain 'stability', barring any threat of democratic change in the Gulf tyrannies and lending tacit support to Saddam Hussein as he crushed the popular uprising of the Shi'ites in the South, a few miles from U.S. lines, and then the Kurds in the North.

"But the Bush administration," Chomsky continues, "has not yet succeeded in achieving what its spokesman at the *New York Times*, chief diplomatic correspondent Thomas Friedman calls 'the best of all worlds: an iron-fisted Iraqi junta without Saddam Hussein'. 'This, Friedman writes, 'would be a return to the happy days when Saddam's iron fist...held Iraq together, much to the satisfaction of American allies Turkey and Saudi Arabia', not to speak of the boss in Washington."

According to Chomsky, the war is not an argument over a five-pound sack of anthrax, but a vendetta against Saddam Hussein because he stands in the way of US/UK oil racketeering—bleeding his country of its petroleum. While he ruled as the U.S. dictated, he was in their favor. Now that he refuses to bow at the feet of American demands, Vice President Gore declares he should be declared a war criminal. It does not take close scrutiny by other nations to read their own fate into the Iraqi picture should they refuse to bow to U.S. foreign policy.

On September 11, 1990, in a public appearance, President George Bush hinted at this when he stated, "Our involvement in the Gulf is not transitory. It predated Saddam Hussein's aggression and will survive it. Long after all our troops come home there will be a lasting role for the United States in assisting the nations of the Persian Gulf." What assistance, one may ask, is needed in a region that [rightfully] controls the largest percentage of oil reserves in the world? The assistance Bush commented on is the presence of the U.S. in oil exportation controls hidden under the guise of "keeping the peace".

The question here arises, would we reduce to radioactive dust an entire nation over what appears to be largely or totally imaginary weapons for which no substantial documentation yet exists?

In a Larry King interview with Ambassador and Deputy Prime Minister Tariq Aziz the following conversation took place:

King: "Why do the Americans want to keep the sanctions?"

Aziz: "That is their policy, ask them. I think they are making profits from them, but I do not want to make accusations against them."

King: "Financial profits?"

Aziz: "Yes.

King: "Like how?"

Aziz: "Who's selling oil instead of Iraq? Iraq had a share in the oil market. That share was stopped by the sanctions. Who's selling that?"

King: "Who?"

Aziz: "You know very well that Arabia jumped from five million barrels to eight million barrels a day. [The) three million, Iraqi share has been added to the share of Arabia."

King: "And we would take them [Iraq] to a war front to protect Saudi Arabia making more money?"

Aziz: "No! You are sharing that money. Everyone knows that."

[End quoting]

This sounds very logical. It gives a very good reason for what is going on with Saddam. There's an old saying if you really want to know what is going on in this world, "follow the money trail"—or anything of value associated with money or power.

And don't forget those many boxes of <u>incriminating files</u> Hatonn said Saddam has stashed away—that could pull down the whole NWO scam!!

CHAPTER 6

SOLTEC: ARE YOU RUNNING FROM YOUR TRUE FEELINGS?

4/4/98 SOLTEC

Good afternoon, my friend. It is I, Toniose Soltec, come in the Radiant One Light of Creator Source. Be at peace. And yes, it is correct that you feel a blending of energies present for this writing session.

Though one or another of us will usually assume the authorship of a writing in order to not confuse readers, it would be correct, more often than not, to assume that we work in a "blended energy" fashion where many ones from our realms make contributions as needed and as a specific expertise may be called upon.

Often you ones expect me to focus solely on what YOU understand to be the geophysical aspects of this planetary transition mission—earthquakes, volcanos, etc. And this is understandable from the "drama" and "excitement" associated with these events.

However, how often have I and many others, in many writings past, stated that "ALL is connected to ALL"? Thus it would be wise on your part to assume that even messages and lessons such as "I" am offering here, which SEEM to be unrelated to my scientific command duties, do indeed have a strong, if not readily appreciated, geophysical component. How you ones conduct yourselves in ALL facets of living has a DIRECT impact upon Mother Earth.

All is as it should be! This is perhaps the most compact way to state that all is unfolding in perfection according to God's plan. We of the Higher (vibrational frequency) Realms can observe this as fact, whereas most of you in the physical experience will question and doubt. Such is the way of your world, especially in these times of great challenges.

You will see value in learning to trust that which you can FEEL IN YOUR HEART to be true! Many ignore these heart-felt warnings, for they symbolize responsibility for self.

This is to say that, when ones begin to go within and LISTEN to their own Guidance, they are often fearful of being responsible for that which they "hear" (sense/feel/know). And thus, if they were to act upon these inner nudges, they (in some cases "you") would begin to feel the discomfort of coming out of ignorance and into the knowing that the Guidance has been there all along.

You are NEVER alone! You need NO one and NO thing in order to commune with Father-Mother Source!

This statement, of course, is heresy from the point of view of your mind-controlling organized religions. These tell you that you need the priest (or minister or rabbi or other "authority figure") to act on your behalf. Nothing could be further from the truth, yet is every day presented

to you as such, for the typical religious machinery is a source of great financial profit as well as absolution from personal responsibility.

Rather, you *ALL* should be coming into a more direct awareness of your personal connection with Creator Source. You should all be striving to wean yourselves from depending upon the external guidance of others.

In its healthiest form, this external guidance should only be offered for your use as a means to confirm that which you are already sensing (hearing, receiving, etc.) within. It is fine to utilize a "crutch"; however, it is unwise to become dependent upon that as your only means of support.

In the relatively near future you will be very happy that you have spent time strengthening the necessary "receiving muscles" in order to support self—and others, if need be. Ones who bring forth these public messages will be about their own lessons, and in the times of chaos, they will not have the means to get these words to you for your education, confirmations, or support. What will YOU do then?

Would it not be wise to plan for these times and prepare NOW! The task is not difficult. All you need is a strong and focused desire to do so, and allow for the connection to unfold.

This message is for those of you who refuse to even try. Or, who pretend to try, but really have given up before even starting. You ALL can and will learn to communicate in a direct manner with Creator Source!

Will you all be writing general public messages to the masses? No.

You will, however, benefit greatly by "making the connection" within to Source, and so too will those with whom you interact on a regular basis. This "mutual benefit" is a direct result of the interconnectedness of all of creation.

The question of how to make that Inner Connection to Source has been addressed at great lengths prior to this. You ones would be wise to re-read that which has already been offered on this subject. [Editor's note: "Professor" Soltec is referring to earlier writings in this series which are offered in the volume called, Wisdom Of The Rays: The Masters Teach, Volume I. Information about that collection of writings and how to obtain it is located on page 23 or simply call Phoenix Source Distributors at 1-800-800-5565.]

We of the Hosts of God are here to assist each of you through these times of challenge. You can assist us in doing our job by doing your part to meet us part way. Recognizing the "fear reaction" from the attendant responsibility that is a common initial consequence of the receiving process goes a long way toward that goal of helping us to help you.

There are many of you out there who are able to "hear" us quite well, yet many of you prefer the comfort of what you perceive to be "all" that you can do. So be it, for we are not about force, nor would we coerce any into doing anything. The choice must be YOURS, or it simply will not be.

You each have "gifts" to share with one another. This is to say that you are all unique fragments of Creator Source with your own unique talents and abilities. These "gifts" are meant to be utilized and shared with those in your immediate circle of influence. You all can benefit greatly by establishing a conscious two-way connection between yourself and your Guides.

There is a great level of redundancy in our planning for this phase of the planetary transition mission at hand. Many will not even wake-up to realize that they are indeed part of the team. For those of you who are curious about the actual numbers, there can be as many as three who are "lost" for every one who awakens.

For those of you who have awakened enough to be willing to attend these messages and understand the significance of yourself as a fragment of Creator Source, you would be wise to spend the necessary time it takes to cultivate your inner talents to the best of your perceived ability.

In doing so, many of you will eventually realize that you have been "receiving" (communing with) Higher Guidance most of your conscious life experience. You will also soon realize that what you perceive as your personal limitations are far from what your actual limitations are.

How does one know what their limitations are? Only by surpassing them! You each have infinite potential to create. YOU are your only limitation. As you grow, you will be showing others what is possible if they but effort to understand and develop their own unique gifts.

This brings us around to the reason for your current experiences. You have chosen to experience at this time for very specific reasons. The main reason is for the challenges that you presently have and will face. These challenges, especially ones of perceived hardship, shall serve to cause you ones to go within and decide what YOUR values really are.

Can you live without money? The plants and animals seem to manage without it. Can you survive without your vehicles of transportation? How about without your supermarkets or shopping malls? If you had to walk a mile to simply obtain a bucket of water, could you make it back with the water or would the walk alone "do-you-in"?

The point here is to emphasize that you each have MUCH to learn and to do in order to prepare for the trying times ahead. Thus it would be wise on your part to get moving, and the most important step in that direction is recognizing when FEAR is holding you back from making any progress.

We cannot answer all of the personal questions for each of you through these few who effort to assist in this public manner. BUT—WE *CAN* ANSWER YOUR PERSONAL QUESTIONS IF YOU BUT LEARN TO CONNECT FOR YOURSELF IN THE SAME MANNER AS DO THESE PUBLIC RECEIVERS. Remember that the call *always* compels the answer!

What right do you have to demand of another that they answer your questions if you are not willing to help yourself? They should not, and if they do, then perhaps it is justified that you would have to pay money for their time. Ours (time) is free for the asking!

Again, the point is to get you each to the point of SELF reliance. We will help you, but YOU must do your part!

When you connect directly for self, there is greater patience for all of the personal questions that you can ever imagine. But when you are taking up another's time with YOUR personal questions, we generally will only allow so much before we withdraw. It can be of value to the receiver to experience such questioning for awhile, if the conditions truly warrant the interaction. But, if they will not pull back when becoming a crutch, then eventually we will.

We are grateful for the many who DO commune on a regular basis and we honor your diligence and persistence. The rewards for that which you learn now will last you into all your future experiences.

Enough on this subject, for it has ALL been stated before and you each must learn to be responsible for yourselves. We are here for YOU! Your growth is directly linked to OUR growth. The cycle is infinite and the journey challenging.

My scribe asks: "Don't you get tired of all the excuses we offer up?"

No, not in the sense of "tired" that you would perceive of being tired. We recognize the value in each of Creator's creations and it takes less than a moment to back up and see the Greater Being efforting to learn and grow. It is in that moment when we feel renewed strength and compassion for the one who is, in fact, struggling to comprehend the enormous potentials of their being.

As long as YOU persist, we shall persist alongside you, and it is truly OUR pleasure to do so!

Please also keep in mind that we rejoice when you ones grow past the need for "excuses". When you do so, you will have made an enormous step forward in your own growth, and that means we ALL move forward in our understanding of the Greater Potential of the ALL that is Creation.

We are grateful for the opportunity to serve those of you who reciprocate the gratitude. We are also grateful for those who have chosen to play the role of "adversary" so that the entire (challenging) learning experience can even exist in the first place.

There are no losers in the overall experience. There are those who awaken now, and those who will awaken later. It is but a waiting game, and God has eternity and infinite patience.

It has been stated: "Some of the first (created) will be the last, and some of the last will be the first." You can view the adversary as perhaps one who will choose to be last. Know that he is a very experienced (old) soul who has perhaps chosen the most difficult path back home to Source. We will also assist him when he calls, and he WILL eventually call.

Ponder these words well, for there are insights for you each. I am Ceres Anthonious Soltec. I come in service to and through the One Light of Creator Source, that you might see a bit farther this day.

For each of you who make the effort to become stronger sources of Light yourselves, so too does Mother Earth benefit and rejoice from your contribution to her health. And THAT is my geophysical lesson for today!

Salu.

CHAPTER 7

THE NEW DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 4/11/98

SEEK, YE SHALL FIND— OR SO WE'VE BEEN TOLD

From the INTERNET, 4/98: [quoting]

For the last 50 years, until the fall of the Berlin Wall, "they" have generally been perceived by Americans to be the Russians, or anyone who had anything to do with communism or advocating socialism. They became a convenient scapegoat for anything that fell outside of the "American Dream". They became a vague entity responsible directly or indirectly for our national woes, injustices, economic downfalls and other imperfections. They were someone other than ourselves, other than anyone we trusted or who had control over us. We had all heard about the horCHAPrors imposed by other governments upon their people. We knew they had to be someone else, someone shrouded by ambiguity. We have been spoonfed the notion that no one we have trusted could be "them", and those who believed otherwise were fools or radicals and thus ostracized. Here we will provide you information from which you may draw your own conclusion as to their identity. We ask only that you check your blinders at the door.

ARE YOU READY TO GIVE UP YOUR HOME AND PROPERTY??

(Alert received by "In-Search-Of" news list, VTA, also broadcast on short wave.)

According to documents signed by our federal government, they don't care if you are ready or not. Under the UN plan, over 50% of the United States will be turned into unpopulated areas called "biospheres".

If you think that your land and property can't be seized, read on.

TWO MILLION ACRES IN KENTUCKY AND TENNESSEE TO BE UNPOPULATED; 500,000 PEOPLE TO LOSE THEIR HOMES

According to CNN (Cable Network News) a meeting will be held on March 1, 1997 [sic] at Murray College in Kentucky to discuss the movement of 1/2 million people in 17 counties in Kentucky and Tennessee. A special Congressional committee will hear testimony from ecologists on why this move must be accomplished. Very few from the opposing side will be able to speak on this issue. Homes, businesses, farms and lives will be abandoned should the opposition not be successful. But how can "they" do this? Very few Americans, even environmentalists, know that this change means the end of living in a free society with a decent standard of living.

These ideas were at the heart of the Biological Diversity Treaty that was officially created during the Earth

Summit in Rio de Janeiro in 1992. While this 20-page treaty looked harmless, there are sections that will cause massive changes in your life. In Article 25 there was to be a Global Biodiversity Assessment or GBA. This document of many thousand pages outlines the plans to change the world. In the GBA, the following is stated: "Societies dominated by Islam and especially Christianity have gone farthest in setting humans apart from nature.... In the process nature has lost its sacred qualities." (Section 8,3.5) "Human beings are merely one strand in Nature's web and are no more important than any other living creature. Therefore, the natural way is right, and human activities should be molded along Nature's rhythms." (Section 9.2.3.1.2) Also in the GBA: "Population growth has exceeded the capacity of the earth and to maintain our current global population of 5 to 7 billion people we must reduce our standard of living to that of an agricultural world in which most human beings are peasants. A reasonable population estimate for an industrialized society would be 1 billion people." (Section 9.2.3.2) To summarize other sections of the treaty, a heavy global tax would be levied on agriculture, forestry, mining and golfing. Heavy consumption taxes are to replace income taxes to discourage the use of automobiles, air conditioners and other items deemed non-essential to basic human needs.

* * *

THIS COULD NOT HAPPEN TO ME....COULD IT??

The Shenandoah Valley falls under the Wildlands Treaty, the purpose of which is to turn back the ecology of this area to that of 1890. When will this take place? The UN will not say. Will you lose your home and land? Probably. Is there anything you can do to stop it? Maybe. The biggest tool of this plan is to keep the population ignorant and lazy. Copy this article and then mail, fax, and hand it out to your friends, neighbors and business people. Call or write your County Supervisor, Congressmen, and state legislators as they might not be aware that they can and will lose their job. [End quoting]

How many of us are still saying "It can't happen to us" or "I don't want to get involved—there's nothing I can do, anyhow."? Those who don't get involved very soon are going to really start suffering <u>very soon</u> because of their selfish thinking.

If you really want to do something about it and don't know how—ask God for some help; but don't deny the answers when you get them.

SENIORS SUE OVER MEDICARE

From MIDDLE AMERICAN NEWS, March 1998: [quoting]

Senior citizens are going to court to block implementation of a law that bars physicians from the Medicare system if they privately contract with seniors for treatment outside the system.

The United Seniors Association says that the effect of the law denies Medicare beneficiaries the right to engage medical services privately.

The new law, which went into effect Jan. 1, was passed by the GOP Congress, at the urging of the Clinton

administration. Under its provisions, physicians who accept from Medicare beneficiaries payment for services performed outside the Medicare system must forgo all payments from Medicare for two years.

That means that a physician who agrees to treat even a single Medicare patient outside of the system would be prevented from treating all other Medicare patients.

Kent Masterson Brown, the lawyer for the seniors group, told the *Washington Times* that "the statute violates the liberty of Medicare beneficiaries". He said the problem for seniors is that because most doctors won't want to forgo all Medicare payments, elderly patients will be unable to find physicians willing to provide any services outside the system.

(Brown is the attorney who filed suit to force Hillary Clinton's Health Care Task Force to open its meetings to public scrutiny. He was later audited by the IRS.) [*Just coincidental, of course.*]

Medicare is managed by the federal government through the Health Care Finance Administration, known as HCFA. HCFA restricts which services Medicare will pay for, and how much Medicare is willing to pay. If Medicare won't pay for a certain type of treatment, patients will have to find a doctor willing to take payment outside the Medicare system.

Sandra Butler, president of the seniors' group, said the new law "destroys the doctor-patient relationship".

Sen. John Kyl, R-AZ has introduced legislation to repeal the restriction. [End quoting]

This is the elite's way of **subtly performing euthanasia**. Social medicine at its "finest".

You can bet the elite (many of them are on Medicare, also) won't have to conform to this law; they don't operate any laws of the land.

RENO AND FBI PLAYING HARDBALL FOR MORE WIRETAPPING POWER

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Gail Irwin, 4/4/98: [quoting]

The Justice Department filed a petition Friday (3/27) with the Federal Communications Commission to force phone companies to install new communications equipment that would make it easier for law enforcement to eavesdrop on voice and data conversations. Law enforcement's duty to fight criminal activity, however, slams into an individual's expectations of privacy. And the petition asks for wiretapping powers far above what was specified in the authorizing legislation.

In their request, Attorney General Janet Reno and FBI Director Louis Freeh have proposed that industry embed digital wiretapping capability into all new telecommunications and computing equipment. That capability is centered in the routing systems, which puts voice or data communications through to their destination. The petition asks for the ability to intercept communications of all parties in a conference call, not just the target person; the ability to access call-identifying information, such as the phone number and destination number; and the timely delivery of caller ID information.

But the plan has its critics. Privacy advocates fear the FBI will circumvent wiretapping laws to eavesdrop on people, and communications equipment companies say the cost of embedding the capabilities into their products is too high (an estimated \$500 million.)

At the heart of the debate is the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act (CALEA), a law passed in the midnight hour of the last day of the 104th Congress in 1994, designed to preserve law enforcement's ability to carry out wiretaps over more advanced telephone networks. But the Justice Department says the technology requirements in that law are inadequate for delivering content and call identification in wiretaps, and has asked the FCC to come up with new rules to circumvent the CALEA restrictions by Sept. 28.

Jim Dempsey, senior staff counsel for the Center for Democracy and Technology, said CALEA is supposed to preserve, but not expand, government surveillance capabilities in digital and other new services. "The FBI is trying through technology to get additional information under a lower standard," he said. [End quoting]

Here comes the "clash of titans" as big brother places demands on big business.

PATIENT PRIVACY UNDER ATTACK IN NEW SENATE PROPOSAL

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Gail Irwin, 4/4/98: [quoting]

At a House panel opening hearings on medical records confidentiality last Tuesday (3/24), privacy advocates denounced a new Senate medical records proposal, saying it would license the widespread disclosure of personal medical information held by doctors, hospitals, employers and others. While there are federal privacy protections for video store rental records, there is not a single federal restriction on the disclosure and use of medical records by government agencies, insurers and employers.

The new proposal—drafted by Senators Robert Bennett (R-UT) and Jim Jeffords (R-VT)—would place virtually no restriction on the disclosure of personal medical records by health care providers, public health agencies and state health care databases. It would allow law enforcement agencies easy access to browse computerized medical records, making every citizen's medical records part of a new massive law enforcement database, and preempt state laws that granted more protection to confidential medical records.

"Senators Bennett and Jeffords would allow the transfer of our medical records to many organizations that stand to profit from the information," John Roberts, Executive Director of the ACLU of Massachusetts, said. "Doctor-patient confidentiality would be destroyed as even employers would have access to any of our medical records without our knowledge or consent."

The Bennett-Jeffords proposal is just the latest twist in increasingly complicated maneuvering by Congress, the Clinton Administration, scientists, major businesses and privacy advocates over medical records and who should have access to individual data. The hearing held last week before the House Ways and Means Committee is the latest addition to the fray. [End quoting]

Just what is private these days?

THE MULTICULTURALIST REQUIREMENT FOR TEACHER TRAINING

From MIDDLE AMERICAN NEWS, 4/98: [quoting]

A national commission recommends that anyone who gets a license to teach must first attend a teaching college accredited by NCATE, the National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education. To get NCATE approval, schools must train student teachers in "multicultural and global perspectives". According to Donna Gollnick, NCATE's vice president:

- "Teachers and faculty who provide education that is multicultural:
- * Critically analyze oppression and power relationships to understand racism, sexism, classism, and discrimination...
- * Critique society in the interest of social justice and equality.
- * Participate in collective social action to ensure a democratic society."

Source: "Knowledge Bases for Cultural Diversity in Teacher Education: Meeting the NCATE Standards for Diversity," distributed at the NCATE workshop at the 7th annual conference of the National Association for Multicultural Education, Albuquerque, New Mexico, 1997 [End quoting]

This is part of the elite's plans to do away with the values of the family that are getting in the way of New World Order control over the hard-working middle class. It will be easier for them to finish their goal of enslavement with that accomplished.

DOES "THE ARTHRITIS CURE" WORK?

From *THE SEEKERS*, by Mary Snell, 4/98: [quoting]

The government has finally awakened and now they tell us that there are some vitamins that just might be good for us. How long have we, the people who wanted to use something other than 'drugs', been trying to get their approval? Twenty years or more? Using trumped-up incidents to outlaw various products have let the people suffer. Still many effective products are being withheld, because some foreign manufacturer erred.

Glucosamine and Chondroiton Sulfate, are the two products that have been getting much advertising of late through the media. Usually I am suspicious of those products that are recognized by mainstream media. Both are readily available through healthfood stores. Are they safe and do they work?

The book *Arthritis Cure* by Jason Theodosakis, MD, January '97, made the best seller list in the self-help media. The book's advice, though valuable, is not a cure, and the recommendations are solid but not

novel. Besides taking the supplements, he suggests that one should exercise regularly in order to counteract joint stress. Eat a diet high in antioxidants (Vitamins A,C,E, beta-carotene and selenium, and fish oil).

If necessary shed excess pounds. Maintain a positive attitude, and the attention grabber: take glucosamine and chondroiton sulfate. He is the first American doctor to make a public case for glucosamine. Distinguished doctors worldwide have prescribed it—for one simple reason: People who take it get better. Glucosamine is one of the building blocks of cartilage, the cushiony material that protects bone ends in joints and that osteoarthritis destroys. Effects can be seen in a few weeks. People who take glucosamine have less pain, morning stiffness and swelling and more mobility, according to Dr. Alan Russell, director of Brampton Pain Clinic in Toronto.

One should give it at least eight weeks before giving up on it.

There is no patent, no profit! So no major pharmaceutical company is apt to be interested.

Searching the sources, it is possible to find good products without spending your life's savings.

Chondroiton sulfate like glucosamine is a building block for cartilage, but in addition it inhibits some enzymes that break down cartilage.

Usual dosage is 1500 mg of glucosamine and 1200 mg of chondroiton daily. Half in the morning and half at night, taken with food works better.

More than a year ago I was introduced to these products by Doug Evers, Wisconsin. After taking two bottles, I thought they were not doing any good. I stopped taking them and in a week I realized just how much help I had been receiving. I have been taking them ever since, twice daily. I have not been cured, as the four discs are disintegrated and are pinching a nerve; but I now have little pain during the day and usually have a good night's rest. Friends whom I've recommended them to are also getting positive results.

I checked with a medical doctor in Fall of last year and he gave a clear go-ahead, citing Canadian sources as well.

Check your health products stores and if you think they are too expensive, write me.

I know you have seen MSM advertised a lot and I highly recommend its use as well. It is a sulphur product which most people are deficient in. How many of you have had your tonsils removed? They are a sulphur sac that stops bacteria from entering the body. 'Nuff said? —Mary [End quoting]

I'm not here to push any medical treatment, but when I come across something that I think some may want to try I put it forth for your discernment.

PRESIDENT CLINTON'S SUPPORTERS ARE TRYING TO SAVE HIM

From *MEDIA BYPASS*, 4/98: [quoting]

They are getting on TV and saying he has balanced the budget, he has created 13 million jobs (which are low-paying jobs), and the unemployment rate is lowest that it has been in 20 years. They claim that we have a booming economy, and the crime rate is down, etc.

However, they do not tell you that he broke the law, sold America out to foreign governments and shipped our good-paying jobs overseas to Third-World dictatorships. He has written crime laws that take our God-given rights away. He has cut Medicare so much that our seniors now receive rationed care, which is euthanasia. And abortions have increased. The list is endless, but his cronies will not tell you about this negative side.

Almost all Americans want our president to have character. However, at the present time we have a president who is a character. [End quoting]

It goes to show you what a sad state our nation is in when a person of Bill's track record is actually the better one to have in office compared to Gore and his blatant Zionist agenda.

BONUS FOR BANKS

From *THE MODESTO BEE*, 3/31/98: [quoting]

Banks would get a big bonus under a new bill before the House: Interest payments on cash reserves kept at the Federal Reserve that would reach an estimated \$660 million over five years. A consumer advocate Monday called the little-noticed provision "a clear giveaway to the banks". Jake Lewis, who works on financial issues for activist Ralph Nader, described the Senate's approval last week of \$18 billion for the International Monetary Fund as a "bailout" for big U.S. banks that made bad investments in Asia. Now, with the proposal for interest payments to banks by the Fed, Lewis said, "They're going to turn around and write another check to the banks." [End quoting]

And they'll continue to legally or illegally steal from us until enough of us demand that they stop.

CHANGES AHEAD

From *POPULAR MECHANICS* magazine, April 1998: [quoting]

Masters says his research suggests that traditional approaches to deterring violence need to be reconsidered. The effect of metals and other compounds that damage nerve function may be especially important in explaining why rates of crime have differed so widely by geographical region and by ethnic group, he says. "Our analysis shows that neurotoxic metals significantly contribute to rates of violent crime.

"It's the breakdown of the [brain's] inhibition mechanism that's the key to violent behavior," says Masters. "The presence of pollution is as big a factor [in predicting crime] as poverty."

Some of those who have been following Masters' work—which will be published later this year—believe his findings should become the rallying point for an entirely new approach to violence and crime control. "Perhaps," suggests Michael Zimmerman, a biologist who is also dean of the University of Wisconsin

College of Letters and Science, "conservatives who have long argued that it is time to get tough on crime will now join with environmentalists to get tough on industrial polluters. [End quoting]

It is a well known fact that metals in the wrong form within our bodies can cause all kinds of trouble—and you can be sure the elite play this like a violin.

CRIME PAYS FOR MONEY MANAGERS; MILKEN'S BACK

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/6/98: [quoting]

Now, with Reno in charge, "Wall Street is going the way of Miami," says financial writer William Bowen, a former managing editor of *Fortune* magazine.

"The low crimes and misdemeanors of the Milken years are back—along with the 'Junk King' himself—but this time around no one is being prosecuted for them. The best cover-up is to raise no scandals at all," Bowen commented.

Even a casual scan of the most sober-sided establishment publications tends to bear out Bowen's conclusion, a *SPOTLIGHT* review found.

"Hey, wait a minute!" exclaimed *Forbes* magazine last month, after reporting on the dubious derivatives deals of leading financial houses, including Lehman Brothers, Merrill Lynch, Morgan Stanley, Dean Witter and others. "Isn't this sort of transaction the same as 'parking', the securities fraud the loathsome Ivan Boesky went to jail for?"

Well, these days corporate lawyers take care to structure everything more smoothly, and law enforcement is less stringent, but some of the current business practices on Wall Street "certainly resemble such illegal operations as 'parking', the scam that landed Boesky [one of Milken's bagmen] in prison a decade ago," concluded *Forbes* ruefully.

The result: Bear Stearns & Co., one of the New York Stock Exchange's "Top 10" firms (its executives stand out as the most lavish donors at Israeli fund-raisers) is under criminal investigation this month in a huge fraud case that involves the "parking" of stock—that is, placing bundles of shares in shell accounts to manipulate their price—with resulting losses to hundreds if not thousands of unwitting small investors.

"A whole generation of younger money managers is looking at this jungle of graft, theft and parasitic greed, thinking: 'Crime does pay'. It does not bode well for our nation's future," reflected Bowen. [End quoting]

Milken's got enough money and savvy that they'll keep him going, somehow—too many people feeding off his deals.

GLOW IN THE DARK

From *POPULAR MECHANICS*, Mar. 1998: [quoting]

One of the hottest developments in next-to-skin technical clothing comes from Malden Mills, the company that produces Polartec fleece. The new product, Flashback, reflects light back to its source, providing walkers, runners and bikers with an added degree of safety at night.

There are other reflective garments, of course. But unlike most, Flashback is undetectable when there's no light shining on it. So if you wear it during the day or ride your bike to the movies, the garment will appear completely normal. But out on the street on a dark night, it'll light up as soon as approaching cars shine their headlights on it.

The technology that makes Flashback work are tiny glass microspheres applied to the fabric. When light hits the microspheres, it's reflected right back to the source. Others can only see the glowing effect if they're perfectly aligned with the light source. So oncoming traffic can see you, but you don't light up like a Christmas tree every time you pass a street lamp.

Controlled spacing of the microspheres ensures that the fabric can still breathe and stretch, providing comfort and ease of movement. [End quoting]

4,500 LOBOTOMIES REPORTED IN SWEDEN

From *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 4/6/98: [quoting]

STOCKHOLM, Sweden—Children as young as 7 years old were lobotomized in Sweden and many people were subjected to the controversial surgery without relatives' permission, according to a new report.

Some 4,500 people—twice as many as previously reported—were lobotomized in Sweden from 1944 to 1963, said the study, conducted by state SVT television. The report was summarized Sunday by the Swedish news agency TT.

The report is the latest to show a dark side to Sweden's widely admired medical and social services network. Last year, the country squirmed under international media attention after reports that some 60,000 people were involuntarily sterilized from 1935 to 1976. [End quoting]

I remember how they were always pushing their system of medical care—that in itself should have told us it was a rotten system. The elite don't push something that is good for us.

NEWSCLIPS

USAF PILOTS

From *MILITARY* magazine, 4/98: [quoting]

With 100 to 300 aircraft involved in peacekeeping operations enforcing the Iraqi no-fly zones, a price in pilot skills is paid in terms of combat readiness. These slow turn, routine operations do not allow pilots to

maintain the skill required for air combat. The USAF says it takes about two to three months of training after pilots leave the peacekeeping routine, to get them ready for air combat again.

NEW TWO-WAR STRATEGY

The Pentagon now says the military will be ready to fight two regional conflicts that are 45 days apart. Our enemies need to comply with this schedule.

101ST FAILING

In two mock battles last November at Fort Irwin, CA, the 101st lost all of their helicopters during a "deep-strike-mission" against the opposition force (OPFOR). This aviation unit led the ground assault during the Gulf War with spectacular results.

PILOT SHORTAGE

The USAF likes to point out they are dealing with the pilot retention problem (77% in 1997 compared to 89% in 1995) by placing more people in flight school. The problem now is the loss of experience.

CYPRIOT AIRBASE

The opening of a new airbase for the Greek air force near the coastal city of Paphos on Cyprus was called a "hostile investment" by the Turkish-Cypriot president... one step closer to war between Greece and Turkey, which could spread. [End quoting]

After reading the above do you feel safe in your bed at night??

MORE ON MURDOCH'S MEDIA

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/6/98: [quoting]

HarperCollins, a Rupert Murdoch-owned book publisher, has been lashed again over Murdoch's Red China policy. In a public letter by renowned author and historian Nikolai Tolstoy, a regular book reviewer for the Publisher, he wrote: "With the honorable exception of Stuart Proffitt, the editorial board of HarperCollins is committed to implementing a censorship imposed by its owner, designed to protect and promote the interests of the present genocidal and totalitarian regime oppressing the people of China." [End quoting]

China is the "sleeping giant" waiting to strike.

STARR STUDDED

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/6/98: [quoting]

Predictions are always chancey, but *The SPOTLIGHT* has been told on very good authority that special

prosecutor Kenneth Starr will bring a criminal indictment against Hillary Clinton for her "Whitewater mislawyering" within 60 days. At the same time or shortly thereafter, he will present the huge dossier he and his staff have prepared bearing on the president's "high crimes and misdemeanors" to Rep. Henry Hyde (R-Ill.) chairman of the House Judiciary Committee, which will obligate Hyde to start the wheels moving for Clinton's impeachment. [End quoting]

So, who do we have to replace the Clintons?

SENATE VENOM

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/6/98: [quoting]

In a 93-0 vote, senators approved a nonbinding resolution asking the UN to prosecute Saddam Hussein for "war crimes". Majority Leader Trent Lott (R-Miss.) wants to "someday have an Iraq without Saddam Hussein", and Sen. Byron Dorgan (D-N.D.) called Hussein "a dangerous, unrepentant criminal". Sen. Arlen Specter (R-Pa.) said, "We should review our policy on not killing international leaders." When someone says those things about our leaders, Specter and his congressional cohorts call it "terrorism". [End quoting]

These <u>murderers</u> (for their complicity in the starving of the people in Iraq) have tremendous nerve to call for this action. Talk about a Zionist-controlled Congress!

PUBLIC ACCLAIM

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/6/98: [quoting]

Mayor Diane Haskett of London, Ontario, Canada, refused to declare a gay pride day in her city against demands of the Human Rights Tribunal (of Canada). Instead she defied the order and took an unpaid leave of absence. She was re-elected in a landslide victory. [End quoting]

Ohh for the time when many thousands will stand up against these gangster-elites—who are enslaving us—in the best way they **reasonably** can.

RED CROSS SERVICE

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/6/98: [quoting]

The American Red Cross, financed with contributions and headed by Elizabeth Dole, has a little known department called Holocaust Survivor Tracing, which caters to just what its title describes. [End quoting]

Do you still give your money to this elite charity ripoff—set up from the beginning by the Rothschilds, whose name derives from the red shield—red cross—to rip us off?

MY PROOF OF SURVIVAL
Write To Your Mother

From *FATE* magazine, Jan. 1998: [quoting]

When I was 21 years old I found out that I had not been raised by my birth mother and father.

I asked my parents about this, but all they would tell me was the area where they had lived when they had taken me in. I decided that it would be best to leave it be.

About 12 years later, I was at home late at night when all at once I had a strange feeling of urgency, of something important that I had to do. At first I shrugged it off. Then I suddenly went right to the telephone and called the main public library in Dallas, where I lived. I blurted out that I wanted to get a list of the Helen Wagners in Long Branch, New Jersey, where I was born. I remember being asked what county that was in, and out of my mouth came the name of a county that I have no knowledge of ever being in. I can't recall ever thinking about trying to get in touch with my mother. But this night I needed to find her.

The gentleman at the library gave me three listings for the name Helen Wagner. I wondered just what I planned to do with them. I tried to think about something else, but I couldn't ignore the voice in my head telling me to write to these people and find if one of them was my birth mother. It seemed I had no choice. So I sat down and wrote a letter to each. I gave my birthdate and address and asked each woman that if she were my mother to please write and let me know.

Three days later, my husband and I were at home when I got butterflies in my stomach and knew something enormous was about to happen. Someone came to our door, and there was a telegram addressed to me from New Jersey. With shaky hands I opened the telegram, which had a phone number and a request that I call it immediately. I managed to dial the number and a woman answered.

I couldn't believe it. I was talking to my birth mother for the first time in my life. But what she told me put goose bumps all over my body. Three days earlier, my aunt had been on her death bed. She told my mother that if there was any way possible, when she crossed over she would get in touch with me and have me write to her. She died a few hours later—at the same time that I had the urge to find my mother.

I have to thank the aunt I never knew about for bringing my mother and me together after all those years.

—Carole Lee Gentle, Elwood, Indiana [End quoting]

What wonderful experiences God allows us to have, if we recognize His Hand in our lives.

CHAPTER 8

THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON AN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS PART X IN A SERIES by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98

Editor's note: The following continues this series from Calvin Burgin. As he explains in a footnote, Heptameron means: **Heptameron** (hep-tam'-e-rön): "a book or treatise containing the actions of seven days, in the style of Boccaccio's Decameron or the Heptameron of Queen Margaret of Navarre (1492-1549)."

EARLY EUROPEAN HISTORY

We are taught in history class that before Rome and the Catholic Church "civilized" Britain and Europe, it was inhabited by stone age barbarians and much was empty forests. This is utter nonsense. If we were not taught the truth, then what was the truth?

When Rome invaded Britain, it was never able to completely defeat Britain. The best trained, biggest armies of the Roman Empire were repeatedly stopped or defeated. Wales and Ireland were never conquered, and part of England was never defeated. Pretty good, don't you think, for a bunch of stone age barbarians?

During one invasion, the British pendragon (supreme commander) was a Welch king called Caradoc. The Romans were never able to defeat him, but a jealous cousin of his betrayed him to the Romans and they captured him and his family in their sleep. The Romans still were never able to defeat the remaining British army.

They took Caradoc to Rome, where he gave a speech to the Roman Senate in perfect Latin! Caradoc was not only highly educated in the Celtic schools of Britain (a course which took 20 years to complete), but he had also been educated at Rome! The Romans were so impressed that they immediately released him on parole.

Far from being uncivilized, Europe and Britain were some of the most civilized areas on earth, just as they are today (if your definition of "civilization" is liberal). The true history of those areas was taught in the schools and universities down through the centuries until the early 1800s, at which time "Higher Criticism" became the vogue and history was rewritten to suit modern fancy.

Keep in mind that this is not my version of history, I am merely making you aware of documents that exist and what they say. You decide for yourself what you want to believe, based on the evidence. Modern historians do not give you all the evidence, so that you cannot determine the whole truth.

ABRAHAM IN EUROPE!

Over 30 years ago, I learned of a book called *Oesterreichische Chronic*, or the *Austrian Chronicle*. It is a history of the Danube Valley in the areas of Austria, Bohemia, Bavaria and Hungary and nearby regions. My minister, a German American that spoke and read German and English, located a copy (there were only a few copies scattered around Europe and it had never been translated into English). He abstracted the information out of it and that is where my information came from.

The book begins with Abraham of the *Bible*, and ends with the Hapsburg Dynasty at 1404 A.D.!

The ancient Greek name for the Danube River was the River Noe (Noe is simply Greek for the Hebrew word Noah). Noah was the patriarch of the whole surviving human race. In ancient records he is sometimes known as Janus, who had two faces, one before the Flood and one for after the Flood. Noah's authority passed to Shem, and then on down the generations. Terah was eighth in descent from Shem (*Gen. 11:26*). This is a problem scripture for some, as close examination will reveal that there were more than eight generations. But what the *Bible* is saying is that Terah was the 8th Patriarch.

Terah had three sons: Haran, Abram, and Nahor (*Gen. 11:26*). Haran, the oldest son, died before his father did (*Gen. 11:28*), so the Patriarchy passed to Abram (who later became Abraham). Abram was a "mighty prince" (*Gen. 23:6*) and inherited much property. However, God called him to leave and go to "a land that I will show thee" (*Gen. 12:1-4*).

Abraham had a wife named Sarah, and "concubines" (plural, 2 or more) (*Gen. 25:6*). The concubines (live-in girlfriends) are not named, except Keturah (*I Chron. 1:23*), whom he later married after Sarah died. Abraham sent them away to prevent trouble after Isaac was born. V. 6: "But unto the sons [plural] of the concubines [plural], which Abraham had, Abraham gave gifts, and sent them away from Isaac his son, while he yet lived, eastward, unto the east country."

According to the *Austrian Chronicle*, Abraham was born under the reign of the Assyrian Count Sattan of Aligem. Later, Abraham "took to wife Susanna from the land of Samam, the daughter of Terromant and his wife Sanyet." Susanna was usually considered to be one of the concubines.

"Abraham and Susanna had a son Achaim."

"Abraham of Temonaria and Count Sattan of Aligemorum had war with each other, till Abraham was driven from the land in poverty." It was in this war that Haran was killed. According to the *Chronicle*, Abraham fled to the Danube River Valley in 1945 B.C. He built a home and lived there three years, until Count Sattan died. He then took Susanna and Achaim and went to the area we now call Palestine, in 1942. In Isaac's second year, Abraham sent Susanna and Achaim "eastward" back to Assyria. Susanna and Achaim then went back to their former home in the Danube River Valley.

Achaim, being a first born son, retained some patriarchal authority.

The *Chronicle* contains a complete list of rulers from Abraham down to the Hapsburg Dynasty. The list begins with Abraham, ruled 30 years, 1945-1915 B.C.

Next, Susanna and Achaim depart and return to the Danube Valley, where she ruled for 19 years, 1915-

1896.

Achaim, Abraham's son, married a Hungarian countess named Nannaym. They had four children: daughter Volim, daughter Rawlint, son Laptan, and daughter Remmanna. He ruled 45 years, 1896-1851.

I will not try to list all the names, but the list continues to Peyman, who married a Hungarian duchess named Lanna. They had three sons: Nannan, Gennan, and Saptan. He ruled 48 years, 756-708 B.C. During this time, in the 14th year of King Hezekiah (711-710 B.C) of Judah, Sennacherib of Assyria attacked Hezekiah and took many Jews captive (*II Kings 18:13*). Some of them escaped and came to the Danube River Valley, where Gennan, son of Peyman, was ruling.

The Jews converted Gennan to Judaism! It was easy to convert him, since he was a descendant of Abraham. Since he was king, he gave the order that the whole country convert and be circumcised! Presto! Instant Jews! Be aware that these became religious and cultural Jews, but were not racial Jews, sort of like Sammy Davis Jr. The people over whom Gennan ruled were of Turkish stock, called Khazars. The country continued to be Jewish until Manton was defeated in 271 AD and was forced to become "pagan".

Arthur Koestler (*The Thirteenth Tribe*) and Benjamin Friedman (*Facts Are Facts*) are two of the many Jews who have written about these non-racial Jews of Central Europe. They spread all over Europe and into Russia, and in fact most of the people claiming to be Jews and claiming Israel as their ancestral heritage today are in fact not even Jews, as these authors point out. These "Jews who are not Jews" as the *Bible* terms them, have set up a system called Zionism by which they intend to set up a worldwide government with them in control. That is what his "New World Order" is all about, but since the Zionists control the news media, the publishing industry, all TV and radio, etc., they are one of the main forces behind the suppression of true history and the true identity of the nations.

The man who defeated Manton was the famous Odin or Wodin, who was king of the Saxons from 256-300. He and the Saxons lived above the Black Sea in an area that was called Sycthia, Dacia, and includes modern Romania. Rome invaded Dacia and Odin led numerous tribes from that region into northern Europe. This Odin was Odin II.

The original Odin, Odin I, was later deified and is now considered to be mere myth. But a real Odin existed and was famous for his exploits. He became first King of Denmark at the time when David was King of Israel. He visited Solomon's Temple (2 *Chron. 9:23*). He was the first King of Denmark to cross the Atlantic Ocean. If you remember, I have shown that the ancient Mayan records claim that their empire was founded by Odin and that he moved them across the Atlantic and resettled them in Central America. That is a pretty strange claim for Mayan Indians to make about a European myth, unless it were in fact true.

Later, others adopted the name or title of Dan, Wodan, Odin (related to the word Adoni, which means Lord). Our word "Wednesday" comes from "Wodensday" and is another hint that we are related to these people.

GENEALOGY OF ODIN

Let's look closer at this Odin I (Dan, Woden, Votan, etc.) The old records reveal some very interesting

information about him.

The ancient records say that the Tower of Babel incident occurred in 2254 B.C. We are told God put a stop to that attempt to establish a one world government. In the same year, Noah gave the order (again—he had told them earlier but many rebelled) for the people of various languages and races to disburse, he told them where to go and in some cases he or Shem led them to their new locations and set up their new leadership. This was the time of "...Peleg (Division) because the inhabitants of the earth were divided up in his day...." (I Chron. 1:19, Moffatt).

The Chinese begin their history with 2254 (They are the only nation to have an official, unbroken record of the kings/emperors from the Tower of Babel to modern times. This is a result of their belief in ancestor worship.) The Dynasty I of Thinis in Egypt began in 2254. Porus, the first Chaldean king after the Tower of Babel, began his reign in 2254. Mizraim, the father of the Egyptians, began his reign at Zoan in 2254. Cush began the 1st Dynasty of Uruk in Mesopotamia in 2254.

In 2254, Shem took a group of people into middle Europe and settled them. He ruled for 60 years, and was known as the great Teacher (Tuitsch). All the ancient German chronicles say this Tuitsch was son of Noah, and father of Mannus (the Assyrian Ninus). Mannus had a son, Trebeta, who built Trier, the first town in Germany and the oldest in Europe. Since the *Bible* calls Ninus "Asshur", then the father of Asshur was Shem. This great teacher was called Tuitsch, later Deutsch, his land was called Deutschland, which we call in English, Germany.

Mannus is German and Ninus is Assyrian, both meaning "strength".

In Trier is an inscription which reads, "Trier existed for 1300 years before Rome was rebuilt."

The Saxon Chronicle and the Icelandic Langfedgatal give the following genealogy of Odin: Saturnis of Krit, who had son Jupiter, who had son Darius, who had son Erichthonius, who had son Troes, who had son Ilus, who had son Lamedon, who had son Priam (King of Troy), who had son Memnon or Minon, who married Priam's daughter. Their son was Thor (Tror), the father of Hloritha. Thor had son Einridi, who had son Vingener, who had son Moda, who had son Magi, who had son Odin among whose titles was Seskef or Sescef, "the Sheaf" or saviour that represented the Messiah (Leviticus 23:9-14).

Now why would Odin claim a title and ceremony from the writings of Moses?

Who is Saturnus of Krit? Saturn is Latin and Kronos is Greek for "one who flees into hiding". There were several different Saturns. But this Saturn of Krit (Crete) is identified by the ancient Phoenician historian Sanchoniathon: "For Kronos [Saturn], whom the Phoenicians call Israel...." (*Corey's Ancient Fragments of the Phoenician, Carthaginian, Babylonian, Egyptian and other Authors*, by E. Richmond Hodges, page 21)!

How did Israel become identified with Crete? Pharaoh gave the Nile Delta area to Israel, extending out to include Crete, according to the ancient records! Jacob/Israel was known for his fleeing into hiding (*Gen. 27:43; Gen. 31:22*) and fleeing into Egypt.

Caphtor is Hebrew for Crete. Mizraim was father of the Egyptians, and from him came the people of Crete, who later became the Philistines (for proof read *Gen. 10:13-14; Jer. 47:4* and *Amos 9:7*. Also *I Chron. 1:12*, Moffatt).

So the genealogy of Odin is thus: Saturnus of Krit (Israel or Jacob, 1856-1709 BC); Jupiter (Judah), son of Saturn; Darius, descendant of Judah (this is the Dara or Darda of I Chron. 2:4, 6, called Dardanus by Josephus (ruled 1477-1412).

Darda went from Egypt to Italy and then he founded Troy and became its first king.

Erichthonius (1412-1366), second king of Troy.

Troes, Tros (1366-1326), third king of Troy.

Ilus, Illus (1326-1277), fourth king of Troy.

Lamedon, Laomedon (1277-1233), fifth king of Troy.

Priam, Priamus (1233-1181), king of Troy during the first Trojan War. There were three major Trojan Wars. Historians and archaeologists lump them together into one and then wonder why nothing seems to fit properly. If they would just read the old records, they could correct their mistake.

The line continues as listed above to Seskef, Odin I, (1040-999). So Odin was a descendant of Abraham and Judah. He ruled over not only Denmark, but all Scandinavia, Iceland, Greenland, some of Britain and some of THE NEW WORLD.

The following information comes from Anderson's *Royal Genealogies* and *Universal History*, *From the Earliest Account of Time*, 20 volumes, published in London in 1747 (vol. xviii).

Asia Minor was first settled by children of Tarshish. They later migrated to Spain, where they founded Tartessus. Later they migrated to the British Isles, which, in the *Bible*, are called the Isles of Tarshish.

The destruction of the Tower of Babel occurred in 2247 B.C. or 2254 B.C. Peleg was born in 2268 BC. One of the sons of Eber (later called Hebrew) was Peleg. *Gen. 10:25:* "the name of one was Peleg; for in his days was the earth divided." In 2261, Noah divided up the earth among his descendants and ordered them to go to their assigned locations. Nimrod rebelled, and tried to unite all the tribes under his rule and started building the Tower of Babel. According to this story, God would not allow that union and came down and confused their language and destroyed Babel.

Noah had son Japeth who had son Tubal (*Gen. 10:2*). Noah sent his grandson Tubal to Asia Minor (Turkey) where he ruled for 156 years, from 2254-2098 BC. Another son of Japeth was Javan, who had son Tarshish.

Iberus, son of Tubal reigned 37 years, from 2098-2061 BC. Later his descendants migrated to Spain which is still called the Iberian Peninsula.

Eubalda (or Idubeda), son of Iberus, ruled 64 years from 2061-1997 BC. He was last of the line of Tubal to reign over the children of Tarshish.

Brigus, son of Mash, the son of Aram (*Gen. 10:23*), ruled 52 years from 1997-1945 BC. He previously settled a colony in Eastern Europe under Asshur, then led a colony to Spain by sea. Damascus, Syria, was named after his father Mash, and Aram was father of the Aramaic tribes. He organized his people into pastoral units, and from the name Brigus (Brigo) we get our word brigades. His colonies multiplied so rapidly that some had to leave. Some went to Phrygia and associated with Meshech, brother of Tubal. The descendants of Brigo's father, Mash, became known by the name Meshech (*I Chr. 1:17*).

The family of Togarmah, son of Gomer, brought a colony into Spain and ruled for 30 years, from 1945-1915. The Latin writer lists him as Tagus Ormah. The Tagus River of Southern Spain was named for him. A year after becoming king he sent a colony to Italy.

Bet(us) (Latin writers usually add *us* to a name) ruled 32 or 31 years, 1915-1883 or 1884 BC. He was son of Togarmah. The Bet(us) River was named after him (now called Guadalquivir).

A Lybian, Gerion or Deabus, invaded and conquered Spain and forced the Spanish to dig gold for their African overlords. The children of Bet that escaped migrated and finally settled in Tibet, which means the plateau of Bet!

Gerion was a giant. The ancient histories say he was the seventh generation from Ham. He descended through Cush, Saba (the Seba of *Gen. 10:7*), Gog, Triton, Ammon and Hiarba (the Biblical Arba of *Joshua 15:3*, who was the father of the Anakim giants).

Three giant sons of Gerion ruled 42 years, from 1849-1807. They were allowed to continue to rule under an Egyptian army which invaded in 1849 and killed Gerion. The Egyptian army was under Osyris Denis (called in Greek, Dionysis).

A part of the tribe of Gerion escaped and fled west, in 1849 BC. The Toltec historian tells of the arrival of giants in Central America the year that corresponds to our 1849 BC! See Bancroft, *Native Races of the Pacific States*, vol. V, p. 209.

I remember reading, many years ago, a book about a husband and wife who went into the Central American jungle to investigate the ruins, where they lived off the land for years. One thing they told about was finding a grave with a ten-foot skeleton in it. I no longer remember the name of the book.

INTEREST IN ATON IS BACK! HOW I FOUND ODIN/ATON

I have always had a compulsion to discover the truth. Early on, I was draft-exempt from the military as a student minister. But what I was learning so confused and upset me, I finally rebelled and joined the military.

Over the years, off and on I continued studying religion, searching for something. As I learned more about

religion and the *Bible*, I found more and more problems. Eventually I mostly gave up and went into a very negative period of my life. I asked God for guidance, for answers, for truth, but God would not answer.

In the meantime, this local disc-jockey kept coming by and asking me about flying saucers. That was a subject I had always considered to be a snake-pit, full of demons. I did not want to get involved. Then one day he told me about a date he had with a girl who said she was pregnant by a space alien. He believed that about as much as you or I would, but he figured, if she plays around with aliens, maybe there is a chance for me so he went over to her apartment one evening. She took him out on the patio and pointed out a bright star. She said the baby's father was there, and he watches over her. She had a flashlight and said, "watch this" and flashed the light at the star. THE STAR FLASHED BACK.

My disc-jockey friend decided he did not want to stay around after all, and later came back to ask me once again about UFOs. In the meantime, I had a customer who was a retired Lt. Colonel in the Air Force, who was dying of cancer. He told me that his unit had been involved in the recovery of a crashed alien vehicle which they moved to a cold-hanger in Minot, North Dakota. He said there were several little grey alien beings dead in the vehicle.

I finally decided, maybe I should check into this flying saucer thing. I went to a local new-age book store that also rented videos. They had about 20 or 30 videos on flying saucers and related subjects, so I rented one or two, every day or two, until I had seen them all. I also went to used-book stores, Goodwill stores, garage sales, etc., and bought every cheap, used UFO book I could find, and when necessary I bought some new books from the new-book stores.

The new-age book store had a selection of books called the *Phoenix Journals*. They covered a fascinating array of subjects. I looked in the indices and tables of contents and saw that they covered exactly the subjects I was wondering about, yet when I looked up the reference they often had only a paragraph or two on that subject. It was frustrating, yet those paragraphs contained a lot of information.

The young man who worked at the book store, when he saw that I was so interested in the videos, made me aware of the *Journals*. He said that he had a hard time getting the book store to carry the *Journals*. The store was proud of the fact that they did not censor books, but in the case of the *Phoenix Journals*, they made an exception and did not want to carry them. He pointed out their inconsistency to them and pressured them into buying a large selection. I was busy with the videos and could not make up my mind whether I wanted to spend \$10 per book for some scanty, questionable material. Yet they did have a lot of "politically incorrect" material, which I already knew to be true, and I was surprised that a UFO group would be involved with that.

After looking at all the videos, and buying some elsewhere that the store did not carry, I saw that the best videos on UFOs were the ones that told of Billy Meier in Switzerland. Meier had great photos of flying saucers, called beamships, that had posed for him. He actually talked face-to-face with the extra-terrestrials! I learned of a man named George Green, who had joined up with Billy Meier. Meier was having so much trouble with disinformation specialists and attempts on his life, that he decided to stop being involved so much in the UFO community. In the meantime, Green said the Meier alien ships were shifting their focus to a lady in Tehachapi, California, who was putting out the *Phoenix Liberator* (now *CONTACT*) newspaper and some books called the *Phoenix Journals*.

Green did not appear to me to be someone I could trust. My personal opinion was that this man appeared to be a con man or government disinformation agent. Yet he was saying things that I knew to be true, things that very few people knew. He was also saying some outrageous things that no ordinary man would say, yet he said the information came from the extra-terrestrials. This situation needed closer checking.

The friend at the book store gave me a copy of a *Phoenix Liberator* newspaper. I had seen one once before, but had decided that it was demonic. Yet I was wondering how come these demons are telling the truth, and the church crowd was lying? I also noticed that some of the *Journals* advertised in the newspaper were being suppressed, which I knew was a sure sign of truth being involved. Some of the *Journals* were out of print, but the book store still had them. So I bought one each of all the titles the store had before they were sold out and gone. I subscribed to the newspaper. I got three of George Green's videotapes.

Soon the friend at the store disappeared (quit? fired?) and the *Journals* were gone. But I began doing a lot of reading, and eventually bought and read all the *Journals*. I called the newspaper, which had changed its name to *CONTACT*, and asked how much it would cost to get all the back issues. They told me and I said here is my credit card number. I read all the newspapers. Now if I could only remember what I read.....

I learned that *CONTACT* newspaper was having hard times because George Green stole a large batch of gold from a man named David Overton. Overton had made arrangements for *CONTACT* to use the gold. David Overton? Why, that was my customer! I (and my partner) sold Overton that gold! I was shocked, about as shocked as Dave was next time he came by and I told him I had just learned about his situation with *CONTACT*. He said, "you take CONTACT?!!!!"

In church I had been taught that Egypt was Biblically represented as a type of sin. "Come ye out of Egypt" as Moses and Israel had done, which meant "Come out of sin". I was taught about the *Old Testament* Holy Days, which represented being in sin (Egypt) and coming out of sin (Exodus) with the help of miracles (Passover), being forgiven for your sins (Day of Atonement), etc. I won't bore you with doctrinal details, but as I began to see that what the church was teaching was not right, often it seemed that the truth was opposite what they were teaching, I suspected Egypt might have more importance than I had realized. After all, Abraham, Joseph, Moses, etc. were Egyptians.

And then here was this *CONTACT* newspaper with an extraterrestrial named Hatonn who represented the God of Light called Aton in Egypt. This had to be a demon—at least, from the church viewpoint, except I was already learning that the church viewpoint just did not add up and was often flat wrong. This was a situation that definitely needed more investigation.

I had years of background learning on Rockefeller/Rothschild and related "politically incorrect" material. I knew in a general way who was ruling the world, and I also knew that THEY SAID they answered to a higher power that they often openly named Lucifer. They had a Lucifer Trust, for instance, which is now called Lucis Trust. They had their Skull and Bones societies and such.

One of the authorities and experts on archaeology, a founding father of archaeology, was James Henry Breasted. I have quoted him often in this book. I used to love to read publications of the Oriental Institute,

which was founded by Breasted, the first American to receive a Ph. D. in Egyptology. The Oriental Institute has an Internet site that currently says: "Breasted received support and encouragement from John D. Rockefeller, Jr. who, in 1919, funded The Oriental Institute as a laboratory for the study of the rise and development of ancient civilization. In 1931, through the generous financial support of John D. Rockefeller, Jr., the Oriental Institute moved into new permanent headquarters...."

The *Dead Sea Scrolls* had also been taken over by the Rockefeller crowd and were secreted away in the Rockefeller Museum in Israel. I always suspected that the Rockefeller crowd Overlords were hiding something and keeping our true history from us (I had plenty of evidence for my suspicions).

I read material from Billy Meier such as the *Contact Notes of Eduard Billy Meier, Message From The Pleiades #3* which reported Meier's conversations with the extraterrestrials, especially one called Semjase.

Here are some quotes from the book: "...journalists of Earth are very stubborn and uneducatable, like the trained scientists" (p. 51).

One of their bases was "Agharta Alpha is located several hundred meters of depth below the surface of the Gobi Desert" (p. 61). I put that in here because I have a Navy intelligence friend who was stationed underground in the desert in Morocco—he will find this quote interesting.

Page 69 tells of our forefathers from the Vegan system going to the Pleiadian stars. Page 120 tells of the Flood that destroyed Atlantis and sunk it under the Atlantic Ocean in 9498 B.C. (if I understand their counting). Two later Floods are mentioned on p. 131. Page 215 tells of secret "elements of an Israeli command" and Zionists that were murdering people to suppress the truth, including the man and his family that had discovered the document that became know as *The Talmud Of Jmmanuel* (quoted earlier).

Page 259 tells of the Hebrews being the dregs of society, always eager to rob, burn, and murder, "who proclaimed themselves the first-born people and the chosen ones, as their descendants, the Jews of today, still dare to pretend this." The next page tells of the secret rooms and buildings "deep below the present Gizeh-Pyramid".

In discussing the problems of this world, on page 281 Semjase says: "The guilt therefore is in the main the nation of Israel and the states supporting it."

Dear readers, people in Hot Springs, Arkansas, say William Clinton is a Jew, the illegitimate son of Winthrop Rockefeller. Hillary Rodham is a Jewess, one of her relatives is a rabbi. Most of the leaders of our government, our news and entertainment media, and on and on, are Jews. And here is a group of Pleiadean extra-terrestrials who are the most solidly documented group of all the UFO contacts and are also the most suppressed of all—who are saying that these fake Jews are leading us into destruction! UFO investigators are convinced the government is suppressing the truth about "aliens" and they speculate it is to protect us from being too shocked, to protect our churches and cultures, and now the general story is it is to protect us from these alien monsters that might want to eat us. This is government-sponsored control and disinformation garbage.

The "aliens" are very real. They are our Founding Fathers and family. They are from God. And NOW

you know why the government is suppressing the truth about "flying saucers". The government knows that the so-called "aliens" will expose the horrid crimes of our leaders!

I used to be a member of MUFON, the Mutual UFO Network. It is the largest group that is supposedly investigating UFOs. It is in fact a CIA-controlled operation, a fact easily proven if you look at who runs it and who his friends are. MUFON investigates all UFO-type material (and suppresses all the real stuff). They discuss all the various UFO publications and attend all the UFO conferences. All, that is, except *CONTACT*. They do not even mention *CONTACT*, it is forbidden to bring it up, and if someone does, they are quickly squelched as "bigots, freaks, weirdos, crackpots, right wing nuts", everything they can think of except the truth.

The "Watchers" have always been around, "watching". You may find this interesting: At the time of the destruction of Jerusalem around 70 AD, Josephus reported: "Thus there was a star resembling a sword, which stood over the city, and a comet, that continued a whole year." He tells of great lights that showed up, and "before sun-setting, chariots and troops of soldiers in their armour were seen running about among the clouds [in the sky], and surrounding of cities" (he explains he is talking about "prodigious phenomena")—see *Wars of the Jews*, Book VI, #2 & 3. There are many, many more similar events in history.

<u>INTEREST IN</u> AKHENATON IS BACK

Who was the first identifiable, verifiable person in history?

This is a question that can be argued. Some may say it was Adam. There is no proof that Adam and Eve ever existed, other than from the *Bible*, and if you use religious writings, there are other candidates for the distinction.

According to the *Bible*, one of the earliest civilizations was the Egyptian, and there were important connections between Biblical characters and the Egyptian pharaohs. The most popular stories are those such as have to do with the Pharaoh and Abraham's wife, and with Joseph interpreting the Pharaoh's dreams. If there is any truth to these Biblical stories, then one might expect to find some verifications in Egyptian history.

According to *Genesis 41:43*, Joseph became the ruler of all Egypt, second in command under the Pharaoh himself. Pharaoh gave Joseph the name "Zaph-nath-paneah" (v. 45). Linguists have shown that the "Seph" of Jo-seph and the "Zaph" may have anciently been the same word (IO-SEPH). Joseph married the daughter of Potiphera, priest of On. The city of On was dedicated in honor of the On or One God, the God of Light, represented by the Sun, and later became known as Heliopolis. ON is also confused with NO, who was Noah, High Priest of the Sun God. Jeremiah called it "Beth-shemesh, that is in the land of Egypt" (*Jere. 43:13*); Beth-shemesh also means "house of the sun" and in addition means "house of Shem", (Shem was also High Priest in Noah's place).

Higgins, writing in 1830, Vol. 1, p. 502, explains that "paneah" meant "Phoenix". The complete name of *CONTACT* newspaper is *CONTACT*—*The Phoenix Project*.

The city of On was about 10 miles north of Cairo (the word "Cairo" means "Mars"). Two obelisks from On were moved in recent times and one now is erected on the bank of the Thames in London and the other is in Central Park in New York.

Joseph stated, according to *Genesis 45:8*, that he, Joseph, was "a father to Pharaoh". This would indicate that Joseph was an extremely important person in Egyptian history. The writer Ahmed Osman, in *Stranger In The Valley of the Kings*, said that "the only person we know of in the history of Egypt to bear the title 'a father to Pharaoh' was a man identified as Yuya or Iouiya." The mummies of Yuya and his wife Tuya (parents of Queen Tiye, wife of Amenophis III) were found and are now in museums. Yuya was also called "the man who knows things" (Osman, p. 162 and *Joseph en Egypte* by Joseph Vergote, Louvain, 1959). One who knows? Sounds familiar.

Yuya was the vizier or royal advisor to Thuthmosis IV. Thuthmosis is recorded in Egyptian writings as a dreamer of dreams, and in one of his dreams (just who do you suppose was the interpreter of those dreams???), he was told by the Sun-god that the Sphinx had become buried up to its head in sand and he should dig the sand away from it (the Sphinx was built in honor of the Sun, per most reference books). According to Osman and others, Thuthmosis IV was succeeded by Amen-hotep III, who promoted the honoring of the God of Light, the God of Heat, represented by the Sun, and Who was called Aten or Aton. "The first mention of Aten during the Eighteenth Dynasty occurs, in fact, on a scarab dating from the reign of Tuthmosis IV, who appointed Joseph to the post of vizier. His son, Amenhotep III, subsequently built a temple to Aten in Nubia and the barge in which he sailed on Queen Tiye's pleasure lake was named *Aten Gleams*" (p. 123).

Amenhotep III was followed by Amenhotep IV, who changed his name to Akhenaten (Akh-en-aten), in honor of the Ultimate God of Light. The name now is more frequently spelled Ikhnaton.

According to the *Britannica* encyclopedia, Ikhnaton was the name assumed, early in his reign, by the Egyptian Pharaoh Amenhotep (Amenophis) IV, who reigned from 1379 to 1362 B.C. He is believed to be son of Amenhotep III and Tiye. His wife was Nefertiti. His oldest daughter married Smenkhkare, the second daughter died young, the third married Tutankhaton, whose name was later changed back to Tutankhamen (now called "King Tut").

One answer to the question of who was the oldest identifiable personality in history is given by the famous archaeologist and historian, James Henry Breasted, Professor of Egyptology and Oriental History at the University of Chicago. The following quotes are from *A History of the Ancient Egyptians* by Breasted, copyright 1905 and 1908 by Charles Scribner's Sons, in the chapter titled "The Religious Revolution of Ikhnaton". Egyptian ruler Amenhotep IV changed his name to Akhenaten or Ikhnaton, in honor of the God of Light, Aton, represented by the Sun. Breasted said "...he gradually developed ideals and purposes which make him the most remarkable of all the Pharaohs, and the first *individual* in human history" [italics his, p. 265].

On page 277, Breasted said of Ikhnaton, "He perceived the universal sway of God in his fatherly care of all men alike, irrespective of race or nationality, and to the proud and exclusive Egyptian he pointed to the all-embracing bounty of the common father of humanity, even placing Syria and Nubia before Egypt in his enumeration. It is this aspect of Ikhnaton's mind which is especially remarkable; he is alike the first prophet

and the first wise-man of history." And on the next page Breasted said that in Ikhnaton's "teaching" there was "a constant emphasis upon 'truth' such as is not found before nor since".

Breasted said that Ikhnaton died in 1358 B.C., and then summed his depiction of Ikhnaton on page 287 by saying: "Thus disappeared the most remarkable figure in earlier oriental history; or indeed in the history of the world before the Hebrews. To his own nation he was afterward known as 'the criminal of [the city of] Akhetaton'; but, however much we may censure him, we see in him at the same time such a spirit as the early world had never known before. Among the Hebrews, seven to eight hundred years later, we look for such men; but the modern world has yet adequately to value or even acquaint itself with this man, who in an age so remote and under conditions so adverse, became the world's first idealist and the world's first *individual.*"

That is a remarkable statement to say of someone, and might be worthy of pondering a bit. Although Breasted believed that Ikhnaton became king about 1375 BC (other spellings include Akhenaton, Aakhuen-Aten [per E. A. Wallis Budge], Akhenaten, and he was also known as Orus, Amenhotpe IV, etc.), other historians use different dates. According to classical historian Julius Africanus, Akhenaten ruled 878 to 841 B.C. This agrees with the ancient Eusebius Greek Text, but the Eusebius Armenian Version says 871-843 B.C. Josephus says 879-843, and the *Book of Sothis* says 879-831 B.C. There are reasons, because of co-regencies and such, that some of the conflicting dates can both be correct, depending on how the reigns are counted (whether joint ruling years are included, etc.). Although Breasted was very impressed by Ikhnaton, when Rockefeller took over the operation this focus was suppressed and shifted.

Akhenaton ruled during a time of great peace and abundance for Egypt. He was responsible for building a new city in honor of Aton, called Akhetaton, which location is now eroded into a mound called Tell el-Amarna. In 1888, a library of around 400 letters on clay tablets were discovered by archaeologists digging in Amarna and are now in museums in London and Cairo. They were a part of the royal archives of Amenhotep III and Amenhotep IV (Akhenaton), and consist of official correspondence with various kings of Babylon and Syria.

Nowadays, historians usually date the tablets to about the time they equate with the time of Moses, roughly 1400 B.C., although earlier historians date these pharaohs to the period that corresponds to the stories in the Biblical books of *Kings* and *Chronicles*.

For instance, a tablet identified as #162 is addressed to Aziru. The "Aziru" translation is from exactly the same root word as translated "Hazael" in the *King james Bible*. The "L" and the "R" are linguistically interchangeable in these languages, and the "H" is often silent. An example of this is Hadoram and Adoram, *II Chron. 10:18* and *I Kings 12:18*. Aziru is identified by researchers as a king of Amurru, with his capital at Dumasqa. Dumasqa is understood to be Damascus, and Amurru is the common name for Aram. Josephus spelled Hazael as "Azaelos".

II Kings 12:17: "Then Hazael king of Aram went up, and fought against Gath, and took it; and Hazael set his face to go to Jerusalem." This was circa 840 B.C., during the reign of Pharaoh Akhenaton, according to many records.

Now let's read the Tell el-Amarna clay tablet #162 written to Aziru from Akhenaton: "If thou for any

object desirest to do evil, or if thou layest up evil words of hatred in thy heart, then wilt thou die by the axe of the king together with thy whole family. Render submission then to the king, thy lord, (and) thou shalt live. Thou knowest, indeed, that the king does not desire to go heavily against the whole land of Kinahhi [Canaan]" (*The Tell El-Amarna Tablets*, by Samuel A. B. Mercer, Vol. II, page 523).

In these early historical writings are stories of the rulers of Egypt fighting with the kings of Palestine and Syria and Babylon, and the One God Aton versus the popular gods of such as Ptah, Amon, Ra, and Asher.

Compare this situation with the modern fighting over these same lands, and the squabbles over what might be found under the Sphinx or Pyramids in Egypt, and the information coming from Richard Hoagland about the *Apollo* Moon landing sites being chosen by an Egyptian, sites that seem to have been in honor of Orion and Apollo (and Asar, which Hoagland said was the Egyptian name of Apollo, and no doubt is the same as the Biblical god of Moses/Asher as mentioned in the Hebrew text of *Exodus 3:14*).

I wonder, when the secret door that is causing such an uproar among certain Egyptologists and researchers these days is opened, what will they find? Is it possible they will find more evidence of Aton? It would be a peculiar circumstance if our earliest records consists of tablets, statues and other information about Aton and friends, and the records of the end of this millennium and possibly the end of this period of history/ beginning of another history also consists of records and other information about Aton and friends. Some of you will appreciate what I am saying, and may find it something to ponder.

[*To be continued.*]

CHAPTER 9

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt

<u>VICE PRESIDENT LINKED TO</u> MICORWAVE WEAPONS AIMED AT CITIZENS

From *The Spotlight*, 4/6/98: [quoting]

On March 8, Harlan Girard, the managing director of the International Committee for the Convention Against Offensive Microwave Weapons, joined host Tom Valentine on Radio Free America. They discussed the effects of microwave weapons on Americans. Tom's questions and comments are in bold type; Girard's statements are in plain text.

In October of last year there was a subdued hearing of a subcommittee of our Congress. This particular subcommittee was the Human Subjects Subcommittee of the National Bioethics Advisory Commission. Bioethics. That must have something to do with life and ethics and biology-medicine, using humans as guinea pigs maybe.

A testimony was given to this subcommittee by my guest, Mr. Harlan Girard. I met Harlan in Washington. He is the managing director of the International Committee for the Convention Against Offensive Microwave Weapons.

The first thing you talked about is a thing called a future agenda by an outfit called the Clearing House—Clearing House on the Future. What is that about?

The Clearing House on the Future was set up to consider future problems. And they published a study called *Future Agenda*.

But it only went ahead 10 years.

They went to the subcommittees of the House of Representatives, and they asked them what would be the burning issues in their area of oversight 10 years in the future. In other words, this was done in 1982, and they were asked to take a look into the future, at 1992, and determine what might be the burning issues before their subcommittee at that time in their area of oversight.

You noticed the term "offensive microwave weapons" in this report. How did they use that word?

Two of the subcommittees had called attention to the fact that they believed that offensive microwave weapons would be a burning issue in the future requiring some kind of congressional action.

As a matter of fact, there was a hearing held on February 25. Actually it's the first time I know they've ever

attacked this subject.

Somebody held a hearing on radio frequency weapons as recently as February 25, 1998. And that's long overdue. But no human effects [were discussed] only how they might affect material or the enemy, interestingly enough.

You also noticed in this *Future Agenda* report that one time they linked offensive microwave weapons to another phrase, "mind-control mechanisms".

You know, of course, any discussion of mind control is deemed to be paranoia. And yet the term was used in this report that mind-control mechanisms would be an issue by 1992.

Here we have never had discussions of offensive microwave weapons, which should have occurred by 1992. You pointed that out. You are telling this now to the subcommittee. But you say these microwave weapons are out there.

Oh, yes, they're out there, and the mind-control mechanisms, too. They're just in special access programs where there's no accountability and no public acknowledgment. But I've been getting reports of use of these weapons on your average citizen since 1990 when I began to look for them. And they're coming in faster and faster, Tom. I must get two new cases a week.

And, incidentally, I am not fishing for new cases on your broadcast. I am up over my eyeballs with people who want me to validate the fact that they're the object of some government operation.

Do you mean they want you, with your experience in this and all the background research you have done, to be able to validate whether or not they are a target of some kind of microwave mind-control gamesmanship?

Frankly, I try to keep things as simple as possible. And until I have evidence that this equipment has been distributed among government contractors, I will focus in on the intelligence operations, agencies that are interested in mind control.

You told these subcommittee people that you are doing their work for them. You were doing all of their work by listening to hours upon hours of people who were trying to separate out these cases.

Absolutely. There is no forum for people to express their concerns about what is happening to them. So maybe I was a little bit tough with the commission, but they were tough with me too. They only gave me five minutes to talk, and I had quite a lot to say.

You needed 90 minutes to show your evidence. I found it fascinating that you pointed out that the people in high places must be aware of this, that government at the highest of levels must be aware of this. Why did you say that?

The chairman of the Congressional Clearing House on the Future in 1982, the man who signed the intro-

duction to this report, is our vice president today, Albert Gore Jr.

Back in 1982, the chairman of the Congressional Clearing House on the Future was Albert Gore, who is now vice president of the United States, the man going to probably be the candidate for the Democratic side in the year 2000.

So he had to be aware of mind-control mechanisms and offensive microwave weapons, is what you say.

Tom, I started to go to Washington in the summer of 1988, nearly 10 years ago, and do a little investigating. This was before I ever found the *Future Agenda*. But I can tell you that I only got a response from five or six offices out of the 535 in the Congress.

But one of those offices was Albert Gore's. He was then a United States senator. And I thought, oh, this is really nice. His staff is so attentive to my concerns about government experimentation and so helpful.

It wasn't until later that I found out why they were helpful. They certainly knew that the equipment I was trying to describe to them existed and was being used. But it was one of the only places in the Congress where I could get the time of day from the staff regarding the possibility that mind-control operations were ongoing at that time.

In your testimony in October you said, "I want to point out that we have an unblemished history of human experimentation dating 65 years without belief." And you said, "From my research, I would say that if there were any gaps in that record they may have occurred when William Colby was director of Central Intelligence." What were you hinting at there?

There is a case I am familiar with that goes back into the early 1970s, and there is a gap in that story. He is not drawing any conclusions, but I was interested to find that he had left Boulder, Colorado, where he was living, and returned to Boston, where he grew up, for a couple of years. And it was coincident with the period when William Colby was director of Central Intelligence.

But I talked with Colby, actually, a couple of times, and he was quite helpful. Of course, he referred me to the House Permanent Select Committee on Intelligence, because they had just had a retreat to Williamsburg, Virginia, where he felt he had informed them on how to get the information they need to do the job of oversight, which they are supposed to do, out of the CIA.

Colby spent a weekend with them. He told them how to ask the right questions and where to go for the information. So he referred me to the House Permanent Select Committee on Intelligence.

You alluded to a fellow who was in Boulder, Colorado, and went back to Boston. Do you mean he was in Boulder, Colorado, and he was under an influence when the influence stopped?

No. It goes back so far that my hypothesis is they were simply bombarding him with microwave radiation to see what effects it had on his behavior. This is the early 1970s.

He had a friend who was, he thinks, FBI. But, in any event, this friend used to come to him from time to time and tell him that it was time to go back up there again and drive him up to the National Bureau of Standards. They have a beautiful building up there in the mountains somewhere.

It is not called the National Bureau of Standards anymore, but that is what it was at the time. And his friend would go into the National Bureau of Standards and leave him sitting in the car. And I asked this fellow what did he do there. And he says, "I don't know."

But the guy might have been the object of an experiment.

My fix is that he was sitting out there in the parking lot being bombarded.

You told this committee that the record was intact for 65 years, and you were just giving us a description of just one case. But I think it is very interesting that you pointed out that there have been 65 years of crimes against humanity which have gone unpunished and, for the most part, unacknowledged, even unremarked upon.

I think you should give your testimony of what you said about the government as an equal opportunity experimenter.

One of the concerns of the committee is experiments on people who have no mental capacity, mentally impaired.

Yes, like the poor and the vulnerable. We see this in the movies, the doctors are always experimenting on the bums and the street people.

Well, that is no longer the case. The people who are calling me are nice, middle-class people. They are social workers. The man I just spoke of has a masters degree in education; he was a school teacher. A woman was retired from the Virginia Department of Prisons where she was an executive secretary.

I liked the way you put it to them. You said psychologists, engineers, social workers, Black, White, Asian, Christian, Jew, Buddhist, an equal opportunity killer.

Yes, I used those words. I got tough with them.

What was the one glaring exception?

I don't find that there are any homosexuals in what I call the electronic concentration camp system. I am very interested in that exception. But maybe there is another exception proving the rule.

One of the things I am very interested in is this case of Andrew Cunanan, who assassinated [fashion designer] Gianni Versace and then conveniently committed suicide himself

Did he exhibit symptoms of mind control?

What do we know about this case? We know that as soon as he stole a Cadillac from his victim in

Chicago, the FBI knew exactly where he was. At a minimum, those cellular phones, mobile phones, are constantly emitting their signal which identifies them, by which the user of the phone can be tracked.

They knew exactly where Cunanan was every minute of the time. How early they got on his case, actually it meets the profile perfectly of a highly successful mind-control case.

He believed he had AIDS. He didn't have AIDS, the Miami Police told us afterwards. But somewhere he got the idea he had AIDS. He maxed out his credit cards, and then he takes off across the country to deal with the person that he thought gave him AIDS.

And on top of that, although I don't have any cases in San Diego, I am frequently reassured that there are tons of them there because it is a Navy city. They have one of the national super computer centers there, and I hear there are a lot of cases there. I don't know, none of them have ever come to me precisely from San Diego.

Give me a profile of a person who is being experimented on.

Let me answer a little different question. It is hardly an experiment. Many of these cases, in fact all of the older ones, begin with an arbitrary execution; this is the legal term: extra judicial killing. They pick somebody out and they are disposing of them.

Incidentally, there was a movie made that has just been playing around the country which would give your listeners a very good idea of how our government is killing Americans today. It is called *The Game*, with Michael Douglas.

They don't use assault rifles, they are using acoustic weapons, they are using offensive microwave weapons, they are using mind control. And it doesn't have a happy ending in real life.

I do not believe that anybody could have conceived that movie without knowing that our government is killing people in this fashion. I am distressed because of the happy ending of future victims: the idea of this light at the end of the tunnel.

In this movie, the hero is terrified. He doesn't know what is happening. He gives a very good portrayal of the reaction of people when they are attacked with all these weapons.

You see, if it is successful, it is going to look very much like the Cunanan case. The point is that you either walk into the mall and kill 12 people you have never seen before or you go to your workplace.

It is all over the papers all the time, workplace violence. A guy is fired, gets a gun, goes back and kills six people he used to work with or 12 people he used to work with. This is the formula. Then they shoot him down in the parking lot or he is incarcerated for the rest of his life.

In order for this to be taking place today, they had to experiment over time to make sure it would work. And you had a regular profile of people who were used for 65 years to get to the point where we are today.

I understand through a source I had that the CIA, although the agency didn't exist at the time, claims that it was doing mind-control experiments in Europe before World War II.

So government mind-control experiments as such may go back 65 years, but I was thinking of just classified research on human beings per se, such as the Tuskegee syphilis experiment.

But in your testimony, you point out that there is a particular type.

Oh, yes.

First of all, you told the subcommittee there were no homosexuals and you thought that was very interesting. There is a regular profile, and I wanted you to give that profile.

Most of the cases, a vast majority of the cases, that come to me—there are well over 100 by now, but I don't have the time to count them, frankly. But the profile of the person is: single, lives alone, weak family support—they may be out of touch with their family—highly verbal, very intelligent people, preferably people who keep diaries. The idea of experimenting on involuntary human subjects rather than monkeys is to get feedback from them. Researchers want to know what their subjective action is to the pain that they are suffering from.

And these people aren't like me, are not objecting to the government, they are not out there as troublemakers.

No, no. No political activity; which I found, and I continue to find, very interesting. I assumed it was because they were trying to keep the lid on this until they were ready to go after people like Tom Valentine.

So they would use nondescript human beings who were intelligent, who kept diaries, so they could experiment. And these people were put into an electromagnetic concentration camp, as you explained it to the subcommittee.

I have to call it the electronic concentration camp system. While these people are dispersed all over the country they are linked together. They are encouraged to communicate and talk about their fears and what was happening to them that day.

The telephone system was supplanted by the Intelink—the government has built parallel Internets. In other words, it is not necessary for the government to use Internets for communications. You know, of course, the Internet springs from a Defense Advance Research Project Agency (DARPA) project linking defense contractors. It was originally used for communication among scientists and contractors working for the DARPA.

Interestingly enough, about the time they got the Intelink up and running, there began to appear all kinds of articles about how Pentagon computers were being entered by hackers.

It is really interesting that Al Gore, the one you found was the head of the Clearing House back in 1982, was actually very big behind the national information infrastructure.

Tom, every time I hear those words "national information infrastructure" and Albert Gore Jr.'s promotion of the same, my visual imagery is of this electronic concentration camp system.

I don't understand what the haste is to connect everybody to the Internet and to put a computer in every home. The Internet, insofar as I can see it, is just a big encyclopedia. It may be wonderful to have this gigantic encyclopedia in your home that you can turn on with the flick of a switch, but I don't think that they would be half as anxious to get it up and running if it didn't have surveillance and intelligence applications.

I don't have a computer, but my friends tell me [for instance] about cookies. You go into a web site, and the web site identifies you and how you got there. And then a few days later you will get a special offer from the web site you visited to purchase their products or something of the sort. There is some kind of follow-up.

How would microwave technology work on the brain? They must know something that is not in the medical literature.

What I can tell you for certain is that this stuff is so pervasive, the effects are so enormous, they no longer call it mind control, they call it *biological process* control.

I am an associate member of the IEEE, the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. I don't have a degree, but I did have enough engineering background to read some of the technical papers. But I don't feel that somebody who is being brutalized this way should be compelled to explain how it is done, any more than the guy who is shot at should explain how a handgun works before the doctors will treat them.

My fix on this is that there are coupling effects with the central nervous system. And, very simply, our electronic countermeasures people have decoded the signaling system that the nervous system uses to communicate with the brain and the brain with the neuromuscular system.

When we were in the Gulf War out there, they wanted to get the signatures of the Iraqi field radar, so they would detonate pounds of dynamite. The Iraqis, fearing that our invasion was commencing, turned on all their field radars. We would record the signals generated by them and program our missiles to take out specific radars based on the signatures of those radars.

In other words, even though radar is made in the factory, there are little idiosyncrasies in the signals emitted by each field radar, and they could target our missiles and program them to home in on specific targets. [End quoting]

Do we want this man Gore as our president?? He should be in prison for abetting murders!!

CHAPTER 10

LIFE'S A REAL BALANCING ACT!

4/11/98 SOLTEC

Good evening, my friend. It is I, Toniose Soltec, come in the Radiant One Light of Creator Source. Allow for the natural evolutionary flow of thought to manifest around you.

We of the Higher Realms are grateful for that which you do. We are here to assist you ones when and where we can. Remember that we can do more to assist when YOU first make effort to assist yourselves!

What you all are going through is what we shall call "growing" pains. There are often difficulties experienced within the individual who is efforting to understand the Greater Picture of who they are. Your challenge is one of inner reality versus outer reality. Both are a product of the same Source, yet they are, also, seeming dichotomies of thought. There is ONE ultimate "reality" that encompasses the whole of each.

While in the physical, it is, indeed, very difficult to maintain the balance necessary in order to function in BOTH realities simultaneously. This is to say that most ones are either very physically oriented or they are very spiritually oriented.

There are very few who readily achieve harmony in the spanning of both realities. This is a most difficult lesson to learn and master. And yet, there is great value in doing so, for there come great insights into being able to see the True Cause behind that which precipitates events. In knowing and understanding True Cause, one is, in effect, recognizing that which is their own ability to create.

Also, ones will be able to see and understand that neither they, nor anyone else, are ever a "victim". They (you) are directly responsible for EVERYTHING that they (you) experience. You are Creator manifest! You are also a "player" in the physical arena of your current (physical) environment. You CAN achieve a balance between the spiritual and the physical.

You have chosen the physical environment for its unique qualities of compressing and amplifying (dramatizing) those areas of your knowing that need to be strengthened. These same compressive and amplifying qualities of the physical environment can also cause you ones to "forget" who you are or why you have chosen to come into that environment in the first place.

You are very much a non-physical entity, partly experiencing in and through your body. This is so that you will have a focal point of expression in the physical—an anchor of sorts. Let not the focal point limit your ability to function in a much greater capacity.

The point here is to say: let not the PERCEPTION of physical "limitations" impede you from

anything that you are desiring. There are (and will be) plenty of opportunities to experience ALL of the physical experiences that you can ever imagine.

But, remember: you are there for your own SPIRITUAL growth and it is for this primary reason that YOU have chosen to experience at this time.

Let not the pressures of the physical environment cloud your understanding of the fact that you are a limitless spiritual being on a spiritual quest of self-knowing. We of the Hosts will always offer you the reminders that you need (desire) so that you can have the opportunity to see greater reasoning, if you so desire to see same.

Let not the distractions of the physical impede you from your true desire for greater understanding. Call upon Source for your guidance, and learn to recognize and accept the Greater Hand operating in that which you experience as physical "reality".

There is NOTHING wrong with wanting to experience the physical side of your physical expression. However, when you completely neglect the "spiritual" (non-physical) side of your being, then you will have created prime conditions for the "harsher" physical experiences that will cause you to look within and search for greater understanding. Note that such "harsh" experiencing is a balancing mechanism—or, to put it another way, there is really NO escaping the TRUE intent (spiritual growth) of your soul.

True balance comes from recognizing the spiritual component (God) in EVERY thing and EV-ERY person that you can see, touch, or feel. When you can do this, you will be better able to appreciate the true value of the physical environment and the exquisite opportunities it affords you.

Your "reality", "sanity", and "truth" each have plenty of room for growth. There is no person incarnate in the physical who has mastered completely this balance between physical "reality" and non-physical "reality". You each have plenty of room to grow in terms of understanding.

There are ones who are very spiritually attuned to their Higher Guidance, yet they are withdrawn from society to a point that they will not share the gifts that are intended to be shared. These ones are as much lopsided as are the ones who completely avoid anything that they cannot physically see, touch, or feel for themselves.

Most ones who read these messages function "in between", efforting to find that which satisfies the inner desire for fulfillment, with great amounts of time being spent in a trial-and-error approach to deducing what it is that IS fulfilling to them.

Ones often are missing the fact that, unless and until they begin to move toward a greater balance between physical sensing and inner understanding, they will not find the peace they are looking for. This is to say that as long as ones avoid confronting themselves as they truly are—non-physical beings incarnate into physical bodies with limitless potential for creating—then they will always be seeking to find fulfillment.

This is just the first step toward coming into a more balanced condition of experiencing. Next is the denial phase.

As ones begin to awaken to the idea of who they are and the true potential of their being, they will often deny that such could be, for they will no longer have any real excuses for why it is that they have had it "so bad". The truth of the matter is that the reason any ones "have it so bad" is because ones NEED it "so bad" in order to wake themselves up to a greater reality of experience!

Here, again, I remind you ones who wish to narrow my focus to reports on Earth changes and related activities, that I am a Higher Teacher as well as a Brother, come at this time to assist you to integrate into your consciousness the concept that "ALL is connected to ALL". With respect to the upcoming Earth changes (that I have written about extensively over these many past years), it is now time to integrate those "physical" lessons with their greater spiritual reality (True Cause). In other words, appreciate that even the upcoming, potentially "harsh" Earth changes are a basic part of physically-oriented man wishing to AWAKEN to the consequences of his imbalances and his general inattention to the spiritual side of his expression.

You are each infinite beings. This particular experience in the physical is not your first. You can, if you so choose to, ignore the greater reasons for experiencing—but you will be no closer to finding the inner satisfaction that you are so desperately seeking than you were 100 lifetimes ago. In that context, perhaps upcoming "harsh" experiences (say from living near or on an earthquake fault zone, or in the vicinity of a potentially active volcano) are just what you desire (and thus have chosen) to finally cause you to awaken to what has escaped your grasp until now.

It is not our place to judge you ones. We are simply Guides and Wayshowers who have walked the path that you are now on. We only wish to assist those who desire our assistance.

Many are desperately seeking fulfillment at this time. We see, for the most part, that the seeking is most often done in a very external and physically-oriented manner. This is to say that many are looking to other people for their fulfillment, or to physical objects like cars, houses, clothes, or even food, sex, or drugs.

These are but distractions at best, and the excitement quickly wears off, leaving ones heavily "in debt", either physically or emotionally, or both. Ones are often left wanting more, and so they go off somewhere to "find" their next big distraction.

The answers that you ones are looking for come from recognizing who you truly are. This recognition (re-cognition) comes from within.

How can you know that you are more than just your physical body?

How is it that YOU actually know you are conscious?

How is it that YOU know you even "really" exist?

Do you need to go out and ask another, or can you determine for yourself the answers to these questions?

What is YOUR relationship with God?

Do you have one?

How do YOU know?

Are you your body, or are you more than a physical mass of electro-chemical combinations?

Hmmm?

Let's see:

I can cut off my arm, and I'm still me.

I can have a lung or tonsils removed, and I'm still me.

I can have a heart transplant, and I'm still me.

Now we get into a tricky area—the brain:

If you replace your brain, are you still you? Since this has not been done successfully in your current level of publicly-known technology, you would likely say: "No, I would not be me."

So, from this limited viewpoint, you may be inclined to think that you are your brain. Let me just say that it is possible to replace brain tissue in such a manner as to maintain perfect continuity of the brain's original functioning. So, are YOU your brain?

Please stop for a moment to reflect upon all of the thoughts and emotions that have been triggered by simply going within and asking yourself just these few questions.

Did you have to physically GO anywhere or physically (externally) DO anything? No! Yet, you were, in fact, seeking, were you not?

You say: "But this does not apply to me, because I already know that I'm more than just a body!"

Well, this is good; but *why* is it, then, that so many who claim this awareness are petitioning God for Mr. or Mrs. "Right" to come along, or for money, or for a "better" job, etc., in order to be "happy"?

The answer: Because just *knowing* that you are more than a body IS BUT THE BEGINNING of awakening to truly understanding the implications of this fact—and of who you REALLY are! It is among the first steps.

The point of this exercise is to show you that, with diligent inner questioning and reasoning (searching), you will begin to see and understand more and more of who you are. As this process

unfolds, you will begin to draw into your experience those confirmations that will let you *know* that you are, indeed, on the right path.

It is for this reason that you ones are taught to NOT question authority figures, such as school teachers, politicians, clergy, policemen, judges, doctors and such. If you were to begin to develop *independent* thought—truly thinking for yourselves—then you would not stand for the lies that are meant to keep you pliable to the mind control exercised by these ones in "authority".

True teachers will effort to bring their students to a point of awareness wherein the students will realize they can derive their own answers, independent of the need for the teacher. Or as the important statement on this subject goes: "The true purpose of education is to teach the student HOW to think, not WHAT to think."

By simply asking yourself the appropriate questions, you will be well on your way to guiding yourself to the answers that you are looking for. And you will be surprised by the "accidental" discoveries that result during this process of exploration!

Enjoy the physical experience. But more importantly, effort to understand that which makes the "physical" experience possible in the first place.

There is inner satisfaction awaiting you each. You need not go anywhere to find it. Another cannot find it for you. A determined desire to find it, and knowing that it is there, are the keys to having it.

You each have within you the potential abilities that the Christed one you call "Jesus" has. He is your Brother, not your God. What he did while incarnate, you too will do—eventually. Let not your past beliefs and indoctrinations keep you from realizing this "Christ potential" within you. I am Ceres Anthonious "Toniose" Soltec, Teacher, Scientist, Philosopher, Artist, Friend and Wayshower. I have been sent by OUR Creator so that His promise to you ones will be fulfilled, and so that I, too, may experience and grow.

In His Light—blessings to you all. Salu!

CHAPTER 11

THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON AN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS PART XI AND END OF THIS SERIES by Calvin Burgin

Editor's note: The following completes this series from Calvin Burgin which began in the 2/10/98 issue of CONTACT. As he explains in a footnote, Heptameron means: **Heptameron** (hep-tam'-e-rön): "a book or treatise containing the actions of seven days, in the style of Boccaccio's Decameron or the Heptameron of Queen Margaret of Navarre (1492-1549)."

MORE INFORMATION TO PONDER

A Fax sent to Richard Hoagland on an Art Bell radio show from "Shawn from Yucca Valley" stated:

nasa logo

"Art, please ask Richard at some point about the mind-blowing NASA *Apollo* logo on his web site. The *Apollo* logo Richard Hoagland has unearthed is a block buster. It has precisely the same look, feel, simple elegance and straight-forward symbolism of other NASA logos of that era. It is either authentic, or a brilliant, masterful fake. NASA logo designs are anything but cryptic, and are intended to be easily decoded and appreciated even by the dullest member of the taxpaying public.

"Art, having followed the issues and enigmas concerning Cydonia, Giza, and the Moon on your show, viewing this logo on the web blew my socks off. Its simple message of the fundamental connectivity between Earth, the Moon and Orion is undeniable, as is the implication very clear on the *Apollo* logo that travelling to the Moon is somehow profoundly relevant to our understanding of Orion. To find such symbolism on a NASA logo is about as unexpected as finding a pentagram prominently displayed in a Catholic church. At last, a smoking gun. How will NASA possibly explain away this one?"

Hoagland stated that "what everyone needs to know is that Apollo IS Osiris, IS Orion. They are one and the same." He then explains that Greek names were used because of prejudice, and to deceive. Why use Greek names with Egyptian symbology, he asked. Why is the real origin and root symbology hidden? He said they knew all along, and dared not tell us.

Homer Newell (sp?) was first associate administrator for space science and applications under James Webb (who was appointed by JFK to be head of NASA). He showed Hoagland the first official *Apollo* patch in 1967, just before the fire that killed *Apollo* astronauts Grissom, Chaffee and White. It depicts the "belt" of Orion as the crossbar of the A, connecting Earth to the Moon.

Hoagland says the A does not stand for Apollo, he says the A stands for the Egyptian god Asar! He says

that Apollo was the Greek name for, in this case, a clearly (once you know the details) Egyptian god. In its various spellings, this would be the same Asher or Ashur as covered in more detail in *The Hoax of Judeo-Christianity*.

In the *Hoax* document I show evidence that the "god" who gave Moses the *Ten Commandments*, and who spoke to Moses on Mt. Sinai, was Asher. That is what the Hebrew manuscripts state. Other evidence shows that the "fallen angel" in the Garden of Eden story was also Asher. I refer you to the *Hoax Of Judeo-Christianity* for more detail on that subject.

ASHER—GOOD GUY OR BAD?

Was Asher, then, a "good guy" or a "bad guy"? The answer depends on your viewpoint and perception and on which documents you accept. There is evidence to support both viewpoints, and the stories have obviously been tampered with over the years. Asher (Babylonian spelling) or Asar (Egyptian spelling) can mean absence of light: dark. It can also apparently mean light, as sar or sur meant light or the Sun. Whatever the truth of this, I suspect we are about to learn much more about this whole situation!

Hoagland has books and tapes for anyone who wants more information, that show a connection between the "face on Mars" and the Sphinx/Pyramids in Egypt. I refer you to him for considerable documentation on this. The Giza complex at Cairo, Egypt, matches the Cydonia complex on Mars. It is also laid out to match the Constellation and belt of Orion. Cairo, in fact, is Egyptian for Mars.

Hoagland is also involved with trying to learn what is behind the door that has been recently discovered under the Sphinx in Egypt. On second thought, I should say the door is in the Great Pyramid, and there is another passage under the Sphinx. Now some are reporting more passageways have been found, while others deny it. The stories seem to be purposely confusing.

One would think that scientists would simply open the door and take a look, but instead there is considerable arguing and infighting and strange silliness going on in that situation. It seems someone is afraid of what might be there. Could there be something having to do with, for instance, knowledge about Aton, the original God of Light that the priests throughout history have tried to suppress? Just wondering.

WHY ATLANTIS?

Psychic Edgar Cayce, who died in 1947, predicted that a "Hall of Records" would be found at Giza, and there was speculation that it would contain information from ancient Atlantis. There are many square miles of Egyptian hieroglyphics that tell that the monuments were built to preserve information from a previous civilization, often called Atlantis. A Space Shuttle is called *Atlantis*.

Hoagland says that the July 20 (8:17 pm GMT), 1969, *Apollo* Moon landing when Neil Armstrong took that giant leap for mankind, was actually chosen as to location and timing to honor Asar of Orion. He says that John F. Kennedy knew, nearly a decade earlier, in his famous we-are-going-to-the-Moon speech, exactly when and why the spot was to be chosen.

Hoagland says that the July 20 date is extremely important, as it connects to Osiris, and Orion. Egyptian cosmology is centered on Osiris. July 20, with Osiris and his twin sister Isis, which is Sirius, the brightest star in the sky, the most important star in the Egyptian calendar, is the one date that commemorates Osiris over the Pyramids at Giza, and for that reason was chosen as the only possible Moon-landing date.

Hoagland was dumfounded to discover that the Moon-landing programs were connected to Egypt. July 20 is an important Egyptian date! He says the A was coded as Apollo but was really the Egyptian Asar. The name of the lunar lander was Orion (the only lander that was not crashed back into the Moon). You will need to consult Hoagland's information for all his proof. He found that when Neil Armstrong took manual control of the Eagle just before it landed, it was not for the reasons told to us, but was to insure that the Constellation Orion was precisely at the right spot on the horizon, when Isis (Sirius) and Osiris were precisely at 19.5 degrees. On every *Apollo* mission something stunning with regard to Osiris occurred, he says. According to Buzz Aldrin, after the landing, Neil and Buzz celebrated for 33 minutes on the Lunar temple site, with a chalice and wine, when Isis was precisely tetrahedral 19.5 degrees. The hieroglyph in the Egyptian language for Isis (Sirius) is an equilateral triangle, the two-dimensional representation of the tetrahedron. It means "a doorway" in Egyptian, specifically a doorway between dimensions.

AN EGYPTIAN PICKED OUR MOON LANDING SITES!

Who picked the *Apollo* landing sites? It was Dr. Farouk El Baz, an Egyptian geologist, from Cairo. He and his father were also Egyptologists. He came to NASA by way of Germany in 1967, and was hired by Bell Communications under AT&T. There appear to me to be possible Paperclip connections (does anyone remember about the Nazis that went to Egypt after the war?), but I have not had a chance to try to check it out. He was placed in charge of determining the *Apollo* sites based on Orion meridian configurations. After the *Apollo* Moon-landing projects ended, El Baz went to Boston and set up a department called the Remote Sensing group, a group using radar, sound-waves, remote viewing, etc. In 1987 he appears in Egypt in a project jointly sponsored with NASA, in charge of the Giza pyramid and Sphinx investigations!

In 1993, a German named Gantenbrink designed a robot called the Upuaut that went up an 8-inch-wide tunnel shaft from the Queen's Chamber of the Great Pyramid and found a door with two handles, one of which had eroded away. This shaft was aimed directly at the transit point of the star Sirius (the passage from the King's Chamber is aimed at Orion). A door would indicate there is something behind the door, probably another chamber. The Egyptian authorities stopped the investigation and have not allowed anyone near since (we are told). The door has not been opened (we are told).

The Egyptian head of the Giza area said that the door would be opened in September 1996, under the direction of Dr. El Baz, the man who chose the *Apollo* Moon-landing sites. I do not know what the current status of the opening is, as I am not on their mailing list. I do suspect, however, that this is serious (Sirius) business!

When Dr. Farouk El Baz was hired at Bellcom, he got into a fist fight with his boss, a Jew, who did not want him. A superior over Bellcom had to intervene and force Bellcom to accept El Baz. The superior was Ed Nixon, President Richard Nixon's brother! President Nixon is the one who later stopped the *Apollo* missions. Farouk El Baz's brother is currently on the senior staff of Hosni Mubarak, President of

Egypt.

Recall from previous *Fire From The Sky* writings, the man accused of killing John F. Kennedy (who started the Apollo program), was Lee Harvey Oswald. Oswald worked on the U2 spy-plane crew with Francis Gary Powers. Another of the U2 pilots was Roger Chaffee. Roger Chaffee was the U2 pilot who took the pictures of Cuba that started the Cuban missile crisis. The man reading the pictures from Roger Chaffee who first determined that Russia was installing missiles in Cuba was Bobby L. Coffey, currently working with the Texas Department of Transportation. He is a customer of mine and confirmed to me some of these connections.

It has come out that there is evidence that at the time the *Apollo* missions were started, there were eight or more astronauts killed, probably murdered, including the fire which killed Grissom, White, and Roger Chaffee. It does not take too much digging to find considerable connections between the murder of John F. Kennedy, and the Nazis, Richard Nixon, George Bush, the *Apollo* Moon landings, the Pyramids in Egypt, and the "face on Mars"!

THE TRAIL OF ATON

Deukalion is the Greek version of Noah. *Encyclopedia Britannica* says: "When Zeus had resolved to destroy all mankind by a flood, Deucalion constructed a boat in which he landed on Mt. Parnassas with his wife." H. P. Blavatsky, *The Secret Doctrine*, Vol. II, p. 769 says: "Deukalion is said to have brought the worship of Adonis and Osiris into Phoenicia. Now the worship is that of the Sun...." So here we have another story of Noah, worshipping the Sun which was called Adonis, and Aton in Egyptian. We have seen above that many Greeks mostly came from Egypt and Phoenicia (which was all one land at one time). The earliest Greek alphabet is identical to the Phoenician except flipped over backwards. The word Adonis is simply Aton with the Greek terminus. It is easy enough for you to trace Adonis down through history as Adon, Odon, Odin, Woden, into our Wednesday, etc., always hated by the Christians as a "pagan".

Here is a currently occurring ending to that trail, as published in the letters section of an Egyptology magazine available on the newsstand. West, et.al, react to Hawass interview in the Winter 1997 issue of *KMT*, *A Modern Journal of Ancient Egypt*, [QUOTE:]

We are much intrigued by Dr. Zahi Hawass's categorical statement (*KMT* 8:2, summer '97) "There absolutely is no chamber under the paw of the Sphinx." It is not we, but our seismograph, that begs to disagree. Since our seismograph clearly indicates the existence, size and shape of both the Baraize passage and the passage/chamber beneath the rump of the Sphinx, we remain inclined to trust the authority of our seismograph, even above that of Dr. Hawass. We are unaware of the "many tests run in the area by different scientists" that disagree with our seismograph.

Hancock and Bauval are not pursuing "the beliefs of Edgar Cayce". They are merely pursuing their own astronomical research where it leads them, as Schoch and West pursue their geology. We neither believe nor disbelieve in the "Hall of Records". But we do place some credence in the seismograph, in statigrapher Rober Schoch's expertise in matters pertaining to weathering patterns on stone, in the demonstrable star alignments of the pyramids, and the formal stellar relationships cited in the *Pyramid Texts* (that equate the

king with Osiris, Osiris with Orion, and the pyramid of the king with Osiris) and in our own ability to counter the largely inept and mutually contradictory attempts at rebuttal so far put forward in the pages of *KMT* by Mark Lehner, Zahi Hawass, James Harrell, Robert Chadwick, et al.

We have never claimed the pyramids or Sphinx were built by "non-human aliens", as Dr. Hawass claims we have (or even by Atlanteans or angels, as Dr. Hawass has claimed elsewhere). Nor do we claim that the Great Pyramid was built by other than Khufu in the Old Kingdom. What we do claim is that the geological, astronomical and mythological evidence powerfully supports the existence of a sophisticated (perhaps global) civilization existing in deep antiquity that apparently vanished precipitously under catastrophic conditions. We believe that the water-weathered Sphinx was carved during this earlier period, when the original structures of the Giza Plateau were also established—leaving as quite indisputable further proof of that prior period of construction of the core masonry of the Sphinx and Valley temples, the lower courses of core masonry of the Khafre pyramid, the cyclopean paving stones on its east face, the equally prodigious blocks of the Menkaure causeway, the deeply weathered bedrock core of the so-called Tomb of Khentkaus, several deeply weathered shafts at Sakkara, etc., etc., etc., etc. Since the Egyptians themselves frequently referred to reigns long prior to their own history—during which Egypt was ruled first by the neterw and then by the Shemsu Hor—we fail to understand the rationale behind the extraordinary hostility expressed towards our views. Afer all, we are doing little more than applying the hard sciences of geology and astronomy to prove that the ancient Egyptians knew rather more about their own history than do Dr. Hawass and his colleagues. Far from us "stealing Egypt's history", as Dr. Hawass likes to claim, we are in fact giving it back to her.

Dr. Hawass's expressed public contempt for Edgar Cayce and the Cayce readings is equally mystifying, given both his actions and his demonstrable association with the Cayce foundation. In Robert Smith's biography of Hugh Lynn Cayce (Edgar Cayce's son), *About My Father's Business*, the younger Cayce is quoted as follows: "I got him [Hawass] a scholarship at the University of Pennsylvania in Egyptology to get his Ph.D. I got the scholarship through an ARE person who happens to be on the Fulbright scholarship board." (ARE, the Association of Research and Enlightenment, is the organization devoted to investigating the Cayce prophecies and readings). We understand that Dr. Hawass denies this. Hugh Lynn Cayce is deceased, so there is no way to verify this statement; but we can think of no reason why he should have invented such a claim at a time when the present controversy had not erupted and no sensitivity was attached to it. Whatever the truth, what is undeniable is that since the late 1970s Dr. Hawass has participated in and supported a number of investigations directly or indirectly financed by Cayce interests.

Most recently this was the Florida State University investigation, wholly financed by Dr. Joseph Schor through his Schor Foundation. As Dr. Hawass knows full well (through long friendship and associations), Dr. Schor is a lifetime ARE member, whose chief stated aim in life is the vindication of the Cayce prophecies. (We can provide written documentation on this point.) The FSU investigation, under the cover of its credentials, had no other aim. Indeed, in a blatantly commercial promotional video—financed by Dr. Schor and produced by Boris Said, while the Florida State investigation was in progress—Dr. Hawass makes a dramatic appearance in which he claims that a "secret chamber" will soon be opened for the first time. This video then goes on to discuss the Cayce prophecies at some length.

Under such circumstances, it is amusing to see Dr. Hawass criticize our supposed lack of credentials, formal training, credibility, "New Age" beliefs and allegedly commercial motives. It is also worth noting

that in recent press conferences in Egypt, Dr. Hawass has been insinuating that we are part of an Israeli plot to humiliate Egypt (*Egyptian Gazette*, May 17, 1997, also *Massawr* and *El-Ahram*). We find it odd that he should have neglected to level this charge in his *KMT* interview. It is, after all, no less credible, considered, scientific and responsible than his other comments. —Signed, John Anthony West, Robert M. Schoch, Robert Bauval, Graham Hancock. [END QUOTE]

AKHNATON, THE LONG-NECKED

Graves and Patai say, p. 106: "The Nefilim (Fallen Ones) bore many other tribal names, such as Emim (Terrors), Rephaim (Weakeners), Gibborim (Giant Heroes), Zamzummim (Achievers), Anakim (Longnecked or Wearers of Necklaces), Awwim (Devastators of Serpents). One of the Nefilim named Arba is said to have built the city of Hebron, called 'Kiriath-Arba' after him, and become the father of Anak whose three sons, Sheshai, Ahiman and Talmai, were later expelled by Joshua's comrade Caleb. Since, however, arba means 'four' in Hebrew, Kiriath-Arba may originally have meant 'City of Four', a reference to its four quarters mythically connected with the Anakite clans: Anak himself and his 'sons' Sheshai, Ahiman and Talmai." The old texts concerning the Anakim speak of "long-necked" but the translators cannot believe this to be correct, so some decided this must be translated "Wearers of Necklaces".

akhnaton

"Kiriath" or "Kirjath" in the *Bible* comes from the Phoenician "kartha" which was also the name of Tyre. When Tyre was defeated, the Phoenician merchants moved to Carthage.

It occurs to me that the Egyptian King Ahknaton was depicted with a long neck (as was Nefertiti, as I am sure you will recall now that I mention it)—was he (and she) an "Anakim"? Why the long neck? He certainly did not look like most humans. Was he an extra-terrestrial, or descended from a different extraterrestrial line? The *Bible* tells of the children of Anak living at Hebron (*Num. 13:22*), which was also known as Kiriath-Arba. Hebron was built seven years before Zoan in Egypt (same verse), also known as Tanis (see reference books). According to *Jubilees 13:10-11* and *Numbers 13:22*, Hebron was built at the time Abraham arrived. Abraham stayed there two years, then went to Egypt (Tanis). Five years later Sarah was taken by Pharaoh, and seven years after Hebron was built, the city of Tanis in Egypt was built. Tanis was later known as Zoan. It was from Zoan that the Israelites later began the Exodus. Zoan was the capital of Goshen, and the land of Goshen was known as the field of Zoan (*Psa. 78:43, 12, 13, 36*). I show elsewhere in this document that the land of Goshen was the Nile Delta. This connects Abraham with the dynasties of Egypt, and connects the "long-necks" with the time and place of Noah and Abraham. Ahkenaton became king of Thebes. The portraits of Ahkenaton often depict him as much bigger and taller than his subjects—a giant of a man—but this is explained as simply artistic emphasis on the pharaoh. Was it simply the truth? Was Ahkenaton an Anakite or a Nefilim or an Anakim-Aton (Anakimaton/Akhenaton)?

Nefertiti wrote a document called *The Prophecies of Nefertiti* which I have not seen (referenced on p. 118, *In The Shadow of the Pyramids* by Jaromir Malek, University of Oklahoma Press).

The commentators on Akhenaton, who was originally known as Amenhothep IV and thus was assumed to be the son of Amenhotepe III, have noticed that Amenhotepe IV/Akhenaton seems to come to the throne from somewhere else and does not know much about the current situation. They speculate that perhaps he had a birth defect and was not considered [as able] to live, so was sent into exile.

Many of the names of the Nefilim are known: Hiwa, Hiya, Azazel, Ishtar, Nimrod, Shemhazai, Anax, etc. In fact the whole land of Canaan was occupied by Nefilim giants before Joshua killed them (*Num. 13:33*).

The *Bible* says that Canaan was inhabited by "giants" some of whom were the Anakhim. The actual Hebrew word for "giants", however, is "nephilim". Some have suggested the Anakhim were the Anunnaki. "The people sometimes called the Pulusata or Philistines are often represented with a head-dress identical with that of the goddess Anuka" (p. 305, *Origines Celticae*, Edwin Guest). The Anakims were also called "Emims" (*Deut. 2:11*) and are called "Amney" in the Peshitta and "Ommin" and "Enakim" in the *Septuagint*. Consider that other sources talk of the giants as Titans, Heroes, "Sons of God". You might want to think twice about just who was fighting who, and where was the God of Light in all this.

Although all the giants were supposedly killed in the Flood (*Gen. 7*), Joshua destroyed most of the Anakims *again* (*Josh. 11:22*): "There was none of the Anakims left in the land of the children of Israel: only in Gaza, in Gath, and in Ashdod, there remained." Anak was named after Enoch, which was the same original name, and perhaps he *was* Enoch, (who did not die)?

The reference books on Ikhnaton say that he spent so much time worshipping his strange god that he allowed his kingdom to fall apart. Invading armies captured his outposts in Canaan. Exactly who were these enemies of Akhenaton and Aton that were causing him such a hard time? The answer is given in a clay tablet pictured on page 223 of *Ancient Times—A History of the Early World* by James Henry Breasted, Ginn And Company, copyright 1916 and 1935. The () and [] inserts in the following quote are from the book, not from me. This is Breasted's text under the picture [QUOTE:]

Letter of the Egyptian Governor of Jerusalem telling of the Invasion of Palestine by the Hebrews (Fourteenth Century B.C.). The letter is a clay tablet written in Babylonian cuneiform by the terrified Egyptian governor, who begs the Pharaoh (Ikhnaton) for help, saying: "The Khabiru [Hebrews] are taking the cities of the king. No ruler remains to the king, my lord; all are lost." This letter is one of the group of three hundred such cuneiform letters found in a room of Ikhnaton's palace at tell el-Amarna (or Amarna), and called the Amarna Letters. [END QUOTE]

Oh, my. Oh, my.

Now I recall that the nephilim were sometimes called "devastators of serpents" while their enemies, the Israelites, looked to a serpent for their healing (*Num. 21:8*) while Moses carried a rod that became a serpent (*Exodus 7:10*). When the Israelites built an idol of a bull, Moses got mad at them (wrong god). The Israelites gave the Pharaoh a hard time, the Pharaoh who honored the God of Light, the Aton, "He perceived the universal sway of God in his fatherly care of all men alike, irrespective of race or nationality, and to the proud and exclusive Egyptian he pointed to the all-embracing bounty of the common father of humanity, even placing Syria and Nubia before Egypt in his enumeration. It is this aspect of Ikhnaton's mind which is especially remarkable; he is alike the first prophet and the first wise-man of history." And on

the next page Breasted said that in Ikhnaton's "teaching" there was "a constant emphasis upon 'truth' such as is not found before nor since." In the meantime, the Israelites were destroying Akhenaton's kingdom and following a God who ordered them to kill every man, woman, child and beast, a God who then killed thousands of Israelites because they did not do their slaying with enough efficiency. "Thus saith the Lord God of Israel, Put every man his sword by his side, and go in and out from gate to gate throughout the camp, and slay every man his brother, and every man his companion, and every man his neighbor" (*Exodus 32:27*). The God of Israel instituted the cutting of throats and the sprinkling of blood as religious rites, and delighted in the sweet savour of burning flesh. Which God would you prefer, the God of Israel, or the God of the Universe?

Oh, my, my.

A THOUGHTFUL REVIEW

The "experts" argue. The Assyriologists claim that civilization started at Sumer. The Egyptologists claim the priority of Egypt. Those who study India, Sanskrit, and the Aryans claim that civilization started in India. Christians say Noah's ark landed on a plateau in Northern India, or at Sumer, on a mountain in Turkey, and we've seen evidence of Noah's "TUB" landing at "THEBES". Who is right? Confusing? Not really! Think about it!

Noah showed up from the "waters" with Shem, Ham, and Japheth.

Who do you think was assigned to an outpost in Egypt? (Hint: the earliest name for Egypt was Ham.)

Who do you think was assigned to Sumer? (Hint: the people in Sumer were called Shemites/Semites.)

Who do you think might have settled beginning at Mohenjo-Daro, in the IN-DUS Valley, one of the oldest settlements on Earth, in IN-DIA, and then in chINa? (Hint: they say he was a priest-king. Who was father of the Yellow Races, who, according to the traditions, settled originally on a River named Yellow?)

Can anybody help me figure this out?

Don't forget, that according to the stories, there were already people there. The Founders immediately built cities for protection. And human nature being what it is, there were soon arguments and fights over who was the best, who was more equal, who was first, who was the greatest, where the boundary markers should be set, and the rest of the story of civilization. And I don't think Ham/Shem/Japheth quite cover all the bases, either.

I hope you "experts" can now WAKE UP to the truth and the possibilities. Whether you like it or not, **our Founders** *are back!* The governments know it, and are scared to death that you will now find out how badly those governments have treated you.

The question always comes, if the "angels" are back, why don't they show themselves? For one thing, when they materialize, they become subject to material laws, and we try to shoot them down. "No, thank you, *not yet*."

Why don't they do something about this mess? If they had intended to do that, they would have been

doing it all along. They obviously placed us here and then took a "hands-off" attitude. They have a non-interference policy, just like on the program *Star-Trek*. As a matter of fact, how many of you know that Gene Roddenberry had a "UFO encounter"? Just where do you think he might have gotten those ideas?

If you want to have more of your questions answered, why don't you go to the "horse's mouth", or in this case, the "bird's mouth", the Phoenix of the Bird Tribes? You can do it the hard way and check out all the UFO literature and sort them out one by one, or you can use your head. Pick out the group that is the most ridiculed, the most despised, the most censored, the most vilified (sounds like a description of Christ, doesn't it), the most hated by the (all controlled) UFO groups and the governments *and go there first*. In other words, go straight to the Big Boy himself. Subscribe to *CONTACT* Newspaper, but don't just subscribe. Get *all* the back issues and *all* the journals, and *read* them. You say you can't afford it, and don't have time, etc.? Oh, so you didn't really want to know anyway, did you. When the world comes down around your ears, go ahead and spend your money on your Christmas purchases, and your time on your ball games. Or consider becoming part of the adventure of a lifetime, get involved where "it's happening", and take a journey to the stars. The sky is the limit!

Let there be Light. Calvin Burgin

CHAPTER 12

NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT

ELITE POWER-PLAY OVER HIDING TRUE ANCIENT HISTORY: THE HALL OF OSIRIS by Dr. Al Overholt 4/18/98

Editor's note: We share the following information especially for those of you who have been keeping up with the shenanigans on this subject brought forth in installments over the last year or so on Art Bell's late-night talk-radio program. For longtime CONTACT readers, that the elite controllers are hiding important aspects of this planet's cultural history comes as no surprise. However, as push comes to shove among the infighting of the elite for the "King of the mountain" position in the hierarchy, more examples like the following are likely to leak out in the cross fire of power-plays for position and control.

DR. HAWASS: OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE

Larry Hunter & Amargi Hillier's SPECIAL INVESTIGATION

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 4/12/98: [quoting]

Sources high in the Egyptian Government have revealed a most startling development in the occupational status of Dr. Zahi Hawass. On March 17-24, 1998, we, Larry Hunter and Amargi Hillier, while on assignment in Egypt working on an upcoming http://www.amargiland.com/hallofrecords/secretchamber/Hall of Osiris Hall of Osiris story, were asked by an honorable Egyptian government person, with responsibilities related to the safety of Egypt's #1 tourist site—the Giza Pyramids and Sphinx—to be his guest. While in his company, we were informed of a most interesting development regarding the occupational position of Dr. Hawass.

What Dr. Zahi Hawass doesn't want you to know is that a secret document, signed by a very high Egyptian Government official, orders his suspension as Director General of the Giza Plateau. The document revokes Dr. Hawass' signature authority concerning the monuments of Giza for a time period of at least six months, and also orders his transfer to a temporary position with the Sound and Light Show.

During this time, Dr. Hawass has been instructed to remove himself from his office and take up his new position at Sound and Lights. However, Dr. Hawass, with the assistance and protection of the highest antiquity official, Farouk Hosney—Chairman of Antiquities, Minister of Culture—is not complying with the orders of the higher Egyptian Government Authority. Dr. Hawass is continuing to act as the Director General of the Giza Plateau and is still signing documents. During a time that he is reportedly no longer the director, Dr. Hawass continues to suggest to the world that he is.

Is this not a classic case of obstruction of justice of a high Egyptian official? For the suspension is related to an official investigation into possible criminal activities by Dr. Zahi Hawass related to Egyptian antiquities. This news flash, hopefully, will provide for you a first and groundbreaking peek at the corruption and deception of a man who will soon be under the probing spotlight of the Egyptian and world media, as well as his own government. This is the first match to be struck in an effort to shed light on the truth about what is really going on in Egypt. The light is now on you, Dr. Zahi Hawass. Stay tuned for the 2nd match to be struck which will ignite the next most startling and disturbing truth. God's light will soon be shining bright, exposing the truth concerning his city and his ancient monuments.

Please Note: This news flash is meant to support the efforts of the high Egyptian government official who so bravely wrote the suspension order. If he needs our help in getting the truth to the world, we are at his service. Please contact us, Larry Hunter or Amargi Hillier, at the following e-mail: <hunterhillier@-amargiland.com> We call on all the Egyptian newspapers to pick up this story and follow it to the end. Do not be afraid that doing so will drive away more tourists. Be confident in knowing, we as tourists are tired of being ripped off, lied to and denied our heritage concerning the truth as it relates to the true purpose and origin of Egypt's Great Monuments. The Truth is what will bring us back. [End quoting]

* * *

HALL OF OSIRIS

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 4/98: [quoting]

hall of osiris pyrimid

The Great Pyramid stands not only as a test of time but as the great marker of time. The view from the left is standing on top of the Great Pyramid looking towards the 2nd pyramid. Exquisite in its construction and purpose, the Great Pyramid sits firm on its hill cutting through the air with its precise angles and geometry. At its feet are the villagers, and their living Merkabas, who have kept watch over this monument for generations. Within the structure is a labyrinth of chambers and tunnels with functions that are both symbolic and technologistic. Most of you are quite familiar with what chambers currently exist within this mass of masonry. Any book on the subject of the Great Pyramid will offer you diagrams of the King's Chamber, Queen's Chamber, Subterranean Chamber, Davidson Chamber and all the passageways, etc. And with the current events surrounding the pyramids, people are eagerly waiting to hear the news of a new chamber inside the Great Pyramid.

While the audience looks towards the door "found" by Gatenbrink's robot (as the story is told), with dreams of what may be found behind, an incredible act of deception has been carried out away from public view. This is magic not of the spiritual kind but of the stage kind; where the magician is not a sorcerer of

etheric paradigms but rather a trickster able to con the audience into looking towards one way, thinking one thing—yet all the while the magician does another. We can consider Dr. Zahi Hawass as one of the best stage magicians of all time. For within the most ancient structure of the world, Hawass has tricked all of us to look the other way as the mechanics of his actions are focused away from the public's eye. Unfortunately, this deception is far from entertaining and dives into a world darker and more secret than you could ever imagine.

What we are dealing with here, and will soon be revealing on this website, is over 30 years of deception, corruption and selfishness revolving around the Great Pyramid complex. For laying hidden, yet uncovered and known only to a few, is a chamber inside the pyramid that the world at large does not know about. As we unfold this investigation to you, your focus will move away from shaft-crawling robots and pyramid debates to antiquity crime and secret digging. Secret digs became a mainstream thought after Larry Hunter and Richard Hoagland revealed last year a questionable excavation going on in the Davidson Chamber, above the King's Chamber. But what we will reveal to you shortly goes into another location inside the Great Pyramid with events that stem back decades ago to an interesting, prolific time in Egyptian antiquity history.

The "Hall of Osiris", as we have nicknamed it, is a chamber of massive proportions with many levels and doorways. If you can get past the current gate that allows access to the descending passageway inside the Great Pyramid, you will be heading towards one entrance to this secret chamber. But don't let the stage magician fool you. You will not know what you are looking at even if you are standing in the grotto. In April, we will reveal the truth about this secret chamber and the events surrounding its discovery and subsequent secrecy. Included, you will read testimony of those who have lived and worked at/near the Great Pyramid; you will hear what they have known and have seen for over 30 years. This chamber with a 250-foot-high ceiling, with columns to match, lay hidden but not forgotten by those who have entered this chamber. Complete with a spiral staircase built under the direction of Dr. Hawass, found within were statues including those of King Solomon and King David. What else was found inside will rock your soul and wake your intuitive senses. As we bring you closer to the body of Osiris himself, we pose a question to you: Why haven't you known about this before? In a future installment, we will try to answer this question for you.

Stay Tuned At This Website.... E-mail us at:<ztduat@th pentagon.com><http://www.amargiland.com/hall-of-records/secretchamber/>

Amargi Hillier & Larry Hunter

CHAPTER 13

THE BAMBOOZLING OF AMERICA OPINION POLLS AND YOU

by John Coleman 3/30/98

In one of the most remarkable displays of mass brainwashing, the people of the United States are not yet beginning to wake up to just how far this demoralizing remaking of the human mind has gone. The brainwashing experts at the Tavistock Institute, Stanford and MIT, must be chortling and chuckling with glee at the success of their ongoing war against America, which began in 1946. Mass brainwashing, once no more than a theory, has come of age, and without it, America would never have had to undergo the Clinton presidency, unique in its own right like none other before it.

What is at the heart of the system which is sweeping away the bastions of Republican America like the El Nino floods? Like El Nino, the Tavistock system is an artificially-created one designed to introduce big changes in the way the American people think, just as El Nino has introduced big changes in the way that the weather behaves. Neither process is by evolution; both spring from a new kind of activism which was first introduced by Soviet scientists in the 1920s to change the way the weather behaves, and by "social scientists" operating out of the Tavistock Institute of Human Relations in the 1920s, to change our perception of ourselves and the country in which we live. In both instances the outcome of such interference with "Nature" has had the most far reaching and shockingly disturbing consequences.

Public mass brainwashing has been achieved and will continue to be achieved through what has become known as taking a poll. Contrary to what the majority of the American people believe, taking a poll is not an elementary process of getting one's opinion by asking for it; rather, it is a highly complex methodology perfected by three-quarters of a century of the fine tuning of the human mind, so as to become receptive to the IDEAS planted in the mind. And thus achieves the ultimate object of the pollsters; that being to bring forth an opinion which is not that of the giver, but rather one created in the "subject's" mind, so that he or she will provide substantiation by the majority that a particular course of action, or a policy thought desirable by government may be given the stamp of approval by a seeming majority.

This strategy is now firmly established in our political and social life to such a degree that is has been totally acceptable as a way of finding out what opinion people have about a particular subject under strong contention and where dissension prevails, so that all opposition is quieted in the face of the apparent opinion of a seeming majority.

What is dangerously wrong with this picture is that the desired result is preprogrammed and therefore, the end result a foregone conclusion. An opinion poll result rests in the hands of the polling organization and how it manipulates with skilled directional questions just like the polygraph operator can obtain the desired result through skillful manipulation of his instrument which will elicit the "proper" responses to the "proper" questions. Whereas with a polygraph test, this may not always be a fraudulent procedure, with an opinion poll, it is rarely little else when done by a professional pollster.

Before we proceed any further, let us look at a story in point in the San Francisco Examiner of March

22, last month. It is an example of just how brainwashed we have become toward accepting polling as infallible, time after time:

"Starr treads perilous path as he ponders his next move" the sub-heading reads and then goes on to say; "Haltingly, after nine weeks of investigation and despite growing opinion polls showing him to be one of the least popular public figures, Kenneth Starr is gaining traction."

Here is found in the very opening stanza of this piece of organized brainwashing the key passage that will dominate the entire article viz., "despite opinion polls...". This immediately establishes the presumption that unless "opinion polls" favor Mr. Starr, he will not succeed. Further down in the article it goes on to say: "Two national polls last month found that only 11 percent of those surveyed had a favorable opinion of Mr. Starr."

Here it is presented as fact that Mr. Starr is disliked by a great many people. It then goes on to stress that popularity, not fact, will decide the outcome: "If Mr. Clinton's lawyers and Starr's office agree on anything it is that the president's popularity remains, for now, a dominating consideration." The bedazzled public immediately thinks that most of the population is solidly behind Mr. Clinton, regardless of what he does.

Not stated is that Mr. Clinton was elected by slightly over half of the people who voted and that, let us say, taking the pollster's figures that the president enjoys the support of 65 percent of those polled: What it means is that 65 percent of 50 percent of the people support Mr. Clinton, not 65 percent of 100 percent of the people, supposing for a minute that the pollsters had called the entire 50 percent of those who voted for Mr. Clinton.

This they could not do, so they settled for 700 or 900 carefully selected people and called for their opinions and then announced that "65 percent of the people support Mr. Clinton." But they presupposed that those 65 percent of 50 percent of Clinton supporters represent the opinion of more that 200 million voters. How did it come to pass that the American people would accept such fraudulent findings?

The premier brainwashing "think tank" is the Tavistock Institute For Human Relations based in Sussex, England and founded in 1921 by the British Army Psychological Warfare Bureau under the direction of Major John Rawlings Reese. It is from this institute that mass brainwashing grew in 1921 until it became of age in the 1950s, and to where its polling techniques are used as a weapon to bamboozle the American people. There has never been a success story quite to match the bamboozling of the American people by means of the sleight of hand of the conjuring trick we now know so well, as "taking a poll".

It is a created popularity, Tavistock-created popularity deduced from polling, that shields the Clintons from charges of wrongdoing; created and then used to deflect all manner of genuine enquiry. Polling became to the Clintons what the tank became to the British Army bogged down in the trenches in France in the First World War.

CHAPTER 14

THE NEW DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 4/4/98

DID PRESIDENT CLINTON MEET JESUS??

From *THE WEEKLY WORLD PRESS*, courtesy Alta Hunly, 4/11/98: [quoting]

President Clinton met for more than two hours at the White House with a mysterious bearded visitor—and astonishingly, a usually reliable administration source claims it was Jesus Christ Himself!

According to the source, the mystery visitor appeared to be in his early 30s, resembled traditional paintings of Christ and incredibly, had what looked like a halo behind his head!

"Jesus appeared in the White House on February 28 at approximately 11:30 p.m." claims the source, who asked to remain anonymous. "He entered the West Wing totally unannounced, after somehow circumventing White House security, and He asked to speak to the President." Initially, Secret Service agents attempted to eject the stranger, but after a brief exchange, President Clinton became convinced that the visitor might indeed be Jesus, according to the source. "Mr. Clinton invited Him into the Oval Office," the source said. Although the visitor requested a private audience, the President felt, that the meeting was of such historic importance he ordered that it be witnessed by three aides.

No transcripts of the meeting have been made available to the press, but the source says the White House guest spent much time listening to the President before offering a few words of advice.

"The President was deeply moved by the discussion. At one point in the meeting he was so moved he openly wept, said the source.

"I believe Jesus may have been forgiving the President."

Another White House aide acknowledged the meeting, but rejected any suggestions that Jesus was "forgiving" the embattled leader, who is in the midst of a sex scandal.

The aide insisted that the two discussed problems ranging from domestic issues such as abortion and the death penalty to international affairs such as the Mideast peace process.

"The meeting was cordial and productive," the aide said.

Since the bizarre story broke, tight-lipped White House spokesmen have neither confirmed nor denied that the meeting took place. [End quoting]

Use your discernment, but don't forget HIGH beings met with George Bush, George Washington, Eisenhower

and who knows how many other world leaders—especially in the times of crises. Hatonn has told us [paraphrasing] these end times will not end in any way that we expect, but that **GOD WINS**!!

WHEN THE FINAL TERROR BEGINS

From THE COMMITTEE TO RESTORE THE CONSTITUTION, 4/98: [quoting]

When the final terror begins, when revolution is unleashed, it will then be found that the standing army which society maintains to defend itself, i.e., policemen, soldiers, judges, legislators and other agencies of order, is neutralized, captured, subverted and compromised. It will be found that the power structure of the civilization has been covertly transferred from the hands of those who created it to an alien control. And, it will be found that subversion of the social order and the concealed recruitment of the legions of revolt have been accomplished by those who **pose as the benefactors and protectors of humanity** [*emphasis mine*]. —*The Anatomy Of A Revolution* (1968) by Archibald E. Roberts, Lt.Col. AUS, ret. [End quoting]

Are we going to continue to sit back and let it happen like this?

POLITICIAN BLASTS JEWS

Russian claims Jews started WWII, provoked Holocaust. by Vladimir Isachenkov

From THE Bakersfield Californian, courtesy of Audrey Johnson, 4/9/97: [quoting]

MOSCOW—In his most direct anti-Semitic statements yet, ultranationalist Vladimir Zhirinovsky blamed Jews on Wednesday for starting World War II and provoking the Holocaust.

The politician's anti-Semitic comments have drawn international condemnation for years, but Wednesday's remarks in an hour-long address to reporters were some of his least subtle.

"The essence of the conflict around the Jewish people is that when their number grows too much in some country, war breaks out there," said Zhirinovsky, who leads the third-largest faction in the Russian parliament's lower house.

"That happened in Germany...where there were too many Jews," he declared.

Zhirinovsky, a former presidential candidate, has a flamboyant style and clearly relishes making provocative statements.

It was not clear why he called the news conference, which he turned into a monologue about his vision of the history of the Jews and their role in contemporary life.

"Many Jews were born in April," was the only explanation he provided.

Rabbi Abraham Cooper, associate dean of the Los Angeles-based Simon Wiesenthal Center, said Zhirinovsky's statement also could have been timed for the Jewish holiday of Passover, which begins Friday, or Holocaust Memorial Day on April 23.

His allegation that Jews started World War II was not just "a slap in the face to the Jewish victims", but also an appeal to strong emotions around the war effort, one of the few national undertakings of the Soviet era that remain sacred in today's Russia, Cooper said.

"He's talking to a country that lost 20 million people in the Second World War," he said.

Cooper called on Russia's political and Orthodox Church leaders "to put Zhirinovsky in his place" and reject his statements.

Anti-Semitism is widespread in Russia, which has the third-largest Jewish population in the world, after the United States and Israel. Still, Zhirinovsky's remarks were stronger than most ever aired publicly.

While repeating several times that his party isn't anti-Semitic, Zhirinovsky accused Jews of sparking the 1917 Bolshevik revolution and bringing Russia to ruin ever since.

"You will always find Jews where war is raging, because they realize that money flows where blood is spilled," he said.

He repeated stereotypical slurs, and even accused the Jews of causing repressions and the Holocaust.

"Jews themselves, Zionist leaders, often provoked anti-Jewish sentiments, and Jewish pogroms," he said. He also accused Jews of taking Russian women abroad for prostitution, selling healthy Russian children and transplant organs to the West and robbing Russia of its gold, diamonds and other assets. [End quoting]

For those of you who have been reading the ongoing series on the Zionist "Jews" in recent issues of *CONTACT* one might come to the conclusion that Zhirinovsky has been reading *CONTACT*. Henry Ford's information was already "old" when he first presentd it in the early 1920s.

TENN. RESOLUTION: OPPOSING BIOSPHERE RESERVES

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Gail Irwin, 4/10/98: [quoting]

Tennessee Senate Joint Resolution opposing UN Biosphere Reserves did not make it out of committee today. Sen. Tommy Burks, author of the resolution pulled it in committee when he realized there was <u>4 for 5 against</u> [*emphasis mine*]. It will be back, unless the UN owns the state capitol at Nashville.

According to the best source of information I have, the yes votes would have been Burks #15, McNally

#5, Ramsey #2, Mike Williams #4. The no votes would have probably been Davis #12, Chairman Gilbert #7, Kurita #7, Graves #18, Kyle #28.

I hope Tennesseans really understand what they may have lost today. I have more reasoning left than some legislators have collectively. I have been advised I am losing memory but I want to to be able to die free.

The following Senators need a call to STOP the American Heritage River Initiative (AHRI), the new Watershed Initiative, or other similar initiatives.

Bud Gilbert (Chairman) 615-741-2234, Jim Kyle 615-741-4167, Lincoln Davis 615-741-1449, Jo Ann Graves 615-741-1654, Rosalind Kurita 615-741-2374, Randy McNally 615-741-6806, Ron Ramsey 615-741-4524, and Mike Williams 615-741-2061.

Please remember to be polite and courteous. We want to give Senators a reason to believe us and find us credible. Threats to never vote for them again, for instance, are not helpful. We can win a lot more with sugar than with vinegar. [End quoting]

It's time we all put forth strong effort to stop the stealing of America.

WARNING FROM SPACE

Excerpted from THE LOS ANGELES TIMES, 4/9/98: [quoting]

A Russian scientist claims he has devised a system for detecting earthquakes from outer space several hours before they hit U.S.—experts remain doubtful.

A Russian scientist says the method of forecasting proposed by physics professor Arkady Galper is based on the discovery that electromagnetic waves emanating from Earth just before a big temblor appear to change the behavior of particles in the radiation belt that rings the planet.

Galper, director of the Institute of Space Physics at the Moscow Engineering and Physics Institute, said three groups of Russian scientists have corroborated his results. But no major scientific papers have been published on his earthquake forecasting idea and it has not been subjected to the scrutiny of peer review that is standard in the United States.

Indeed, several U.S. earthquake experts queried about Galper's work were deeply skeptical, saying that there was little evidence to support it or any other prediction theory. [End quoting]

If we allow for so many modern earthquakes to be man-made, say from pounding the Earth with particle beams, etc., then the idea of detecting those events, earthquakes-in-the-making, is not such a preposterous leap of thought.

To the editor:

From *MEDIA BYPASS*, letter to the editor, 3/98: [quoting]

Regarding the [February] letter from Bernard Sussman, J.C., M.L.S., C.P., "Reader Disputes Notion that United States is a 'Corporation', Mr. Sussman seems mentally crippled by the organizations that put all those capital letters behind his name. The law most definitely states that the 'United States' is a corporation. The Clerafield Doctrine states, "Governments descend to the level of a mere corporation and take on the characteristics of a mere private citizen... where private corporate commercial paper [Federal Reserve Notes] and securities [checks] are concerned..." <u>Clerafield Trust Co. v. United States</u> (318 U.S. 363-371).

For Mr. Sussman's further edification, the U.S. Court of Appeals [in the case of Lewis v. United States (1982, 680 F. 2d 1240)] stated, "The Federal Reserve Banks are independent, privately owned and locally controlled corporations." The Federal Reserve Bank is the latest, but not the first, corporation to commit constructive treason against the natural free live American Citizens. In case Mr. Sussman does not know what constructive treason is, I recommend that he get a refund from the government education centers that put those capital letters behind his name.

One more thing—the so-called "Civil War" in this country was not about slavery; Property rights, in rem and absolute, was the issue and still is today. This may come as a shock, but the wanna-be controllers lied to everyone then as they continue to do so today.

Erick Jones, #167157 POB 900 JCCC, Jefferson City, Mo. 65102

[Editor's note: Mr. Jones, currently incarcerated in a "franchise agent/corporate prison, technically not a 'federal' prison", invites correspondence directed to the above address.] [End quoting]

paste surplus graph

LAWYERS—LEGAL THIEVES PUT ON DEFENSE!!

Excerpted from a HALT news dispatch, (HALT: an Organization of Americans for Legal Reform), courtesy Claire Melgren, 4/98: [quoting]

Dear HALT Member,

As early as this month, the Illinois Supreme Court will hear a case that has major repercussions for all of us who are fighting for legal reform.

At long last, an outrageous special privilege that has kept the legal establishment from being held account-

able to the public is being challenged in the courts of law—and HALT needs your help to make sure that the voice of the American consumer is heard.

The case involves a tragedy that is, sadly, not uncommon.

The children of Roberta Schmitz, an 85-year-old widow from Illinois who is suffering from Alzheimer's disease, claim that their mother was the victim of unscrupulous lawyers.

They allege that the man who was entrusted to handle her legal affairs overbilled her by more than \$40,000.

They want what any of us would want in such a situation—to get their mother's money back and to hold the lawyers involved accountable. To this end, they've sued for consumer fraud.

If we were talking about a plumber, an accountant, a doctor, a roofer, or any other profession, the trial court would have been able to pass judgment under Illinois' Consumer Fraud Act.

But the defendant is a lawyer—and he is arguing that attorneys, who allegedly engage in deceptive billing practices, should be shielded from being held liable under the Illinois Consumer Fraud Act.

The powerful and wealthy legal establishment has weighed in on this case—even going so far as to argue that everything a lawyer does is the practice of law and therefore privileged.

They know that the stakes in this case are extremely high. If they lose, the legal community will no longer be able to hide their mistakes under the cloak of secrecy provided by the state's lawyer-run disciplinary agency.

HALT has come down solidly on the side of Roberta Schmitz's family by filing an amicus curiae, or friend-of-the-court brief, with the Illinois Supreme Court.

We are determined to convince the court that no profession is above the law. Lawyers should not be given blanket immunity from laws that protect consumers against fraud and other improper business practices.

And that, we will argue, is the critical factor in this case. It is also why we believe the court must rule on behalf of the consumer.

You see, the specific charges brought by the Schmitz family do not allege that her lawyer provided bad legal advice. Instead, they claim he overcharged their mother for the services he performed and billed for time he never spent on her affairs.... [End quoting]

They really have a lot of nerve to go to court and fight for legal rights to steal what they desire from their clients.

CASINO SPY-CHIP

From UNKNOWN, 4/98: [quoting]

Because gambling chips are real money, casino operators have always built in security features, such as microprinting or microgrooving, which can't be duplicated easily.

Now two companies are taking advantage of the plummeting price of electronics to take security to the next level of the game. Chipco, of Maine, and Bourgogne et Grasset, of France, are testing the most secure casino chip ever devised. Each chip contains an embedded microprocessor connected to a transmitter and low-frequency radio antenna.

Tracked by a PC-based network, each chip will tell casino managers which gambler is betting how much on what table.

The biggest beneficiary may be Uncle Sam, who will receive a detailed record of what every gambler wins. [End quoting]

The worst gangsters in the world—the IRS PRIVATE CORPORATION—will probably make a fortune off of this one—<u>not</u> Uncle Sam who is **just the bagman.**

ANGELS IN THE DEATH CHAMBER

From THE WEEKLY WORLD NEWS, courtesy Alta Hunly, 4/11/98: [quoting]

Texas—Just seconds after pickax murderess Karla Faye Tucker was executed, her soul was carried to Heaven by two of God's angels!

At least three witnesses to the born-again Christian's Feb. 3 death by lethal injection saw the astonishing incident take place.

"I was never a religious person before, but I sure am now," said one source who asked not to be named.

"We watched her lie there, strapped on that gurney, saying her goodbyes to the people she loved and apologizing to her victims' families. There was such peace and serenity in her eyes. I could feel the faith pouring from her.

"The last thing she said was, 'I'm going to be face-to-face with Jesus now.'

"I know there were some people who were pretty cynical when she said that. But they weren't cynical for long."

The witnesses say the condemned woman's expression never changed as the deadly chemical "cocktail" was pumped into her body.

"All at once the entire death chamber was bathed in a brilliant white light—brighter than any light I've ever seen," said another source, who also asked to remain anonymous.

"And suddenly two strong-but-gentle-looking winged creatures descended from the ceiling."

"We watched in wonder as they lifted Karla's spirit out of her body. They took her so tenderly, with such love.

"The three of them rose and slowly vanished, right through the ceiling.

"And then the room was just as it had been before—a normally lit death chamber with a dead body in it.

"But everyone who saw what happened that day—including the ones who deny it—know that Karla Faye has been forgiven. And she is at peace with God in Heaven."

Karla Faye Tucker, who died at 38, was the first woman to be executed by the state of Texas since 1863. She was convicted of the 1983 killings of Jerry Lynn Dean and Deborah Thornton.

After her arrest and conviction, she became a Christian and inspired a wave of protest over her execution.

But in the end, the state of Texas turned down all her appeals. [End quoting]

I never saw or heard this story in the regular media news. God knows how to use any event for a teaching tool for good.

VACCINATION RISKS ARE VERY REAL

From *THE WINNIPEG SUN*, your comment column, 3/23/98: [quoting]

[in answer to a columinist criticizing a military personnel for refusing to take an anthrax vaccination in Canada]

I am in total disagreement with Naomi Lakritz's column concerning the Canadian airman who refused the anthrax vaccination.

I am a parent of a vaccine-damaged child and would never let my child receive another "licensed" vaccine, and would never consent to a "non-licensed" (experimental) vaccine. There is an Association for Vaccine Damaged Children right here in Winnipeg and it has helped to inform hundreds of people about the very real risks of vaccinations and how to become properly informed.

There are many Gulf War veterans who are suffering from various conditions for which the "mainstream" media are refusing to report on and it makes one wonder who is really controlling the "mainstream" media and how they report matters such as this.

The various conditions that the Gulf War vets were and are experiencing did not necessarily develop immediately following the vaccinations, but occurred days, months or even years following their various shots.

The risks of Mike Kipling becoming seriously damaged from the anthrax vaccination are, in my opinion,

worse than the risk of his being involved in a war situation.

Lakritz should do proper research into the risks of vaccination before she states that Kipling simply should have "rolled up his sleeve". I am speaking from experience, because when vaccine damage happens to a member of your family, the risks are 100 per cent ours. [End quoting]

People are awakening to the NWO goons' mind control and depopulation techniques.

HOUSE DEMS BRING CLINTON ADMINISTRATION BACK TO REALITY ON ENCRYPTION

From the INTERNET, courtesy John Ray 4/10/98: [quoting]

A letter sent to President Clinton last week from a dozen House Democrats, including minority leader and potential Democratic presidential candidate Dick Gephardt, asks the administration to abandon its efforts to restrict exportation of strong encryption by US companies. In the letter dated April 2nd, the Democrats urge President Clinton to take into account "global and technical realities" when federal agencies are considering encryption export regulations.

The letter alluded to two recent developments in regards to encryption that may make administration efforts to prevent the international use of encryption null and void. The first development that the letter cites is the recent announcement by encryption software manufacturer, PGP, to use its Dutch subsidiary to develop and market strong encryption overseas.

This move effectively and legally avoids the existing ban on strong encryption sales overseas without software "back doors" for US law enforcement. The second development was a recent announcement by MIT scientist, Ronald Rivest, who has devised a non-encryption system of "winnowing and chaffing", which hides real message packages of information with multiple "dummy" packages, making the real message undetectable. These measures, the House Democrats argue, make the administration's wrangling with US software companies pointless.

The letter continues: "The point is that the Administration can hardly control the proliferation or direction of technology in the digital age.

Consequently, the discussions with industry will succeed only if the Administration commits itself in these discussions to a major overhaul of its current export policies and to policies that do not mandate or compel domestic controls on encryption. Rather, government should recognize that in the coming decades the protection of our nation's critical infrastructure and national security interests demand foremost that American industry retain its global leadership in the digital arena." [End quoting]

Just maybe science will, for at least a while, outsmart the government goon squads that spy on our private communications over the Internet or at least make it a little more difficult for them.

IRS REFORMS PROTECTING PRIVACY?
INTERNAL AUDIT SAYS NO

Excerpted from the INTERNET, courtesy John Ray 4/10/98: [quoting]

As most taxpayers approach Tax Day, April 15th, with fear and trepidation, a 1997 IRS internal audit uncovered by the *Associated Press* reported that only 27 percent of test calls properly handled taxpayer information over the phone. IRS Internal auditors placed test calls to 17 offices in the Northeast and West between July 1996 and February 1997. Posing as celebrities—prominent business people, a mayor and a sports announcer—auditors were able to secure tax and income information over the phone by using names, addresses and Social Security numbers. For calls regarding change of address or release of tax information, IRS customer service officials are required to seek at least two additional pieces of personal information apart from the SSN, name and address.

In an unrelated story a Boston-area man continues battle with the IRS over a payment that the IRS claims was never made. *The Boston Globe* reported earlier this week that Graham Knowland sent a \$2,600 check to the IRS last April for his 1996 taxes, which the IRS cashed and the bank returned to Knowland. A year later, however, the IRS claimed that they "lost" the money, and that Knowland would have to "find" the money or write another check for \$2,600... [End quoting]

So, all the IRS goons need to do is deny they received your money and they can collect over and over again. How's that for boosting profits?!

ANALYSIS OF S.1921 HEALTH CARE PERSONAL INFORMATION NONDISCLOSURE ACT OF 1998

SIGN OR DIE

From the INTERNET, courtesy of John Ray, 4/98: [quoting]

At the beginning of April, Senator Jeffords introduced a new health privacy bill (S.1921). Like other health privacy bills, Jeffords' proposal is long and complex. It contains one especially notable and troublesome new feature, and this analysis focuses on that feature and a few others. This is not a comprehensive review of the proposal.

Coerced Consent—The biggest single problem with the bill is the patient authorization language in section 202. The effect of this language is to give health plans, employers, and providers the power to decide how patient information can be used and disclosed AND to force patients to agree to whatever the plans, employers, and providers decide. The proposal lacks clear statutory or regulatory limits on the power of health plans, employers, and providers to use and disclose identifiable health information to suit their own interests.

Section 202 provides that every employer offering a health plan, every health plan, and every provider MUST obtain from every individual a signed authorization. As a result, each individual covered by health insurance provided by an employer will be required to sign at least two separate authorization forms: one from the health plan and one from the employer. These are separate authorizations. The spouse of a worker must also sign an authorization, and a parent must sign on behalf of each covered child. Any individual seeking care from a provider may also be required to sign a separate authorization for each

provider.

Section 202 provides that the signed, written authorization "is a legal, informed authorization concerning the use and disclosure of protected health information for treatment, payment or health care operations". Thus, the terms of the law proclaim that the authorizations are both "legal" and "informed". However, nothing in the bill gives an individual any ability to refuse to sign or to bargain over the contents of the authorization. The law REQUIRES an employer, health plan, and provider to obtain an authorization.

What happens if an individual refuses to sign an authorization? The bill would make signing an authorization a condition of enrollment in a health plan or of the provision of health care. As a result, it appears that an individual who refuses to sign loses health insurance or can be denied treatment. The legal requirement to obtain an authorization falls on the employer, health plan, and provider. Without an authorization, each would appear to be legally justified to deny insurance or treatment to anyone who refused to sign an authorization or who modified it in any way.

For those who require either health insurance or health treatment, the policy in the Jeffords bill is sign the form or forego treatment or insurance. In other words, SIGN OR DIE. There is no opportunity for bargaining, for customizing an authorization to meet individual needs, or for opting out of a particular disclosure. This is not informed consent. There is nothing consensual about signing. The consent is coerced as a matter of federal law. SIGN OR DIE. [End quoting]

We are all going to start suffering severely if we don't stop these murder squads, NOW!!

ENGLISH ONLY

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/13/98: [quoting]

California's state Board of Education has reversed itself after decades of mandatory bilingual education and will now allow local districts to choose to teach in the English language if they wish. The state mandatory bilingual law actually expired in 1987 but was still being enforced. Only a few districts have requested to drop bilingual classes. "Special" areas of education usually translate into enhanced budgets for the school system. [End quoting]

It's about time they started letting the teachers teach English, but they still need to take away the incentive for not teaching it.

SINKING STERN FIRST

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/13/98: [quoting]

Howard Stern, radio's darling of dirty talk, is losing sponsors, who are hearing from the people organized by American Family Association. Advertising for his show is down an average 85 percent in Cleveland, Detroit, Pittsburgh, Washington, D.C. and others. At least 1,600 sponsors out of a total 1,871 have dropped the smut show. Stern has been begging his listeners to patronize the remaining sponsors. [End quoting]

More and more people are awakening to the fact that we need to clean up our society—in every way.

DOUBLE LOSER

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/13/98: [quoting]

Sharon Faulkner, who lasted a week as the first woman admitted to The Citadel [military school], may have a lifetime hangover for the pursuit of her dream. The American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU) and Shearman and Sterling law firm are asking \$6.7 million for legal work that resulted in her admission. ACLU lawyer Sara Mandelbaum charged \$290 per hour, Shearman and Sterling's Henry Weishurg, \$450 per hour. [End quoting]

Sharon is learning what <u>really</u> makes this world go 'round, isn't she?!

reverse pict. of jesus

FROM THE HEARTS OF CHILDREN

With everything that we all do, it is the children that will inherit the fruits of our hearts and labor.

"BUTTERFLY KISSES"

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, <wrldline@texas.net>, 4/98: [quoting]

We often learn the most from our children. Some time ago, a friend of mine punished his 3-year-old daughter for wasting a roll of gold wrapping paper. Money was tight, and he became infuriated when the child tried to decorate a box to put under the tree. Nevertheless, the little girl brought the gift to her father the next morning and said, "This is for you, Daddy." He was embarrassed by his earlier overreaction, but his anger flared again when he found that the box was empty. He yelled at her, "Don't you know that when you give someone a present, there's supposed to be something inside of it?"

The little girl looked up at him with tears in her eyes and said, "Oh, Daddy, it's not empty. I blew kisses into the box. All for you, Daddy." The father was crushed. He put his arms around his little girl, and he begged her forgiveness. My friend told me that he kept that gold box by his bed for years. Whenever he was discouraged, he would take out an imaginary kiss and remember the love of the child who had put it there.

In a very real sense, each of us as parents has been given a gold container filled with unconditional love and kisses from our children. There is no more precious possession anyone could hold.

"THE MOST CARING CHILD"

Author and lecturer Leo Buscaglia once talked about a contest he was asked to judge. The purpose of the contest was to find the most caring child. The winner was a four-year-old child whose next-door neighbor was an elderly gentleman who had recently lost his wife.

Upon seeing the man cry, the little boy went into the old gentleman's yard, climbed onto his lap, and just sat there. When his mother asked him what he had said to the neighbor, the little boy said, "Nothing, just helped him cry."

"TWO NICKELS AND FIVE PENNIES"

When an ice cream sundae cost much less, a boy entered a coffee shop and sat at a table. A waitress put a glass of water in front of him.

"How much is an ice cream sundae?" "Fifty cents," replied the waitress. The little boy pulled his hand out of his pocket and studied a number of coins in it. "How much is a dish of plain ice cream," he inquired? Some people were now waiting for a table, and the waitress was impatient. "Thirty-five cents," she said angrily.

The little boy again counted the coins. "I'll have the plain ice cream." The waitress brought the ice cream and walked away. The boy finished, paid the cashier, and departed. When the waitress came back, she swallowed hard at what she saw. There, placed neatly beside the empty dish, were two nickels and five pennies—her tip. [End quoting]

God has told us that the children would teach us—if we have the ears to hear and the eyes to see.